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Mr. Serg. fefferies. Did you hear Mr, Alder-
man Cormfs fay fo? What this Gentleman? Do
you know him?

Mr. Higgins, Says he to Sheriff Shute, You
fhall have all Right done to you.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies, Who elfe did you fee there ?

Mr. Higgins, 1 faw Mr. Swinock.

Mr., Serg. Fefferies. Did you fee Mr. Key 2 Did
you fee Mr. Pilkingion 2

Mr, Higgins. 1did not fee Mr, Pifkinglon: If{aw
Shute,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies, Did you fee Mr, Feky!?

Mr, Higgins, Yes.

Mr.Serg. Fefferies. Which of them do you mean?

Mr, Higgins. The elder Man,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. There is Fobn fekyl the el-
der, Gentlemen ; and Fobn Feky! the younger,

Mr. figgins. 1 was difputing with a Fellow that
his Toes came out of his Shoes, and had a green
Apron s faid I, dre you 6 Livery Man? Yesy 1am,
faid he. Swrely, faid I, they don’t ufe to make fuch
as you are, Liwery Men.  Says Mr, Feky!, He may
be as gosd @ Mair as you, for aught 1 know. That
wag about half an Hour after my Lord Mayor

went hrme,

My, Serg, Fefferies. What Time was the Ad-
journiment ¢

Mr. Higgins, About five or lix, 1 was (peaking
fomething, 2ou are all in @ Riot,  This 15 o Riol,
fays Mr. Swinock to me s I can never mect you,
but you are rading agawnft the King’s Evidence.

L. C.J. The King’s Evidence, what was that?

Mr, Wildan:s. What was done by Mr. Faky/

Mr, flggius. He was talking among the People.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. He did encourage, among
the reft,

Mr. IVilliams, You are in 2 Paflion now.

Mr. Serg. Fefferics. No, Sir, Tam not.

Mr. Higgins. He feconded Mr. Coruifh when he
faid, Tafift uponr your Rights.

Mr, Serg, Fefferizs. Who did {o?

Mr. Higgins, fieoriry, my Lord, that they
call the Proteflant Checfemonger,

Mr, #ifliams. A very pretty Word indeed.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Ay, foitiss heisfo called s
you will give us Leave to hear what the Witneflts

fpeak.
Mr. [Villiams. Another Epithet would do 2

oreat deal better.

Mr. Serg Feffertes. William Bell, what was dene
upon the Spot? Was therc any Hart?

Mr., I7illiams, Do you fay, upon your QOath,
that Gentleman was there?

Mr. Higgins. 1 have feen him in the Balcony.

Mr, Serg. Fefferies. e fays, he ufesto be there
upon publick Days in the Coffee.houfe,——B.l/,
I would defire to know of you, whether you are
able 1o give an Account after my Lord Mayor’s
Adjournment, who was there ¢ Name as many
Perfons as you can.

Mr, Bell. Mr. Bethel; and I faw Mr. Coraifh go
through the little Gate into the Yard.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Who elfe ?

Mr, Bell. Thatisall, Siry Sheniff Pilkington de-
livered two Poll-Books into my Hand.

Mr. Att. Gen. Mr, Vavafor, will you tell my

Lord and the Jury what you faw?
Mr. Zavafor, It happen’d thus : Mr. Hammon had

takena Man upon Execution, who was Bail for a
Client of mine who had paid the Moneys long
before 3 upon that f came to know who imployed
him 3 and coming here, 3 found Mr. Hammon in

that Place, and the Croud was fo greas, Dy Iz
back again, faid he, for you will go wear 15 3o
abufed.  Whillt I {taid there, Tasked him whag was
the Meaning 3 fays he, In this Room are thy Sho.
riffs and fome others cafling up the Poll y and whilg
I ftaid, there came in Mr. Goodenonzh to-and-frg
from them, and before they would admit any
they would know their Names; there was My, Key 1
my Lord Grey, and Sir William Gulfton, J

Mr, Att, Gen. What afterwards ¢

Mr. Vavafor. Yes, Mr. Cornifh was there s Lo
and Sherift Shute came out together, and they
went upon thofe Stairs under the Clock.

Mr. At Gen. Who came out with Sherilf $5us. 2

Mr. Vavajor. Cornifb,

Mr. Williams, What Cormfh ?

Mr. Vawvafor, Alderman Cornifh,

Mr, [Filfiams, Very mannerly.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. His Name was Corrifh be.
fore he was an Alderman,

Mr. Vavafor. And Sheniff Shute told the People,
If ihey would flay a little time, be would give them
Satisfaition. Upon that, Mr. Ceririfh went througls
the Cempany; and when they came to the Hifl-
ings, Mr. Shute ordered Proclamation to he made,
and told them, Whereas my Lovd Mavor hid 1ok,
ufoi bine lo adjorrn at uine a Clock § e rlo 3he
riffs of London and Middlefex, being the fro: i
Officers, do adjourn it 1o Tuefday ar rize of 11,
Clock,  Upon that, an antient Gentlemasn de-
fired they might proclaim the Ele@ion, Then fays
Shute, that I can’t do it nee, for we have 1akorn
very good Ceunfel for what we do. Had ir not
been for Mr. Hammon, 1 had been, I belteve,
trod under oot fufficiently.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Mr. Denbam, who did you

fec !
Mr. Denbam. 1 faw Sir Thomas Player, and

Mr. Fenls.

Mr.Serg. Fefferies, Wheredid you fee them,pray ?

Mr, Denbam. In the Yard., T went home with
my Lord Mayor, and then I {aw them. I had
kind of a Glance, but I can’t {wear pofitively to
Mr, Fenks.

Mr. Serg. fefferics. Siv Thomas Player, and Mr.
Ferks 3 what did you fee them do ?

St Fr. Winn. Heack you, Friend, where was it
you faw them?

Mr, Denhanr. In the Yard.

Str Fr, F/inn. What did you {ee them do?

Mr, Denbam. Nothing at all,

Mr, Serg, Fefferies. I—fow many People might
be there then? Two or three hundred ?

Mr, Denbam. Abave a thoufand.

M, J7lliams. What did you hear Sir Thoamas
Player fay ?

Wir. Denbam. Nothing,

Mr, Williams, How far was he from his own
Door?

Mr, Denbam. On t'other Side the Hall.

M-, Williams. A mighty way indeed, a mighty
thing. "What faid Mr, Fenks ?

Mr. Denbam, I can’t fay, Sir, that I heard him
fpeak 2 Word, only in the Tumult.

Sir Fr, Wian, Friend, I ask you thisy I think
[ heard you fay, you faw Sir Thomas Player and
Mr, fenks in the Yard, butyou did not fee them
do any thing at all?

Mr, Denbam. No, |

‘Mz, Serg, Fefferies, Pray, Mr, Farrington, will
you tell my Lord and the Jury what you fawafter

my Lord Mayor had adjourned the Court?
M. Fur-
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Mrt. Farrington. 1 faw there Sheriff’ Pilkington,
Shute, Sir Thomas Player, Nir, Wickbam the Scri-
vener in Lothbury, Mr. Jenks, Babington, one Fen-

#ings an Upholfterer. |
L. C. ¥. Sir Thomas Player you fay in the firll

Place?

Mr. Farrington. Yes, and Wickbam, my Lord,
a Scrivener in Lothbury.

L. C. 7. Who then?

Mr. Farrington, Sherift Pitkington and Shute, and
Mr. Cornifh, Alderman Cornifb.

Mz, Serg. Fefferies. Did you fee one Deagle there ?

Mr, Farrington. No, Sir.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Wickbam you faw there?

Mr, Farrington. Ay, Sir, 1 know him very well,

Mr, Thompfon. What s Wickbaw’s Chriftian
Name?

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Jobn Wickbam, he goes by
that Name, 1t may be he was not chnften’d, 'Was
Fenks there, do you know him?

Mr, Farrington. ‘The Linen draper.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Ay, very well, he goes by
the Name of Francis Fenks. Did you fee Feky!
there ¢

Mr, Farrington. I don’t know the Name; [ faw
a great many L knew by Sight, but not theirNames.

Mr. Holt, What did thefe Gentlemen do?

Mr. Farrington, T'll tell you, Str 5 there was
Sherift Pilkington and Sheriff 3bute, I went in
where they were taking the Poll 5 faid I, Gentle-
meity my Lord Muyor bath adpourned the Court,
what do you here 2 I fuppofe it lies in my Lord
Mayor’s Power 5 if it les in bim to call, certainly be
muft diffolve.

Mr. #illiams. You argued thus.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Pray give us Leave to go on,

Mr, Farrington. There was Mr, Wickham, and
{ays he, My Lord Mayor bath nothing to do here,
neiiher will we be ruled by any of your Tory Lord
Masors, This is not the firft Afperfion, faid 1, that
you have caft upon a Gentleman that loves the Churel
aid the Government eftablifhed by Law 3 and they
fell about me, and had it not been for Mr. Fletcher
and Mr. AHill, I believe they had done me a Mif-
chief; for they trod upon my Toes; who did it
I can’t tell. |

Mr. Serg., Fefferies. But you fay Sir Thomas
Player, and Pilkington, and Alderman Cornifh,
were amongft them? ,

Mr. Farrington. Yés, Sir. F

Mr. Serg, Feffertes. That’s enough.—Pray, Mr.
Cartwright, will you tell my Lord and the Jury
what you obferved there, and who was there.

Mr. Cartwright. I'know the Names of'no Per-

fons that were there ; all that I can fay was this :
As foon as my Lord Mayor adjourned the Court
upon the Huffings, he came down, and going out
of the Hall, he had like to have been thrown
down, had it not been for Mr, §hsw 5 and going
to fave my Lord Mayor, I wrenched my Back,
and I fpit Blood for feven Days after, -

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Tell that, Mr, Cartwright,
over again. | o

Mr. Cartwright. My Back was wrenched in
faving my Lord Mayor, and I {pit Blood feven
Days after. - - _ | ;

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Endeavouring to fave my
Lord Mayor, his Back was fo wrenched, that he
Ipit Blood fix or feven Days after. - Hark you,
Mr. Cartwright, ever. fince that Time have you
found any Indifpofition ¢ . ey

Mr. Cartwright. 1 have not been my own
Man fince,

Riot.
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Mr. Williams, He took a Surfeir, _

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. He wok a Surfeii of il
Company I am fure.

Mr. Sol: Gen. Mr. Shaw, give my Lord and the
Jury an Account of what you know.

Mr. Shaw. My Lord, my Lord Mayor fentto
the Sheriffs, and ordered them to forbear polling,
and come up to the Chamber, and fent two gr
three times 3 but they denied coming to him, and
went on and ordered the Common Cryer to make
Proclamation forthemto depart ; and if they {taid,
that he would look upon them as Rioters 5 and
there was hiffing and a great deal of Crowd ;
and there was Sir James Edwards in the Courr,
they hunched him with their Elbows 3 and as his
Lordfhip came down, going down the Steps there
was fuch a Crowd, that if I had not catched his
Lordfhip in my Arms, he had falien upon his
Forehead, and his Hat was off,

L.C.7. Who did you fee fo misbehave tliem.
felves?

Mr. Shaw. My Lord, I can’t tell.

- Mr. Serg. Fefferies. I think we have now proved
It again{t every body we defign, fave only againtt
Mr. Deagle ; for we do not now proceed againft
Dorman Newman and Benjamin Alfop. Now, my
Lord, we will only prove againft Fobu Dezagle,
and then we fhall have done. Mr. Kenp, will
you tell my Lord and the Jury who you faw
here ? Did you obferve any Particulars after
the Court was adjourned ?

Mr. Kemp. 1 don’t remember I obferved any
one Man.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies, You don’t? Had you any
Difcourfe with Mr, Deagle at any time ?

Mr, Kemp, Yes, I had.

M, Serg, Fejferizs. What did he tell you?
M. Kemp. He did contefs he was there aboug

Seven a Clock at Night,
Mr. Serg. Fefferies. He did own he was among(t

them ?

Mr. Kemp. Yes, with Alderman Coruifh.

Mz, Serg. Fefferies. What fay you, Mr. Righy ¢

Mr, Righy, I faw him about Seven a Clock,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Was he in the Croud?

Mr. Righy. Yes, amongft the People.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Here isall now, Gentlemen,
but Dorman Newman and Beinjamin Alfop, and we
don’t go againft them now. After they had done
this, and hifs’d at the King, and cried, No Kiig,
# Lord Mayor, what Acclamations went thele
People off with ¢

Mr. Hammon. When the Court was broke up
by the Sheriffs, they cried, God fave onr irue Pro-
tefiant, Soeriffs 3 and in that manner they follow-
ed us.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. What fay you?

Mr. Hammon. They hollowed us home, Sir,
as far as Fifbmongers-Hall. | |

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. They began with a Hifs,
and ended with a Hollpw.

. Mr. Williams. Gentlémen, I am Counfel for the
Defendants; and, my Lord, the Queftion1s, under
Favour, Whether thefe Perfons taken for Defen-
dants, whether they be guilty of this Riot, as1t 1s
laid in the Information. We are now upon a {pe-
cial Cafe, and.the Queftiofi ‘is, Whether guulty,
or not guilty. My Lord, in the firft Place; for
the Cries ; what the Cry was hath been too’often
mentioned ; for thofe Cries, there is nothing at all
fix'd upon any. Peifon that is Defendant ; all that

is charged upon us, is, that we were in the'Hall ic
| et {eerns,
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feems, and becaufe there was this Noife heard,
therefore we maft be guilty.  In this Crowd where
we are, Ihear hifling, efpecially at Cother End of
the Hall ; which of usare concerned 1n it, is a hard
matter tojudge 5 it is a hard matter, and it were
very well, and it had been very happy, if fome of
thofe Perfons had been apprehended for their hif-
fing. I won’tfay, Gentlemen, that either oneParty
or t’other in the Conteft made the Noife of hiffing,
but there is pothing of it fix’d upon any of us.
Our Cafe is this, my Lord, with Favour; When
we have ftated our Cafe and proved it, weare very
innocent, and not guilty ot the Rior. In fome
mealure it hath been ftated on the other fide, They
{ay in the Information, that the Lord Mayor called
a Common Hall; we don’t difpute that matter,
we agree it, that the Lord Mayor of London is the
King’s Lieutenant; but to make fuchan Inference,
That becaufe the Lord Mayor is the King’s Lieu-
tenant in the City of London, that he muft execute
all the Offices in the City, 1s of no Credit in the
World; fo that they are miftaken in that. Men
are bounded n their Offices. The Lord Mayor
does not execute all the Offices in the City tho’ he
be Lord Mayor. The Queftion between us is this;
Whether the Sheriffs, in this Cafe, did more than
their Office as Sheriffs of the City of Lendon. There
3s a Superiority due to the Lord Mayor, Another
Thing we agree with them; we agree it is in the
Lord Mayor only to call thefe Common Halls,
and as Mr. Sergeant Fefferies, that hath been in a
good QOffice in the City, he agreesit himfelf; and
itis apparent, there are fome fix’d Days for Eleéti-
on; but yet tho’ there be fix’d Days for Election,
yet there muft be that Formality of a Summons
from the Lord Mayor to the City, to meetin or-
der to the Election of Sheriffs for the City of Lon-
don and other Officers ; that we do agree that my
Lord Mayor hath the Power of calling Common
Halls, and he is the proper Officer, 'We agree
alfo, Gentlemen, that when the Bufinefs 1s done,
for there is nothing in vain in Nature, and there is
nothing inGovernment that fhould be in vain,when
the Bufinefs isdone, my Lord Mayor is to bid the
Company, Fare them well, which you may call
difcharging the Common Hall ; we agree That to
be commonly and ufually done by my LiordMayor.
But herein we differ, which we are to try, the
Right of the Office of Sheriffs being the Quettion ;
it is a Queftion of Right, and I don’t {ee the Go-
vernment 1§ concerned one way or other.

L. C.F. Upon my Word I dofeeit; and furely
you muft be blind, or elle you would {ee it too:
when a Company is got together, No God fave tie
King, no King, no Lovd Mayor. ‘

Mr. Williams. My Lord, I thoughtIhad opened
it plainly, I fpeak before a great many People; I
defire, my Lord, this may be very well heard. I
thought 1 had faid very well, from all thefe Noifes
and Cries we are all innocent, we juftify nothing
of it, only we would have been glad if they had
apprehended any Man that made that Noife; it
had been a very happy thing if one of them, or
all of them had been Defendants to be tried.
My Clients are Defendants, they are innocent and
unconcern’d 3 it is a Crime committed by fome
where thefe Gentlemen were by, but they are
innocent ; we hear hiffing at t'other End of the
Room, it was an ill thing, and of a treafon-
able Complexion 3 but for thefe Gentlemen they,
areunconcern’d, ‘The Queftion between theLord

Mayor and the Sherifts of the City, ts a Queftion

of Right between the Mayor and Sheriffs, Whe.
ther it be the Prerogative of the Mayor, or tha
Right of the Sherifis? AndI{ay, under Correction
again, this Queftion, Whether my Lord Mayof of
London may adjourn the Common Hall to a cer.
tain Day, isa Queftion of Right ; Whether he can
do it, or the Shenits? and I don’t fee what Confe-
quence it can have upon the Government, The
Lord Mayor is the King’s Deputy, the Sheriffs
they are the King’s Officers 5 and the Queftion is,
Whether it be in the Lord Mayor or the Sheriff
of Londoi to adjourn it? They are very good Sub.
jects, Iam fure this very Year they arelo; there.
fore I wonder at thefe Gentlemen of the King’s
Counfel, that will meddle with the Government,
and fay the Government i1s concerned in thisy
appeal to any Man 1if there be any more Concern
in this; I fay this, here was a Common Hail calPd,
grounded upon Cuftom in the City ot London, and
here is 2 fingle Queftion, Whether thete Sheriffy
did any more than their Duty ; whether they were
guilty of a Riot in continuing this Poll? Gentle-
men, this 1s the Method we fhall take, Firft of
all, 1t1s not proved, that ever the Lord Mayor,
before this Time, did ever attempt to adjourn a
Common Hall to any certain time ; all the Wit-
nefles that were call’d, that pretend to be know-
ing In the Cuftoms of Londm, the Common Ser-
geant himlelf, he docsnot pretend that it was ad-

journ’d to a Day.

Mr. Serg. Fefferics. You miftake, Sir Robert
Clayton did from Saturday to Monday.

L. C. 7. What need if there had been no Pre-
cedent ? If fo be an Affembly of People are met
about Bufinefs, and they can’t make an End of it
in a reafonable time, muft they be kept all Night
till they have ¢ What Argument will you make of
it? Ifa Man may call and diffolve, do you think
if there be Occafion, but, by the Law itfelf, that
he may adjourn to a convenient Hour 2

Mr. Williams, ‘That will be a Queftion between
us, My Lord, whatI (ay certainly of Fact car.
ries fomething in it.

L. C.F. Not atall.

Mr, Williams. Then my Lord I have done.

L.C.%. Give us Leave to underftand fome-
thing, Sir. .

Sir Br, Wi, My Lord, by your Lordfhip’s
Favour—— '

L. C.F. I fpake to Mr. Williams, and he takes
it {o heinoufly at my Hand that Facts fignify no-
thing ; I doagain fay it, the Fact fignifies nothing.
For I tell you again as Law, it is not denied the
Lord Mayor may call, he may diffolve 3 then i
{ay by Law without Fact, by Cuftom, he that can
both call and diffolve, may adjourn to a conve-
nient Time., Do not Judges of Aflize in all the
Counties of “England do it, when a Caufe is ap-
pointed to be tried in fuch a County fuch a Day,
and 1t may be it is tried three Days after? And
yet I pray find me the Statute or Commiffion, or
find me one ‘thing or another, befides the very
Law 1felf, that doth give them Leave to adjourn
from t/mé to time. |

Mr, Williams. My Lord, there is a mighcy Dif-
ference, but I am only upon Fact ; thefe Gentle-
men will agrée it was never practifed before Sir Ro-
bert Clayion’s Time ; what the Confequence in Law
will be, that is in your -Lordfhip’s Breaft; I am
now fpeaking upon the Evidence that this hath not
been practifed. Whart thie Law is, for that we are

to have your Judgment, which T humbly crave,_é
W]
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will be judged by Gentlemen thatare my Seniors,
and better read in this Matter ; but, my Lord,
aMan may have a Power of calling or diffolving,
and not of adjourning 5 it may be fo. But, my
Lord, admitting it to be fo for this Time 5 yer,
my Lord, whether we are guilty of a Riot, take
the Circumftances of our Cafe. Whether the Right
of adjourning be inthe Sherifis, yea, or nay ; it 1s
a Queflion of Right, and I had rather apply my-
felf to your Lordfhip, than to the Jury. If there
were a Queftion of Right between the Lord Mayor
and the Sheriffs, it may be admitted by our Coun-
fa], that 1t was his Right to adjourn the Court,
and probably the Sheriffs might be 1n the Wrong,
and the Lord Mayor in the Right. The Lord
Mayor adjourns the Court, and they continue it ;
they go on with the Poll, and go on with the
Execution of their Office, as they apprehended ;
if they were ftil] for their Right, I hope your Lord-
“thip will not make this a Riot. My-Lord, for the
Circum{tances that followed, the Noifc that was
made, which I don’tlove to mention; if, I fay,
they were guilty of this, I am filent; but if they
did no more, as I hear no more proved uponthem,
than continuing the Poll, then, I fay, it will be
hard to make them guilty of the Riot. And an-
other thing is this; my Lord, weall know, if there
were 2 thoufand Eleétors, any Man knows, thac
when there is a Queltion upon an Eleétion, it is
impoflible fuch a thing fhall be carried on but
there will be Reviling, ill Language, and the like;
and 1o turn all thefe things to a Riot, a thing {o
common from the Beginning of Lleltions to this
Time, if there be a Divifion and Poliing, there
will be fomething you may turn to a Riot.  But,
I fay this, they have not inltanced in any one De-
fendant, thac he was guilty of any one particular
A& that amounted to a Riot mn itfelf, they have
not inftanced in one. They fay of Alderman Cor-
zifh, that he was of the fame Opinion with the
Sheriffs, thar they did infift upon the Rights of the
City, he took 1cto be the Right of che Sheriffs ;
And, fays one of them, [ will fland upon it; Be-
tbe! that had been Sheriff. Now we will call our
Witneffes, we will prove what hath been the con-
ftant Practice in the City, we will prove the Me-
thods of Adjournment; and, my Lord, this is to
be faid, which your Lordthip will obferve, That
the Sheriffs adjourned the Court to the very (ame
Time with my Lord Mayor; fo that it was no
ré:ore than to bring the Macter to an Ifiue in this
ale,

Sir Fr. Winar, Spare me 2 Word in this Cafe, my
Lord. There is no Evidence produced againtt
Lrenchard, nor againft Fekyl the younger, nor
againft Bifield, nor — . Of thefe there s no
Queftion, but they are as if they were out of the
Information ; I muft beg Leave for 2 Word or two
asto thofe Defendants, that they have offered fome
Evidence againft, The Queftion 1s now before
your Lordfhip, Whether they are guilty of a Riot
or no? My Lord, for aught I fec, 1t will ftand
upon a Nicety of Judgment ; yet, if there be not
Matter enough, Gentlemen, to make the Defend-
ants guiley of a Riot, then it will clear the Defend-
ants. My Lord, asto thofe Words, thatreally were
Words that ought to be inquired into, who they
were that fpoke them in relation to his Majelty 3
I think it was a very ill Thing of thole Men that
faw them, thatthey would not neglect all manner
of Bufinefs to feize them, I think ic wasa Duty
to fix ppon them ; but, my Lord, there is ne

Yor, IIL

for a Riot,
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Evidence to put it upon any of the Defendants.
My Lord, that being pared off, now the Queflion
s, That the Meeting together was lawiul, that is
agreed § then when they came together, my Lord.
'I dc_) think, that if we do rely upon the Evidence,
It w_:ll be a mighty hard thing to make thisa Rior ;
fetting afide thofe villainous Words that were {po-
ken, which cannot relate to the Defendants. Sup-
pofe, my Lord, that among the Eleftors the
whole Commen Hall of the City, there doth a
Difpute arife, before the Elion is over, con-
cerning the Adjournment of the Sherifs or the
Lord Mayor; fome Men arc of one Opinicn,
fome are of another ; and their Evidence, Mir. Pe-
ter King and another, Aworneys, 1 afked the
Queltion feveral times, Did the Loid Mayer of
London ever intersofe or concein Liznfeif 1 adicierin-
ing the Hall, 6ill the Eleflion was quite fivifhed ?
And they faid, No. Then, my Lord, I mui fay
it as to thefe particular Defendants, in fuch a Con-
coure of People as were met there, it is as flender
a Proof of a Riot as ever was, and intimates that
the Citizens of Zondsir, they that happen rot to
be the greater Number, they that lofe the Eleéli-
on, may be found guilty ofa Riot in chufing other
Officers, as well asin the Bufinels of Sherifis :
which being fo tender a Point, 1 think it will be
a very fevere Expofition, my Lord, to make this
aRiot. But now for the Matter, we will call to
your Lord(hip {everal Witnelles, Men that have
been Magilirates in the City, that it was always
looked upon, that my Lord Mayor, as he is the
principal Magiftrate, hegives Notice for Common
Halls; and when the feveral Ele®ors are mer,
and the Bufinefs 1s over, he directs them 10 go
home, and diffolves them ;5 but my Lord Mayor
meddles not in every little Admtniftration of the
Eleftion of Officers, but leaves them to inferior
Officers, the Sherifisand others ; that is their Du-
ty 3 my Lord, with Submiffion, they poll them,
and {end them home duriag the Election, there-
fore by Law they do this; for, my Lord, the
Cuftom of a City, and the Cuftom of a Place, is
the Law of the Place; andif the Cuftom of the
Place had been, that the Sheriffs have been the
Perfons that have managed it, it is their Righe s
but the Common Sergeant he fays he hath the {ole
Management of it 3 thenif 1t be as Mr, Common
Sergeant fays, if that mult go, upon my Word,
Gentlemen, your Privileges are reduced to a ligue
Compafs, ——-

L.C.¥. They didconfer one wich another who
they took to have the moft Voices, and fo report-
ed it; not that he did claim any thing in his own
Right, but asan Officer of the City. Now it is
plain, and I think there is no Inconveniency falls
upon it, if an Officer acquaints my Lord Mayor,
according to the belt of our Judgment, we think
foch a Man bath the moft Voices; thatdoesnotgive
him a Right for him to makean Officer, notatall.

Sir Fr, Winn, I fay what he faid in his Evidence ;
but one of the Attorneys {wears, that they haveall
equal Power ; I wonder then who fhould makean
End of the Bufinefs, My Lord, we will call to
your Lordfhip ancient Ci_tizens, that have been
frequent at Ele@ions, to give you an Account that
the Sheriffs always had the Management 5 that my
Lord Mayor never concerned himfelf, all he had
Notice it was deiermined 5 and if thacbe fo, and
the Pra&ice hath been fo, then I don’t fee, under
Favour, my Lord, how they will make this a
Rior; thatis the Cafe. '

4 Q

Mr. Thomp-
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Mr. Thompfon. Sir Robert Clayton, will you pleafe
to tell my Lord and the Jury in what manner che
Election of Sherifs hath been, and how the Mayors
have ufually left it to the Sheriffs in that Cafe 2

tr Robert Clayton, My Loord, I have never heard
this Matter hath been in Queftion till of Jate ; fo 1
cannot declare much upon my own Knowledge,
how the Truth of Faét is or thould be 3 I can only

iay this, whar the Pradice hath been. When |
came to the Chair, I did endeavour to know my
Dury, and to do it, The firft time I had Occafion
to take Notice of this Matter, was in the Year of
my Mayoralty ; I did then, according to Cuftom,
{fanmon a Common Hall 5 when I had fummon’d
1t there was a Perfon prefented to the Hall I had
drank to; the Hall did refufe him, and chere
was a great Noife and Hubbub upon 1t, and we
found & way to accommodate that Matter, and
left them to chufe two Sheriffs for themielves,
I retired 1nto this Court together with my Bre-
thren, and Mr. Recorder that was then: We fent
for the Sheriffs up to examine the Matter 5 they
told us, thar they could not agree the Thing, there
were four Perfons in Nomination, but they had
granted a Poll. After this we went down into the
Halls of that Mr. Common Sergeant hath given
fome Account, and Mr. Sergeant Jefferies 5 1 fhall
to tie beft of my Memory give the belt Account
I can of 1t: I {hall only tell you what I did un-
derfiand to be my Duty : T do notdetermine what
the Fradtice was, but what [ underftéod to be my
Duty.  When we came down into the Common
Hall, to declare how the Matter ftood, and thata
Poll was agreed upon and granted, we would have
adjourned the Court to a longer Time; but the
People cried out, to go to the Poll prefently, I
was, as you have been told by Mr. Common Ser-
geant, to go to the Trial of one Giles, upon the
Aflaffination of Arisld, to the Old Baily. 1 did
twice or thrice attempt to ger down out of the
Hall through the Crowd, and was repulfed, the
Crowd was fo great I could not get through, buc
was fala to retire back a_-in to the Huffings, as 1
rememocer, two or three umes.  There might be
fome fuch Difcourfe as Mr. Common Sergeant hath
fatd 5 but thus tar | can remember, that I did both
myfelf. and the Common Sergeant, fignify to them
the Butinels I was about, and fo many Aldermen
as made up a Bench, together with Mr. Recorder,
to manage that Bufinefs, muft go; and that I
would Ieave the Sheriffs to manage the Poll, which
I thought was their Duty.

Mr. Thompfon. Did you take it to be their
Righe?

oir R. Clayton. 1 did not apprehend it tobe my
Right then.

Mr. Twompfon. And therefore you left it to the
Sheriffs as their Right ?

Sir K. Clayton, 1leftit to the Sheriffs to manage
the fame.

Mr. Williams. Sir Robert Clayton, 1 fuppofe when
you were Lord Mayor, you were as much for the
Honour of the Chair as any Man, you would not
have quitted the Right of the Chair?

Sir R, Clayton. I did not; there was a Trial of
me in that Cafe.

Mr. Filliams.  Now, Sir, for adjourning the
Poll: Did you know any fuch Queflion, whether a
Poll was 1o be adjourn’d upon the Eleflion of any
Sherilis?

Sir K. Clayton. There hath been a great Noile
avont Adpournments of late. That Poll was the

moft litigious of any that I know we have had be:
fore or fince; that was adjourned for feveral Days,
Mr. Williams, Who adjourn’d that Poil?
Sir R. Clayton. The Sheriffs did adjourn i, [
think, Gentlemen 5 I do think the Sheriffs did ad-

journ it, I was not prefent.

Mr, At Gen, Sir Robert, don’t {erve the Court
thus.

Mr. Williams. Don’t brow-beat our Witnefles,
Gentlemen ; I know, Mr. Attorney, you are an
Example of fair Practice : We are examining our
Witnefles.

Sir R. Clavton. Pray, my Lord, let me explain
myfelf; 1 fhall lec Mr. Acorney General under-
ftand me. I did never appear at Guild-ball, un-
lefs upon the Account of a Court of Aldermen; I
did never appear at Guild-hall, but the firft Day
we had Confultations here in this Court about
the Adjournment, and upon the Hruflings about
going about the Bulinels we intended, and the
Hall was very incent upon the Poll 5 T twice at-
tempted to go out, and could not get our 3 where-
upon we were fatn to acquaint the Hall, as well
as we could for the Notle, of the Bufinefs we were
to goabour, and they let me go. I left behind
the Sherifls and the Common Sergeant 3 how long
they {tay’d, I can’t tell; I can, upon my own
Knowledge give no Account of them. 1 was not
confulted, to the beft of my Knowledgue, after-
wards, nor did give any parricular Dire&ions for
Adjournment. 1did not do it for this Reafon; I
did not Jook upon it to be in my Power: If T had
fuch a Power, Idid not under(tand i,

Mr. Williams. Sir Rebert, how many Days do
you rhink that Poll continued ¢

Sir K. Clayton, About {ix Days.

Mr. Williams.  Of thofe fix, how many Days
were you prefent ?

Str R, Clayton. 1 did not underftand ic to be my
Duty, and o did not look after it.

Mer., Thempfon. Sir Robert Clayton, I delire to afk
you a Queftion, as to this Matter you have given
in Evidence : Do you give it to the belt of your
Remembrance, or pofitively ?

Sir R. Clayton. 1tell you I fpeak to the beft of
my Remembrance every thing that I fay.

Mr. dit. Gen. Sir Robert Clayton, 1 beg your
Favour, To the beft of your Remembrance, isno
Evidence, it is fo lately; if you pleafe, Sir
Robert, you are to give Evidence of a Thing
about threeYears ago. I afk you, upon your Qath,
Who were your Sheriffs ? .

Sit R. Clayton, Sir Fonathan Raymond, and Sir
Simon Lewis,

Mr. 42, Gen. I would afk you then a plain
Queftion, Sir Robert, becaufe you come in with
your Remembrance: Did you give exprefs Di-
retion to the Common Sergeant or the Sheriffs to
adjourn, upon your Oath ?

Sir R. Clayton, 1 mult, Mr. Arttorney General,
by your Favour, takein my Remembrance.

Mr. A, Gen. Then you are no Evidence.
Sit Robert, Did you give Direftions or not, upon

your Oath?

Sir R. Claylon, I can’t fay it was given,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Did you, or did you not?

Sic R. Clayton. My Lord, I hope 1 have fpoke
Englifh in the Cafe: We did difcourle of the Ad-

journment in this Court, I believe it was difcours’d

below 5 but, as1 faid, I wasengaged to go to the
Old Baily, and [ would leave.that Matter to the She-

riffs, whofe proper Bufinefs I underftood it to be.
Mr, 4.
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Mr. Att. Gen. 1 asked you, Sir Robert, one of
the plaineft Queftions that ever was asked ; I ask
you whether you gave the Sheriffs or the Common
Sergeant exprefs Order to adjourn?

Sir R. Clayton. I believe 1 did not. |

Mr. Ait. Gen, Did the Sheriffs tell you they had
a Right then?

Sir R. Clayton.
the Right.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Sir Robert Clayton, if you
pleafe, I would ask you a Queltion or two. Do
you remember that the Court was adjourned while
you were there or not? Do you underitand the
Queftion, Sir Rebert? Do you remember the
Common Hall was adjourned while you were
there ¢

Sir R. Clayton, Yes, Sir, if you give me Leave
to explain mylelf, 1 think the Common Hall was
adjourn’d ; it was declared 5 buc there was fuch
a Noife in the Hall, that the People could not
hear 1c.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies, But there was a fort of De-
claration made by yourfelf, you did make an Ad-
journment ; but the Noile was fuch, that the
People did not hear: Andif you remember, there
was a Perfon afironted one of the Shertfs, and I
committed him to Cuftody upon it.

Sir R. Clayton. We defir’d to adjonrn for an Hour
or two, that we might go and refrefh ourfelves,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Then you remember there
was an Adjournment: [ ask you whether it was
appointed to be made by you or the Sheriffs ?

Sir R, Claston, Truly I believe it was appointed
by me.

Mr. Serg. Jefferies. Sir Rob.rt, by askinga Que-
ftion or two, Sir Rebert, I know I fhall bring fome
Things to your Remembrance.

Sir R.Clayton. My Lord, 1 don’t know I have
aiven any great Occalion of Laughter to my Bre-
thren; thefe Adjournments have been very com-
mon with us, and I might agree to 1t, or order i,
or dire¢t it ; but one of them 1 believe I did, or
two of them.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. SirRobert, I would only have
a Queftion or two asked, and I know by asking a
Queftion or two, I fhall bring Things to your
Memory, which I am fure you cannot calily for-
get 1 Were there Direétions given for Proclama-
tion to be made for all Parties to depart in the
King’s Name?

Sir R. Clayton, 1 believe there might.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. The next Queltion 15, W he-
ther the Sheriffs ordered that Proclamation to be
made for all Parties to depart?

Sir R. Clayton. If it were done while I was pre-
fent, I make no Doubt in the Cafe but I did di-
reét it, 1 make no Queftion of that.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Verywell : Now, Sir Robert
Clayten, we are got to an Adjournment to a Time
by your Diretion, and Proclamation by your Di-
re¢tion. Now I will ask another Quetion, upon
your Oath: Was not you in the Common Hail,
and gave Order for an Adjournment till Monday
following ; for I remember that Day to be a-
turday ?

Sir R, Clayton. Truly I don’t remember that.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies.  You do not! Siv Robert,
you know very well, that the Sherifts of London,
when the Lord Mayor and Aldermen come back
to the Huftings, the Sherifls fit remote, one on the
Right-hand, and the other on the Left, furtheft
from the Lord Mayor; fo that all the Aldermen

You. IIL '
I

There was no Difpute who had
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fit nearer to the Lord Mayor'thari the Sheriffs do:
Did- you .mind that the Sheriffs came to you to
Ipeak to you any thing of an Adjournment?.

~ Sir R. Clayton. I never faw it. o

- Mr. Fones. 1would ask you a Queftion or two :
You know this Gentleman, don’t you? |

- | Potnting 1o the Common 8 E?‘g&‘;ﬂﬂt.]
Sir R. Clayton,  Yes. *

Mr. Fones. Did he attend the Courtat thatTime?

Sir R, Clayton.  Yes, , ,

Mr. Fones. Sir Robert, Iask youa fair Queftion,
Did you lay any Command on.him to adjourn the
Hall at that Time, from Saturday till Monday ?

Sir R. Clayton. Pray, my Lord, give me Leave
to anfwer Mr. Jones in my own way, |

Mr, Fones, My Lord, I’'m in your Judgment, it
15 a fair Queftion within his own Recognizance
Jately done, he ought to anfwer pofitively, Yes
or No.

ir R, Clayton. Am not I upon my Oath; can
you tell me what [ canfay ? '

; Mr. Foues, Ay or No. Any honeft Man would
o i,

Sir Fr. Winn. All Witnefles anfwer their own
way, Don’t they?

Mr, Fones. Let him anfwer then his own way,

Mr. Au. Gen. My Lord, you know thereis a
Rule in Chancery, if it be a Matter within feven
Years, if it be not anfwer’d pofitively, it is no
Anfwer: If one acks a Witnefs a Queftion that
lies within a lictle while, if he will notanfwer either
affirmatively, or'negatively, he 1s no Witnefs.

L.C. 7. Ican’trell, Mr. Attorney.,

Mr, Fones. Will you anfwer or no, Sir Robert
Clayton, whether you commanded the Common
Sergeant to go and adjourn the Hallorno?

Sir R. Clayton. 1 don’t remember that I did,

Mr. Jones. Then I only ask you this further
Queftion, Whether Mr. Common Sergeant did not
tell you, that it was not his proper Bulinefs to do
it, and that unlefs you would lay exprefs Com-
mands upon him, and put the very Words 1n his
Mouth, he did defire to be excufed, and did he
not {tand chere? [ Pointing to the Bar.]

Sir R. Clayton. 1 have heard, Sir, what Mr, Com-
mon Sergeant did fay, and I cannotcharge my
Memory with it; but I have that Charity for
Mr. Common Sergeant, to believe there might be
Difcourfe to that Purpofe.

Sir Fr. Winn, Mr. Love, in all your Experi
ence, what do you remember ?

Mr, Williams. How long have you known
Guild-ba!l and Eleltions?

Mr. Lsve, 1 fuppofe, my Lord, thefe Gentle-
men don’t expect I (hould fay any thing that was
done that Day ; but, my Lord, all that I fuppole
you expect from me is, what I did obferve to be
the Practice of the City; to the beft of myRemeim-
brance, I fhall give youan Account. My Lord,
about 22 Years ago, I did obferve the Praftice to
be this; when 1 was call’d into this Office of
Sheriff, I took itasa thing for granted, that i was
the Sherifi*s Office to manage the Common Hall,
that I did, as my Lord Mayor’s was to have a
Sword borne before hims 1 have received 1t by
Tradition from.all before me, and my own Ex-
perience. My Lord, I remember when we came
to chufe Sheriffs upon Midfummer Day, after the
Lord Mayor and Aldermen had been there, my
Lord Mayor faid to me and my Brother Sheriff s
Gentlemen, look to your Office, Weaccordingly
went to it, and chofe two Sheriffs, one Gentleman

40 2 that
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that had been drank to by my Lord Mayor, 1
think it was Alderman but notwithftand-
ing that Drinking to him, we took no Notice of
that as a Ceremony, he was put in Nomination
among others, and being a Senior fitting Alder-
man, we returned him ; otherwile, my Lord, I
affure you I would not have returned him, not-
withftanding the Drinking. After once that the
Lord Mayor and Aldermen withdrew togo to the
Council-Chamber, they faid to us, Now, Gentle-
men, look to your Office.

Mr, Thompfon. What was your Office ?

Mr. Love, To chufe Sheriffs,

Mr, Thompfon. Did my Lord Mayor meddle
with the EleCtion, orleft it to the Shenffs ?

Mr. Love, Left it to the Sheriffs,

Mr. Williams, What was your Opinion, Sir,
was it in the Lord Mayor to take the Poll, or the
Sheriffs

Mr, Love. Truly, Sir, I am not a competent
Judge of whofe Right it was; but if my Lord
Mayor had gone about to meddle 1n it, I fhould
have prayed my Lord Mayor to meddlein his own

Office, and let me alone with mine.
Mr., A1t Gen. Yes, Mr. Love, you were then

the Tribunes of the People.

Sir Fr, Winn, Here are fome fay the Common
Sergeant and the Common Cryer have a Power,
nay, the whole Power of ordering the Hall during
the Eleftion. What is the Office of the Common

Sergeant there ?
Mr. Love. Truly, Sir, I look upon the Com-

mon Sergeant and the Common Cryer as Perfons
left to affift us, becaufe they could not put us to
the Trouble of crying Oyes ourfelves s and if any
Common Sergeant or Common Cryer had durft to
put a Queftion without my Direction, I would

have known whether he could or no.
Sir Fr. Winn, Mr. Lsve, Was it ever difcours’d

to you when you was Sherifl, or before, or fince,
that ever my Lord Mayor did interpofe before the

Eletion was over?
Mr, Love, Since I w. difcharged of being a

Magziftrate, I never wasata Common Hall fince.
I have fpent my Money for the City’s Service,
but never got a Peny by them 3 [ never heard,

that ever the Lord Mayor, tll thefe late Times,
interpofed, but that the Sheriffs managed the whole

Bufinefs of chufing Sherifts.

Mr, Att, Gen, Mr. Love, I defire to have a Word
with yous you fpeak of the T'tme of your Reign ;
I would afk you a plain Queftion, Was 1t betore

the King came in?
Mr. Love, It was that Year the King came in,

Mr, Azt Gen. Was you chofen before ?

Mr. Love, Yes, 1 was,
Mr., A1z, Gen. Do you remember an A& of Par-

liament in 48, thenin Force, of fhutting out my

Lord Mayor?
Mr. Serg, Fefferies. 1 would afk him a Queftion

or two, Hark you, Mr. Love, Let me afk you a

Queftion or two.
Mr, Love. Sir George, [ would give Mr, Attor-

ney an Anfwer,
L. C.¥. What would you make of it? If you
afk him of an A& of Parliament, it is fomething.
Mr, A1t Gen, Xou {peak of a Time when my
Lord Mayor had no more to do with icthan I had.
There was an Ordinance of Parliament, did you

never fee that ?
Mr. Love, To the beft of my Remembrance I

never faw itin my Life,

T'he Trial of T.Pilkington, andother:,
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Mr. 4t Gen. Nor heard of fuch a Thing »

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Hark you, Mr, Love, pefa
ceive you would have difputed with my Lorg
M:;.yor; who was the Lord Mayor that you pajk
of : |

Mpr, Love, Sir Thomas Allen,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Now I would defire to kpow
whether you remember the City before the Kipe
came In ? 2

Mr. Love, For a little while.

Mr, Serg. Yefferies. Do you remember any thing
of that Cuftom of the Lord Mayor’s Drinkino 1o
_Shéeriﬂ"s 3 was not that ufed before the King came
in

Mr. Love. A long time.

_ Mr. Serg. fefferies. 1t is well enough ;5 a long
time.

Mr. Williams, My Lord, we have feven or eight
more to the fame Purpofe, bur we are fatished
with thefe, Gentlemen: We will prove, if there
was any thing like a Riot, we will prove my Lord
Mayor, and thofe that were with him, were the
Authors of it,

L.C. 7. When Multitudes of People are gather'd
together upon a lawful Occafion, fuppofing that
they had a Right to be there, I do fay that in that,
cafe it would be much a Miugation of the Fine,
fo for this fame Riot 3 but on the other Side you
muft know, thatthefe Men that do it, it doth not
excufe them for ignorantia juris; isnot an Excofe.
Itistrue, if they had had a Jawful Occafion to con-
tinue to do ity but 1n truch they had not, that will
excule them 4 tanio, but non a tofo,

Mr. Holt. My Lord, Ibegto putin this Cafe s
there is a great deal of Difference where a Perfon
does claim a Right to himfelf, and does an extra-
vagant Aftion. Now, my Lord, thefe Perfons
did claim a Right to themf{elves to continue the
Common Hall, and that it was not in my Lord
Mayor’s Power toadjoarn it withoutthem: Now,
my Lord, they claimed this Right, if they ufed no
Violence, that is excufable. If I thould claim 2
Right to another Man’s Eftate, tho’ I have no Ti«
tle, and fay I have a Righet, and give it out in
Speeches, no Action lies againft me ; butif Ido an
extravagant Action, and fay another Man hath a
Title, there liesan Action againft me,

L. C. J. Now go to your Fact.
Sir Fr, Winn. My Lord, putra Pointtous, and

we need not call more Witnefles,
L.C. 7. I don’c fpeak to hinder you from cal-

ling your Witnefles,

Sir Fr, Winn. 1 put this Cafe, we undertake to
prove, that it was always locked upon, that it was
the Right of the Sherifis : Suppole, my Lord,
upon the Difpute it {hould be found, thatthe Opi-
nion of the Jury fhould be otherwife ; will this
turn to an illegal Act ?

L.C. 7. Call your Witnefles.

Mr. Hallop. T befeech your Lordfhip I may put
one Cafe in this Point; in a Point of Right, if
they have a probable Caunieto mfift upon jit. Sup-
pofe I fend forty Mentoa Wood, and take a Car
or 2 Team, if they be a competent Number to cut
down Wood, if we are miltaken in the Title, that
1sno Riot, Lambert puts the Cafe.

L.C.7. But whatif I had fent a great many
Men to cut down the whole Wond ?

Mr., Williams., We will call fome Witnefles that
willtake us off from the Riot thus, if fo be we can
excule ourfelves of the Diforder, and put it upon

my Lord Mayor, thea we are innocent.
Li C| ?l'
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L.C.7. Very well, if’ yoii do that;

Mr, ——— Mr: Sibley, Are you acquainted
with the Manner of the Election of Sheriffs ? How
lopg have you known it !

Mor. Sibley. Ihave been of the Livery ever fince
293 in all my Time, I {peak, Gentlemen, to the
belt of my Remembrance ; 1t hath been the Cuftom
in all my Time, except here of late, thatthe She-
rifts of Londen have had the Management of the

Elettion.
Mr, —— Did my Lord Mayor ever interpofe

till the Eletion was over ?
Mr. Sibley. I never knew my Lord Mayor in-

terpofe till lately.
Sirfr, Winn. Did youever hear my Lord Mayor
pretend to it nill of late ?

Mr. Sibley. No, my Lord.
Sir Fr. Winn, Did the Mayor ufe to be prefent

at any Ele&tion during the Election ?
Mr. Sibiey. I have been moft commonly there,
Sir Fr. Winn, But the Mayor 3 would the Mayor

be there ¢
Mr. Sibley. ‘The Mayor and Aldermen went off

the Bench.
Sir Fr. Wins. Who managed the Elecions ?
Mr, §ibley. The Sheriffs,
Sir Fr, Winn. Were the Common Sergeant and

the Common Cryer there ?

Mr. Sibley. The Common Sergeant and the Com.
mon Cryer are always there.

L. C. 7.1 pray thus; you have known the City,
it feems, a great while, I would afk you this: Pray
who did call the Aflembly that was to chufe the
Sheriffs, did the Sheriffs, or the Loord Mayor?

Mr. Sibley. We commonly received the Tickets
by the Officers of the Companies.

L. C. 7. Did the Officersof the Companies fum-
mon the Aflembly? Hark you, pray, Str, recol-
le€t yourfelf 5 Do you take i, that the Officers,
the Beadles it may be, of the feveral Companies,
did they fummon the Livery-men, and {o a Com-
mon Hall was call’d together ; was 1t {o in your
Time ¢

Mr, Sibley. It hath been commonly fo 5 we have
received Tickets fromthe Beadle of the Company.

L. C. 7. And my Lord Mayor had nothing to
do with it then ?

Mr. Sibley., What Order the Mafters and War-
dens had from my Lord Mayor, I never inquired

into that.
L.C. 7. When the Hall was diffolved, who or-

dered Proclamation to be made, the Shenffs or the

Lord Mayor ?
Mr, Sibley. My Lord Mayor hath not ufed tobe

there.,

Mr, Thompfou, When they had done, they went
away. [He won’t trouble your Lord(hip.

L. C. F}. Pray, had my Lord any hand 1n Sum-
moning ; did he direct the Summoning of them?

Mr. Sibley. It is more than I know.

L.C. J. You bring a Witnefs that knows no-
thing of the Matter,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Mir, Deputy Sibley. Give me
Leave to afk Mr, Sibley a Queltion or two : I (hall
fet him to-rights prefently, Mr. Sibley, if T be not
miftaken, youare one of the Company of Tallow-
Chandlers, and you have been Mafter of the Com-
pany, and you have been Warden of the Com-
pany. You very well know what Directions are
given to the Beadle are generally by the Mafter
or Wardens: Pray, upon your Oath, when you
were Mafter or Warden, was there ever any Pre-

]

for a Riot.
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cept fent o you to fummona Common Hall ?

Mr. Sibley. Indeed I don’t remember that, Sir.

Mr. Thompfon. If your Lordfhip pleafe, we have
done with our Evidence 5 I would beg your Lord-
thip’s Opinion in it. N

Sir Fr, Winn. We do admit my Lord Mayor
fummons the Court.

L;C.¥. But you bring a Witnefs that knows
nothing in the World of it, but yet you would
have it taken for Gofpel, that the Sheriffs had all
the Management before thac time forty Years to-
gether, till now very lately. But when he comes
to be alked, how is this Affembly or Common Hall
call’d together, alas! he knows no more of that

than one in Ulopia,
Mr. Thompfon. My Lord, we have feveral other

Wiinefles, but we will call no more. |
Mr. A1, Gen, If you have no more, we will call

two or three more.

Mr., Thompfon, We have fome to prove, that my
Lord Grey came to fpeak with Sir #illiam Gulfton,
and went away again; and we defire to call Sir
Thomas Armfirong. |

Sir Fr. Winn. My Lord, if your Lordfhip
pleafes, thus, there will be it feems fome particular
Defences made. Your Lordfhip hath heard cheir
Evidence, and what we have faid'; we defire to call
two or three Witnefles to another Head. Your
Lordfhip hath heard there was fome Rudenefs by
fome of the People, but who they were itdoth not
appear. We will call two or three Witnefles of the
Behaviour of thofe Men and Company that came
with my Lord Mayor; that whatloever Difturb-
ance was made, they were the chief Men that
made the Difturbance, and my Lord Mayor could

not help it, nor we neither,
L. C. F. Sir Francis, I believe thofe Men that

would not have God fave the King, my Lord Mayor
could not hinder them 5 but will youundcriake to
prove, that thofe that came with my Lord Mayor,

that they were the Men 2

Sir Fr.lWinn, They were with them, my Lord,

Mr, Serg, Fefferies. They were with them that
cry’d, God blefs the Protefiant Sherifs.

Mr, Sibley. My Lord, I defire to explain myfclf
to whac I faid ; it is feveral Years ago fince 1 was

Matfter of the Company 5 I do not remember, but
I believe the Summons wasdireCted from my Lord

Mayor.
Mr. Freak, Mr, Winftanley, what Account can

you give to my Lord and the Jury?

M. Winflanley, 1 have lived near the Hall, and
I often came in, but I wasnota Livery-man upon
that Poll that was between Mr. Kiffen and Sir Koa
bert Clayton 5 the Sheriffs managed 1t,

Mr, Freak. Who managed it ¢

Mr. Winftanley. The Sheriffs.

Mr. Freak. Who declared ?

Mr, Winftanley. The Sheriffs.

Mr. Ereak. Did the Mayor come down to de-
clare the Election ? _

Mr. Winftanley. The Mayor came down atcer
the Poll, but the Sheriffs took the Poll.

Mr. Freak. Who was then Mayor ¢ ‘

M. Winflanley. Siv James Edwards was Sheriff,

and Sir Jobn Smith.
Mr. Freak. Who was Mayor ¢ |
Mr. Serg. Fefferies. It was Sir amuel Starling.,

Mr. Freak. Who put the Queflion upon the

Huflings ¢
Mr, #inflanley, I can’t tell,

Mr., Fff’ﬂki
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Mr. Freak. What did you lcar the Sheriffs fay,
or {ee them do? -

Mr. Winftanley. The Sheriffs prefently granted
a Poll, and parted oneto one Door, and the other
to t'other. |

Mr. Freak. And who took the Poll? -

Mr. Winftanley. The Sheriffs took it.

Mr. Freak. Who declared the Eletion?

Mr. Iinftanley. The Sheriffs.

Mr. Freak. Who were Sherifts then !

Mr. Winftanley. Sir Fames Edwards, and Sir
Fobu Smith.

Mr. Sere. Fefferies. Mr. Winftanley, 1would ask
you this Queftion: Do youtake 1t upon your Oath,
that the Sheriffs declared the Eleétion ?

Me. IFinflanley, 1 declare upon my Oath, that
the Sheriffs took the Poll.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies.  Mr. Winflanley, you may
ouefs pretty well what 1 mean by this.  Firlt of
all, Task you, Did the Sheriffs put the Quettion?

Mr. Vinflanley.  The Sheriffs took the Poll,
Sir.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Nay, anfwer my Queftion:
Did the Sherifis put the Queftion, or did any body
elfe?

Mr. nftanley, Truly, Sir, 1 have forgot 5 you
were there.

Mr. Serg, Fefferizs. Tknow I was, Sir: Iknow
very well: I ask you upon your Oath, who was
i that declared the Eleftion afterwards, upon
your Oath?

Mr. Winflanlzy, Truly, Sir George, Idon’t re-
member,

Mr, Serg. Fefferics, Mr, IWinflanl:y, one went
out at one Door, youfay ; and t’other went outat
t’other, you fay ; now I fay, Who took Notice,
and told the Names of thofe that went out at one
Door and t’other ?

Mr. inflanley. The two Sherifts,

Mr. Serg, Fefferics, Whoelfe ?

My, Winftaniey. 1 can'e tell,

Mr. Sere. Fefferics, Do you remember me there
at the areat Dozr, when they poll’d and went out ?
Do you remember whe :uld them ?

Nir, Winftanlcy, No, truly.

Mr, Serg, Feffeiics, Pray, do you remember
when one Mr. Breome, a Wax-chandler, was
cholen Ale-conner:?

Mr, Winffanley., 1 was in the Halls but I do
not charge my Memory with it.

Mr. 8ol Gen, Hark you, Mr. /P mftanley, Who
is it grants the Poll when it isdemanded ?

Mr. [Fiaflailey, 1 do remember very well, Sir
Gesvge Fefferies was in the Hall 3 they demanded
a Poll, and fo went out,

M. Sof, Gen. Who granted 1?2

Nr. Iinfiaier. The two Sheriffs.

Nir, Scra, Fefferies. Lwill put youa Cafe nearer
home, Mr. I7:nflanley : You remember when Sir
Thsmas Playeir was cholen Chamberlain, when the
Quettion was put, Who fhould be Chamberlain,
Lerween him and a Gentleman 1 {ee not far from
me; Who, do you remember, managed the Poll
then?

M. Tinfano., There was no Need, Sir Genrge,

L., C. j VWhat do you mean to do with chefe
little Witneffes? You call Witnefles that know
cothing of the Matter, or nothing to the Purpofe,

Mr, Serg. Fefferics. My Lord, let me ask him
but one Queition more: I know he hath been a
very great Lvidence in this Cafe s I remember
when that Gentleman was in for Bridge-mafter
Who was the Poll demanded of ac that Time

Mr. Iinflanley, ‘Trily, Sir, I think i was
manded of the C'}:Jurt. ' o s de

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Of the Court ? :

Mr, Winftanley. Ufually upon other Days, m
Lord Mayor; and the Court come downz bu{
upon Midjummer Day they go up.

Mr. Serg. Jefferies. But 1 ask you, of whom
the Poll was demanded at that Time?

Mr, Winftanley. 1don’t remember it, 1| aflure
you,

L.C, . Youtold usthat Point would be grant-
ed, and you would not-ftand upon it.

Mr. illiams, My Lord, where there are (5
many Men, there may be many Minds: | would
have your Lordfhip and the Jury hear them,

Mr, Fones. "The Government is concerned, My,
IWilliqns.

Mr. Serg. fefferies, Thisis nota Matter of Mirth
']l affure you 3 it reaches the Government.

Mr. Williams. My Lord Mayor hath the
Power of adjourning the Hall, but nor till the
Bufinefs is done,

Mr. Thompfon. My Lord, I would
putyoua Cafe™— Sure, Mr. Fones, ™ Here 3. Joass
I ought to be heard. If my Lord 5, 7 ™
Mayor hath Power to call a Com-
mon Hall, he hath not co adjourn it before the
Bufinefs 1s done,

L. C.F. It a Writ come to the Sheriffs to chufe
Parliament-men, then the Sheriffs have ity bur
this js my Lord Mayor’s Office, he hath Power
to diffolve and adjourn.

Mr. Thompjon. 1 {peak to this Cafe, my Lord ;
I will thew your Lordfhip an Inftance where it
cannot be done. My Lord Mayor hath Power to
call here, and he hath Power to diffolve, fay they:
My Lord, it cannot be, with Submiffion, in all
Cafes. e hath Power to call an Affembly when
there 1s a Mayor to be chofen; and the Citizens
havea Privilege tomove their Mayor, or continue
him: Now if it were in the Power of the Mayor,
and there fhould happen a Queftion, Who they
were ? For, ina great Number of Ele€tors, if it
were in his Power to adjourn from time to time,
he muft continue Mayor.

L.C.7. Itis plain he may do it forall your
Objection. You know it was agreed by all Sides,
that Sir Sammel Starling, the Lord Mayor, had
well diffelved the Affembly, that is, in peincof
Law, and they could not fay the Affembly was in
Being ; yet afterwards there wasan Aétion brought
againft him; and there they laid, how that mali-
cioitfly, and to the Intent that he who was chofen
into the Place of Bridge-Matfter, to which he was
duly eleCted, fhould be fet afide, he goes and dif-
folves the Aflembly, and denied to grant him a
Poll, which they ought to have had; yet for all
that the Affembly was well diffolved,

] Id\/Ir. Serg. fefferies. Conclude, Gentlemen, con-
clude.

Mr. Thompfon.  ‘That which I have to fay is a
Point of Law,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Siv Fro Wingiugten, if you
defign to conclude, I tell you beforehand, I would
not interrupt you ; we will call a Witnels or two.

Sir Fr. I¥imn, My Lord, becanfe we would
make an End, I will call two of thofe Men that
came with my Lord Mayor, to thew that if there
was any Rudenefs, thofe very People that came
with my Lord Mayor, were the Caufe of it.

Mr. Sol. Gen.  That they that came with my
Lord Mayor, caufed them to flay after my Lord
was gone, M.
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Mr. Thompfon. Mr. Fackfon, gray can you re-
member, whether any of the Defendants here,
were concern’d inany Affrontto my Lord Mayor,
or who it was that my Lord Mayor recetved an
Affront from¢

Mr. Fackipn. 1did oblerve, my Lord, as he
went out of the Hall, I took my Back and fer it
acainft the Crowd, and had my Face rowards my
Lord Mayor ; and I was crowded fo, that I
could fearce fee mylelf one way or other, buc
aot off the Steps ar laft, and went home with
my Lord Mayor.

Mr. Thempjon. Can you fay whe ftruck off che
Flac?

Mr. 8ol Gen. Where do you live, pray?

Mr. Fackon, I live at Charing-crofs.

Mr. Sof. Genr. With whom ?

Mr. Fackfon. With myfelf, Si.

Sir Fr. I¥ian. Whatis your Name?

Mr. Sucg. Jefferies. Don’t you know the Sword-
hearer of Briflol, Sic Francis ¢

Mr. Thomp on. Mr. Roee, were you here when
my Lord Mayor was crowded ? Who oficred any
Afiront?

Vir, i3liams. Pray will you give my Lord and
the Jury an Accountof what you heard, and where
the DiHorder began ¢

Mr. Roe. My Lord, I was in Cheapfide, and I
heard a great Noife of huzzaing, and a terrible
Noife indeed 3 and I mer with a Fellow running,
my Lord, and I {topr the Fellow: What 1s the
Matter? Nothing, faid he, bur anold Fellow riding
Skimmington and Skeleton 5 and 1n the Street I faw a
matrer of a Hundred with their Hars upon Sticks,
crying, Damn the Whigs; faid 1, Gentlemen,
[77a8’s the Matter ? {aid they, The Work is done
to flop the Poll 5 and that is all.

L. C. ¥. Hark you, Wereyou in Guid-ball ?

Mr. Koe. 1 followed them a lttle Way down
the Street.

L. C.¥. Hark you, Did you fer my Lord
Mayor’s Hat down upon the Ground ; and was
he hike to be thrown down; did you fee that?

Mr. Xoz. No, I faw nothing of that; T heard
fich a Notle, I was glad I had got rid of them.

Mr, #dliams. My Lord, we have no more to
{ay In the general 3 all thar I have to fay now is
for my Lord Grey. The Evidence againlt my
Lord Grev, was, that he was here: Now, my
Lord, we have Witnefles more particujarly to de-
fend my Lord Grey.

Mr. Att. Gen, We fhall call a Witnefs or two
to clear what that Gentleman faid when Sir Robers
Clayton was Mayor.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Pray, Gentlemen, let us
have a lictle Patience. Pray, my Lord, if your
Lordfhip pleafe —Here is fuch a horrid Noife —
Upon all the Matter, I don’t perceive, but Sir
Robert Glayton does himfelf believe Proclama-
tion was made by him; he does believe the Ad-
Journment was made by him; but as to the Ad-
journment to Afonday, he is not certain of that.
But if your Lordfhip pleafes, we have here both
the Sheriffs, Sir Fonathan Raymond, and Sir Siinon
Lewis, that will fhew the Court whether there was
any fuch thing,

Mr, As?, Gen. Before Bethel came out of the
North, no Sheriff ever pretended to it.

Mr. Serg. Jefferies. Pray, Sir Simon Lewis, 1 de-
fire you would fatisfy my Lord and the Jury con-
cerning the Adjournment when you went to the

Scffions Iloufe in the O/ Baily: Did you
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order the Adjournment of the Poll, or my Lord
Mayor ?

Sir Simon Lewis, We came and waited upon my
Liord Mayor here, and told him they demanded
a Poll withour ; we took his Diretions, and my
Lord Mayor did adjourn the Court, by reafon that
the Aflallinators of Arnald were to be try’d; and
by reafon of that it was adjourn’d till Monday, and
my Lord Mayor and the Aldermen went chither ;
but indeed we were left as Prifoners, and I receiv’d
a Blow on my Breaft.

Mr. A1t Gen, Sir Jonathan Raymond, Did you
pretend to have the Power then of adjourning the
Court?

Sir Joun, Raymond. My Lord did adjourn the
Courr becaufe of that Trial, and then afterwards
we went upon the Poll; we were feveral Days
upon it: We only appointed from Day to Day
till we had made an End ; and when we had made
an Find, we declared 1t to my Lord Mayor and
the Court of Aldermen; and my Lord Mayor
and the Court of Aldermen came upon the Hafl-
s, and declared who it fell upon.

Mr. dit. Gen. Sir fames Smith, When you were
Sheriff, did you pretend to have any fuch Power?

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Upon your Oath, Did you
pretend to have a Power of adjourning Common
Halls ?

Sir . Smith. No, Sir; we were Sheriffs imme-
diately after Sir Robert Clayton 3 1 never heard 1t
queftioned buc my Lord Mayor had the Right
of it.

Sir EFr. Winn. Sir Jonathan Raymond, 1 think
you fay the Sheriffs did adjourn from Day to Day
at that Time ¢

Sir 7. Raymond. We could not make an End of
Polling ; and we did appoint from Day to Day
till we had made an End of Polling,.

Mr. Com, Serg. My Lord, I willgive your Lord«
thip an Account of that whole Day’s Proceedings :
We came to the Hall, and after Mr. Recorder,
Sir George Fefferies had attempted to Ipeak to the
Hall, (for they were in fuch a Tumult they would
not fuffer him to fpeak) my Lord Mayor with-
drew : There was a very great Clamour and Noife 5
but at laft the Queftion was put; and I came up
with the Sherifis hither, and acquainted my Lord,
that Mr. Betheland Alderman Cornifh had the moft
Hands, and that there was a Poll demanded be-
rween Mr. Box and Mr, Nicholfon, and Mr. Bethel
and Mr. Cernifh ; then the Difpute lay as between
Box and Nicholfon, and Alderman Cornifh and
Mr. Bethel : 1 acquainted my Lord Mayor that
was, Sir Robert Clayton, that Mr. Recerder faid he
would not go down to make Declaration, they
would not hear him : Upon that Sir  sbert Clayton
took a Paper and gave it to me, with thefe very
Words: {Itis the greateft Tumule I was ever In
all my Life, and Ihave fome Reafon to rcme_mber
it.] Pry’thee, fays he, do you make Declaracion to
them 3 for if they will hear any body, they will hear
thee : Sir, fays I, becaufe it is not the Duty of my
Office, I defire your particular Direction: Then,
fays he, tell them I mutt adjourn it till Monday,
becaufe I muft go to the Old Baily, to try the
Afafinates of Arrold : Whereupon the Hall was
adjourn’d, and ina greac Tumult, and my Lord
Mayor attempting to go out, he was beat back
twice or three times ; he {pake fomething to them,
and they went away, leaving me and the Sherifls
upon the Huflings, and there they kept us Prifoners
tll fix or fzven o Clock at Night.  On Monday,

' when
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when we came to Poll again by his Diretion, 1
went to his Houfe, and he gave me Diretion to go
with the Sheriffs to adjourn it3 afterwards there
was a Courc of Aldermen purpofely called, and,
upon their Direétion, I took the Poll and kept i,
and every Adjournment was made by his particular
Direction to me.

Sir Robert Clayton. Gentlemen, I do defire I may
explain myfelf, becaufe I was imperfectly heard :
Some Part of the Story that Mr, Common Sergeant
does fay, I do remember, and will tell you whatl
do remember of it, I remember the coming up,
and I remember, that Mr. Recorder was not willing
to go down, there was fuch a Hubbub; I remember
that very well, The particular Words I faid to
him, I cannot charge my Memory with 5 we had
difcourfed. I remember the Adjournment, and we
difcours’d of the Adjournment below 5 we made
Proclamation, but the Noife was {fo great they
could not hear ; and upon my attempting to go
out, I was beaten back twice or thrice, and then
we were fain to let them know the Bufinefs we
went about as well as we could, and then they let
me go, and 1 left the Sherifis with them to agree
of the Manner and Methods of Polling. There
were feveral Adjournments made afterwards; I
can’t charge mylelf with it: I nught be particu-

larly confulted ; but for the particular Times of

Adjournment, I did not think myfelf concerned
1n point of Reputation; if I thought I had been
blameable, I thould have concerned myfelf to have
given more particular Directions.

Mr, Thompfen. 1f your Lordfhip pleafe, I have
but this; admitcing the Right to be in the Lord
Mayor ~——

L. C. 7. Do you make a Doubt of it now ?

Mr. Thompfon. Admitting it, thofe Gentlemen
that came to continue the Poll, it 15 3 Queftion
whether they can be guilty of the Riot or not.

 Mr, W/—— Thereare fome three or four of the
Defendants that havea particular Cafe ; that ftands
by themfelvess and it cfts upon this Point, Whe-
ther my Lord Mayor hath this Power or not.  For
fo much of the Evidence as concerns any Noife
or Hifling, or any thing of that, Thatrelates to
the Time of Adjournment; for it was done at the
Time of the Adjournment. As for Mr. Cornif,
Mr. Geodenongh, my Lord Grey, and one or two
more, they did not come till within {fome three
Hours after that, fo that they cannot be engaged
in the Noife, or That,

L. C.¥. Itisnomatter, they came timeenough,

Mr. Wiliiams. We have done, my Lord, with
the general Evidence ; we have fomething to fay
mn Defence of my Lord Grey; all the Lvidence
againft my Lord Grey 1s- this, that he was here
about Seven a Clock at Night, For that, Gentle-
men, we fay this 3 that my Lord Grey had fome
Bufinefs here, and my Lord’s Bufinefs was this 3
my Lord Grey was here about the Sale of a Ma-
nor in Effex with Sir W7illiam Gulffon 5 my Liord,
they had appointed this very Day for that Bufinefs,
1t was my Lord’s Intereft mightily to purfue it,
and Sir William happened to be at Sir Thomas Play-
er’s, and knowing this to be an Elettion-day, my
Lord dined that Day at an Eating-houfe in the
Hay-Market, and afterwardscame to Pefer’s Colfee-
Houfe in Covent-Garden, and ftaid chere wll be-
tween Four and Five a Clock in the Afternoon,
when he thought the Heat would be over ; and
then he came to make Inquiry after Sir #illiam,

I

and took up in Bruex’s Coffee-houfe about Five
or Six a Clock s there he continued quiet In the
Hounfe wull all the Noife was over ; then he fene
to inquire for Sir Zilliam: Gulffon, and hearing he
was at Sir Thomas Player’s, he and Sir William
went to a Tavern, and there they treated, apd
fintfhed the Affair, My Lord, we will prove i,
Call Mr, Ireton.

Mr. Ireton, My Lord, I know that at this very
Time my Lord Grey was treating with Siv #illian
Gulfion about the Manor of Corsfieid in Effix, and
my Lord Greyana Sir William Gulffon had Appoing-
ed to meet that Nightat Cother End of the Town,
if the Poll were ended. In the Evening I met my
Lord Grey, who told me he had been with Sir 757,..
liam Gulfton in London, and had difpatch’d (he

Bufinefs,
L. C. }. Did my Lord tell you fo?

y Lord Grey. He treated for me, my Lord, with
1.

L.C.J. Pray, for God’s-fake, you muft Jay
your Matter a little clofer together 3 if he was g
treat about the Purchafe of a Manor, was there
no convenient Place for Company to treatr aboyg
it, but while they were cafting up the Poll-books
with the Sherifisand Goodenongh ¢ Was that Place
hie?

Mr. Hoit. My ILord had appointed to fpeak
with Sir 7Villiam Gulffon that Day in Covent-Gay-

deir, if the Poil had been over 3 bur nor finding

him there, came into the City,
Lord Grey, ‘That Gentleman went between Sir

William Gulffon and 1.
L. C.J. Where were you to meet ?
Lord Grey. At the Ko Tavern in Cooept-

Garden,

L.C, 7. What made you here then?

Lord Grey. Not finding him there, [ came hj-
ther, and {pake with Sir 2#%am Guljlon in that
very Room. ‘The Poll was over, and the Com-
pany gone,

Mr. Wlliams. Mr. Ireton, Do you know there
was any Treaty between my L.ord Grey and Sip
William Gulfton abour the Sale of any Land 2

Mz, freton, Yes, Sir, { do.

Mr. Williams. When was that Treary 2

Mr, Ireton. Abouta T welve-month fince:

Mr, Wiiliams., Do you know they had any Dif-
courfe about it ?

Mr, Ireton, Stry they had : I rhink ic was Aid-
Jummer-day, the Day the Eleftion of Sheriffs was.

Mr. Williams. Were they about that Treaty

that Day ¢
Mz, freton. That Day, my Lord.

Mr, Williams. Where was the Treaty ?

Mr. Ireton. In Sir Thomas Player’s Houlfe,

Mr. Williams. What Time of the Day ?

Mr. Treton, About Twelve a Clock.

Mr. Pilliams, Where went my Lord afterwards?

Mr. Ireton. My Lord went to Dinner, as hetold
me, in the Hay-Market.

Mr, Williams. Did you know of any Appoint-
mene to meet agan ¢

Mr, Ireton, 1 was informed fo, but cannot pofi-
tively tell,

Mr. Williams. Sir Thomas Armfivong, Pray, Sir,
will you givean Account where my Lord was that
Day ? |
Sir Thomas Armftrong. I came upthis Way about
Six a Clock, and was in a Coffec-houfe by Guild-

ball,
Mg, Wil
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M. Williams, Do you know any thing abouc
that Treaty ?

Sir Tho, Armfirong. 1 faw them together that
Night, Ifaw them together at Sir Thomas Player’s
about Twelve o’Clock, and again at Eight.

Mr. Williams. Do you know any thing of treat-
ing about this Land in Effex 2

Sir Tho, Armfirong. No, I do not.

Mr. Ait. Gen, You did not fee them in the
Chamber?

Sir Tho. Armftrong. Does any body fay I did?

Lord Grey. My Liord, I will give you an Ac-
count of it,

Mr, Williams. My Lord, Mr. Ireton tells you
this ; my Lord Grey and Sir William Gulfton were
in Treaty about buying thefe Lands that very
Morning together; fays Sir Thomas Armftrong,
about Noon ; afterwards my Lord went to the
Hlay-Market, and ftaid there till Evening, and my
Lord and Sir William were together again at Night,
My Lord, this Cafe will depend vupon your Lord-
fhip’s Dire&ions. It is very plain, that my Lord
Mayor of London hath the fummoning the Com-
smon Hall, and when the Bufinefs is done he hath
the diicharging them. My Lord, if it be true
what Mr, Love and others fay, they tell you, that
in all their Time, their Opinion is fo, that it be-
longeth to the Sheriffs, and not to the Lord Mayor;
what may be the Confequence, lies in your Lord-
fhip’s Opinion. Now for the Confequence of i,
if it were no more than a Matter of Opinion and
Right, and the Sheriffs infift upon it: Are thefe
Defendants and the Sheritfs guilty of thefe Out-
rages ? For there is nothing proved upon them,
This don’t make them guilty of any thing more
than a bare continuing the Poll. Therefore, my
Lord, I muft fubmit to your Direction, how far the
Jury will find us, or any of us, guilty of a Riot
in this Cafe.

Sir Fr, Wi, My Lord, we agree they did con-
tinve the Poll, and the Defendants did appre-
hend it was Jawful for them fo to do; 1f the Jury
fhould think they did mifapprehend what was the
antient Ufage of the City ; if your Lordfhip fhould
be of Opinion, that by Law the Lord Mayor ought
to do it ; yet I do fay, it being fo probable a Cafe,
their infifting upon 1t will not make it a Riot:
Your Lordfhip will be pleafed, I hope, to take
notice of ir, if they find the Mayor hath Power
to adjourn it.

Mr. Wallop. I humbly conceive, that the Infor-
mation does in truch deftroy itfelf, for it is agreed
an al] Hands, as the Information fets forth, that
they came together upon very lawful Occafions;
and the Information fets forth, that by Colour of
their Office they did as if they were lawfully affem-
bled. Now, my Lord, they have overthrown the
Definition of a Riot, for a Riot is, when three or
more are come together to do an unlawful Aé,
and they do it. So that it is a very hard matter
to make this a Riot.

L. C. ¥. Does not this Matter appear upon Re-
cord {

Mr. [olt. No, no, my Lord, it don’t,

Mr. Wallop. If Men do lawfully meet together,
if by chance they fall together by the Ears, and
commit many Mildemeanours, this can never be a
Riot. But, fay they, here was an Adjournment,
a Command by my Lord Mayor to adjourn the
Court, and they continue after Adjournment:
Now, my Lord, the Quettion 15, Whether he had
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Power to adjoutn it or no, the Citizens did infift
upon 1t, that he had no Power. Now, Gentlemen
of the Jury, if you find in your Confcience, that
the Citizens had a probable Caufe, and they infift
upon it, this can never be a Rio.

Mr. Holt, It doth appear that they were lawfully
aflembled together. And for the throwing off my
Lord Mayor’s Hat, fuppofe that my Lord Mayor
hath a Power for to adjourn the Court, yet, my
Lord, it muft be agteed, that thofe that come thi-
ther muft have a convenient Time to depart s for
my Lord Mayor, as foon as ever he had adjourn’d
the Court, he went away, and all the Hall could
not go of a fudden, but muft have a convenient
Time to go ; fome followed him immediately, and
the other Gentlemen that ftaid behind, not at all
confenting to that rude Action about my Lord
Mayor, cannot be guilty, for there is no Proof
of any Milcarriage committed by any of thefe De-
fendants 5 it may be there was fome Difcourfe con-
cerning the Power of my Lord Mayor, I only
mind your Lordfhip of Sir Robert Atkins’s Cafe, a
late Cafe in the King’s-Bench 3 there can be no Af-
fembly to choofe an Alderman, as in thar Cafe,
unlefs the Mayor was there; the Aflembly was
held, and yet, Gentlemen, becaufe it was not done
in a tumultuous manner, but with a cood Intent,
it was held, that Sir Rebert Atkins was not guilty of
a Riot. There muft be an evil Incention 1o do
fome Mifchief.

Mr., —— Turner brought his A&ion againft Sir
Samuel Starling for diffolving the Hall: And, my
Lord, that being the Cafe of the Ele&ion of z
Bridge-mafter, {urely there is a parallel Reafon for
the Sheriffs. '

L.C.¥. That Cafe is againft them,

Mr, —— No, my Lord.

L.C. 7. There the Lord Mayor hath a Power
by Law to diffolve the Aflembly, tho’ in truth he
thould not have done it. i

Mr, Sol. Gen. 'The Action was brought for deny-
ing a Poll, my Lord.

Mr, Thompfon. It 1s laid in that Declaration, that
it is the Cuftom of the City, that my Lord Mayor
cannot diffolve.

Mr. Ait. Gen. May 1t pleafe your
Lordfhip, and youGentlemen of the  * 72 Counet
Jury, you have now heard all the =
Lividence ¥

L. C. ¥. Gentlemen, you fhall not over-rule me
{o : Becaufe I am willing to hear every body,there-
fore you impofe upon me, You fhall have Law,
by the Grace of God, as far as I am able.

Mr., Ait. Gen, We have now done with the Evi-
dence on both Sides, and you do now {ee the Right
of the Lord Mayor, notwithftandinz all the vul-
gar and popular Difcourfes is afferted 5 it appears
now upon full Evidence, they themfelves do not
contradict it, that my Lord Mayor is the fupreme
Magftrate of this City, both for calling all your
Affemblies, and for diffolving them ; they won’t
pretend againft this ; but indeed they make a Que-
{tion whether my Lord Mayor can adjourn or no.
Neceflity of Affairs requires 1t fometimes, if there
be fuch a Tumule, fuch an Interruption, that they
cannot proceed orderly; or if the Matter be fo
long that they can’t determine it in one Day,
there is 2 Neceflity that there muft be an Adjourn-
ment to another Time ; 2nd they give you no In-
ftances, Gentlemen, that ever the Sheriffs in any
Agedid atcempt 1t, never any Sheriff madean Ad.
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journment of his own Accord.. Mr. Love, he o1ves
no Inftance of an Adjournment, he only tells you
of his Supremacy at that time when my Lord
Mayor had nothing to do withit; and, Gentlemen,
at that time you muft remember when he was
eledted, the Law was otherwile when Mr. Love
was elected 5 then the Sherifts were theT'ribunes of
the People, and they had fhut my Lord Mayor
quite out of their Common Hall, and declared, that
he had no Power to diffolve or adjourn them, The
next Inftance is that of Sir Robert Clayton’s, and
how do they make that out? Sir Roebert Clayton
{wears only upon his own Memory, and what is
that? He remembers juft nothing, He does think
the Common Sergeant does fpeak Truth in fome
Things, but he can’t remember other Things.
But we prove not only an Adjournment from Sa-
turday vo Monday, but other Adjournments by fpe-
cial Diretion from Sir Robest Clayton. So that
whatever Mr. Lsve did fanfy of the Authority of
Sheriffs, to tell my Lord Mayor he had nothing
to do therewith ; yet that my Lord Mayor is cer-
tainly the Chief Magiftrate, we have proved all
along to this prelent Time, till within thefe two
or three Years, and whenever there was an Ad-
journment, we have proved it to you, that it
was by my Lord Mayor. So thatit is nothing
like the Cafe, put by the Gentlemen on the other
Side ; there was never any Shadow of Pretence
for Right.  Whoever knows Londsn, muft know
the Sherifis of Londow are not Officers of this Cor-
poration as Sheriffs, but they are the King’s Of-
ficers of the County, granted to be chofen by the
Sheriffs: They are in their particular Cafes Judges,
for chooling Parliament-men, but in no Corpora-
tion Act whatloever: So that, Gentlemen, you
{ee there 15 no Pretence for that: Betadmit there
were, what is it like the Cife when a Man lays
Claim to a Wood, and he fends three or four Per-
fons, or half a dozen Perfons to cut it down?
Yet, Mr. Wallop, notwithftanding your Authority,
tho’ that be not a Riot, it 1s a Rout, where you
will fend fuch a Number to raife Terror in the
King’s People, and they will continue together
after they are commanded to depart by a Magi-
firate, But it is a different thing where Men will
concern them{clves in aMatter of publick Govern-
ment, as if any Man fhould pretend he hath the

King’s Commiflion to take your Lordlhip oft the

Bench. N
So that here is quite a different thing s this re-

lates immediately to the Government; here the
publick Peace of the City is in Danger, and if my
Lord Mayor had been a Perfon of great Spiric,
and had prefently raifed others to have {upprefs’d
this Riot, then the City had been in a fine Condi-
tion, by thefe People that would have No God blefs
the King, but God blefs the Shertffs, There 1s no
Pretenceof Right can juftify fuch a thing, Now,
my Lord, for a Riot, this muft be acknowledged
to be 3 for many to meet together to do an unlaw-
ful thing, 1s a Riot.

M. IVallop. And do 1t.

Mr. A, Gen. And do it, I put in that too, Sir.
The Meeting here is unlawful, and 1t 15 as certain
that my Lord Mayor hath Power to adjourn, that
is a Confequence of Law, if the Adjournment be
neceffary, and he is the only Judge of Adjourn-
ment; and when he hath adjourn’d, I do fay the
continuing Perfons together to do that, which if
they had {ummon’d them to do, had been unlaw-

ful, is as much an valawful thing, and a Riot, ag
that. I would fain know, if the Sheriffs had fum-
mon’d all the Citizens together to meet to choofe
Sheriffs, or any others, would any Man queftion
buat this is an unlawful A&, a Subverlion of the
antient Government of the City, the ufurping an
Authority in the City contrary to the King’s Grant
and the Charter? And after they are adjourn’d,
if they will make Proclamation, and order the Peo.
ple to ftay, and go on with the Poll, is not that
the fame thing in point of Law? Suyrely ne Man
almoft of common Senfe but will fay, it is thefame
thing. In the Cafe that Mr. Wallop puts, if there
be any Diforders committed, precedent to the [Via.
giftrate’s diffolving the Society; that will not
amount to a Riot; butif the Magiftrates comes
and makes Proclamation for them to depart, and
they ftay after, it makes a Riot ; if they continue
ftill together, it is a Rout and an unlawful Aflems
bly. Butthey fay there is no Proof, that thefe
Gentlemen, that are in the Information, are guilty
of the Riot ; they are all Parties to the Riot, the
very being there, and giving Countenance to it, is
an unlawful thing. Pray, Gentlemen, if Ten Men
fhould go to rob a Houfe, and one ftands oif at a
Diftance, is not the Tenth Man gutlty of the Bur-
glary ? If there be as many Perfons together, and
Three only do an unlawful A&, and the others
oive Protection, for Number is always a Protec-
tion, are not all thefe Gentlemen guilty? And
therefore, Gentlemen, it 1s hoped you will fectle
the City by deftroying this Pretence, which hath
been futtering in the Air, but hath no Ground
for it.

L.C.J. Gentlemen of the Jury, this is an In-
formation againft {everal, for a Riot, and it fets
forth,that there was a Common Hail that was call’d
by the Lord Mayor for chooling feveral Officers,
and that afterwards the Lord Mayor did diflfolve
that Aflembly, and yet notwithftanding the De-
fendants (fo many as by-and-by I fhall name to
you, that they have given Evidence againft, they)
kept together and committed a Riot s it is faid {o
particularly in the Information. For the Matter in
Fact that hath been altercated between them, the
Queftion is,whether the Lord Mayor for the Time
being hath Power in himfelf to call an Aflembly,
and to diffolve it ? And truly as to this Point, even
the Counfe! for the Defendants did one while grant
it, but another while did bring Witnefs thar did
know nothing of the Matter, [ muft needs fay.
But for aught I {ee, even until chis very time, the
Lord Mayor did call the Aflembly, and he did
ditiolve 1t, and that they did feem to grant even
atthe Beginning of the Caufe: But then they make
a Diftinétion, but he could not adjourn it to a cer-
tain Time. That was a very weak thing to fay,
that if the Lord Mayor may call and diffolve the
Hall, that he cannot adjourn it to a convenienc
Hour. Suppofe now the Bufinefs to be done was
not dilpatched fooner than this time a-night, fo
that upo. the Matter they muft be either adjourn’d
ull To-morrow, or kept in the Hall all N'ght:
Doesany Man think, that thar Magiftrate thathath
Power to call and diffolve, hath not Power to ad-
journ? There is no Man doubts of it in Faét or
Law 5 and that it was fo, Sir Roebert Clayton did
that very thing: if there had been no Precedent,
it had been all one, But they make a grear deal
of Bufinefs of it, how that the Sheriffs were the

Men, and that the Lord Mayor was nr_ll:mt}dyci
an
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and that fhews it was fomewhat of the Common-
wealth’s Seed, that was like to grow up among
the good Corn, —— * Pray, Gen-
tlemen, that is a very undecent
Thing; you put an Indignity up-
on the King, for you ought not
to do it, if you knew your Duty :
Pray, Gentlemen, forbear it, it does not become
a Court of Juftice.

I will tell you, when Things were topfy-turvey,
I can’t tell what wes done, and I would be loth
to have it raked vp now. They might as well
(as I perceive they have at another time {aid) have
faid, that the Power of diffolving and adjourning
might have been in the Livery-men, all People,
every body; and fo then if they had been toge-
ther by the Ears, I don’t know who muft have
parted them, that is the Truth of it. But [ think
their own Counfel are very well fatisfied both in
Faét and Law, that the Lord Mayor, for the Time
being, hath this Power of calling, diffolving, and
adjourning the Affembly. Then there 1s another
thing that is to be confidered, and that is this;
the Defendants they fay, Wedid miltake the Law,
itwas'only a Miftake of the Law,and nothing elfe s
and we did do all to a good Intent, and therefore
it muft not be a Riot. To give you fome Satif-
fictionin that: Firft, I muft cell you, that a Man
muft not excufe himfelf of a2 Crime, by faying he
was ignorant of the Law ; for if {o be that turn to
an Lxcufe, it is impoflible to convit any Man;
if fo be he muft be excufed becaufe he did not
know the Law, then no Man will be found guilty.
But if it appear,that the Defendants did verily be-
lieve, that che Law was for them, that may be con-
fidered in another Place; if fo be that they were
really ignorant, the Fine, it may be, may be the
fe(s, butit won’t excufe themfromall, Buttruly,
in the next Place, you muft conflider, whether or
no thele Gentlemen were ignorant, or whether or
no they did not, in a tumultuary way, make a Riot
to {et up a Magiftracy by the Power of the Peo-
ple. For I muft tell you, I have not heard by
the Defendants, and I will appeal to your Memo-
ry, I have not heard, before this Time, that ever
the Sheriffs did quarrel with the Mayor, or con-
tinie a Common Hall after the Mayor had ad-
journed it, As for thefe Gentlemen, they could
nor be ignorant of it, becaule the daily Praétice
hefore their Eyes was for the Mayor to do i,
But this was a new Notion got into their Heads,
tho’ 1t was otherwife before, it mult be {o now ;
and one faid, they would have no Tory Mayor to
be Mayor ; thus the King fhould have fomething
to do to fupport the Mayor by his Power, for
aught I know, Now, Gentlemen, for the Parties
that are accufed to be in ity there 1s 7. Pilzington,
damuel Shute, Henry Cornifh, Lord Grey, Sir Tho-
mas Player, Stingsby Bethel, Francis Jenks, Fobn
Deagle, Richard Freeman, Richard Goodenongh, Ro-
bert Key, Feobn Wickbam, Samuel Swinock, and
Sfobn Fekyl the elder; fome Witnefles are to {fome,
and others to.others, but fome of them have feven
or eiaht Witnelles, There is Pilkington, and Shute,
and Coernifh, thefe had a great many Witneffes
again{t them ; others have two. Firft, for the She-
rifrs, and Mr, Cornifh, that had been Sherift but
two Years before, they kept them together after
my Lord Mayor was gone; and to {ee what Peo-
ple they were, No, Not God blefs the King, no, no,
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but the Proteffant Sheriffs ; {o that in truth the
King muft be put out of his Throne, to put thefe
two Sheriffs in jt. It is not proved, that either of
thefe did fay fo, nor the others neither, but they
were thofe that clung to them, and they would
help them, and they would fet them to.rights,
and I know not what; and there is no other way
to know in this Cafe what they were, but by thele
they kept Company with ; and it may be,(I would
be loth to fay ill,it may be) it was in order to de-
throne the King as far as they could ; for my Lord
Mayor, when truly he had adjourn’d the Hall, and
was going home, he had like to be trod under Foor
himlelf, his Hat was down, and that was the great
Refpect they gave to his Majefty’s Lieutenant in
the Cicy, It is true, it cannot be faid who it was,
but thofe were the People that would have Ny God
Jave the King, and thole the Mayor had nothing
to do with, The Shenffs they would go on to
poll, and caft up their Books, and would make a
Difquifition who had moft Hands, and the like;
three Hours after my Lord Mayor was gone,
there were fo many that did countenance and fo-
ment this fort of Proceedings, There 1s a threwd
A& that was made fince his Majelty came in, that
the Villainy of fome Men might be ftopp’d, thir-
teenth-fourteenth of the King, that for Words in
fome Cafes makes High Treafon; it is well his
Majefty does not take any fevere Profecution, but
I can tell you, I would not have Men prefume up-
onit. Itcan’t be faid, You or you faid fo; yet they
kept them together, they were they that kept all
this Rabble three Hours together; the Lord Mayor
does adjourn the Courr, and they muft have {fome
time to be gone, and thereupon would perfuade
us they could not get away in three Hours ; they
afk for a Poll, and caft up the Scrutiny, and I
know not what. There are fome, and that is my
Lord Grey and Mr. Grodenorrgh, how thele two
fhould come there I know not, they had nothing;
to do here, and therefore I doubt it will be worfe
upon them than upon the r<dt, for they had no-
thing to do here, they muit come to fet the Citi-
zens together by the Ears. My Lord Grey he
fays, and hath called fome Witnefles, that he had
Bufinefs with Sir William Gelfton, about the Sale
of Corsfield in Effex; but ] do not fee any of his
Wimefles that do fay he came 1o fpeak witn Sir
William Gulfton here, he came here to fee how the
Poll went, But, look you, Gentlemen, he hath
given fome fort of Evidence, and the Counfel did
open it very fairly, butthe Kvidence did not come
fully, If you think he did only come upon real
Occafions to Sir #William Gulfton, only to fpeak ro
him about that Bufinefs, and concern’'d himfelf no
otherwife, then you will do well to find him Noc
guilty 3 if you do not, you muft find him Jike-
wife as well as the reft, for Geodenongl he was here
to promote the Matter. There is one, and truly
he faid, that for his part, as the reft would have
No God blefs the King, fo truly he wouid have No
Tory Mayor. And all this Flame, Imu{’t' tFll you,
took Fire from this Spark, that the Sherifls might
do what they thought fit about chooling Offi-
cers. Gentlemen, it hath becn a long Trial, and
it may be I have not taken it well; my Memory

.is bad, and I am but weak : I don’t queftion

but your Memories are better than mine; con-

fider your Verdi€t, and find fo many as you fhall
think fit.
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‘f?{*”" Fury withdrew, and in fome time returned,

Are you all agreed of your Verdiét?

Jury, Yes,

Who ihall fpeak for you?

Fury. The Foreman,

Do you find the Defendants Guilty of the Tref-

pals and Riot? {Je.
Foreman, We find them all Guilty in that

Paper.

This 1s your Verdict?

Fury., Yes,

T. Pilkington, S. Shute, I. Coruifs, Lord Grey,
Sir Thomas Player, S, Betbel, F. Fenks, F. Dzagle,
R. Freeman, R, Goodenough, R. Koy, f. Wickhan,
S. Swinock, and Fobn Jekyl the Elder, are Guilty.

You fay they are all Guilty? &

Fury. Yes.

On the 15th of Fuie following, Mr. Altoiiicy-
General moved in the Court of King's-Bench at
1Weftminflor, that Judgment might be awarded
againft them upon their former Conviction, in or-
der to their being fined for the Rior, &c.  But
the Lord Chief Juftice Saunders, and Mr. Juftice
. Raymond, by reafon of their Indifpofitions, being
neither of them on the Beach, Mr. Jultice Foues,
with the Confentot Mr., Attoracy Geieral, reterred
1t to the 19th Inftant, when Mr. Atiorney again
moved for Judgment, alledging the Heinoutnels
of the Crime, viz. That it was an open Aliront
to Juftice and Magiftracy, and might prove an
eviiPrecedent,if it thould elcape unpunifh’d,which
he praved it might not do; but that fince they had
been fairly convifted, the Court, in purfuance
thereof, would award fuch Fines as might deter
others from the like Attempts, &e. Upon this
Motion Mr. Pilliams, of Counlel for the Defen-
dants, moved, That feeing there had firlt a Penire
been direéted to Mr. Pilkington and Mr. Shute, late
Sherifts of Loadon, and afterward an Alias Penire
to the prefent Sheriffs, and yet that in the Infor-
mation all the Defendants were joined, tho’, as he
fuggelted, that at the ume of the firft Veuire fome
of them were not made krown, and thar fince
Mr. Piltington, Mr.Shute, &8¢, had appearcd up-
on the firft, and many of the others not ull the
fecond ;5 he humbly prayed, that an Error mighe
be thereon afligned.

To which the King’s Counfel reply’d, Thart if
any Prejudice was fuftained in the Methods and
Manner of Proceeding to the T'rial of the Perfons
convicted of the Riot and Battery, 1t was fuftain-
ed an the Part of the King ; and {eeing he was
willing to difpenfe with ir, that not in the lealt
affeCted the Defendants, unlefs in redounding to
their Advantage ; for that they had alegal Trial,
all of them pleading Not guilty,and putting them-
felves upon their Country, to try the Iffue between
the King and them, which Country had found them
cuilty of the Offences betore-mentioned, and that
now nothing remained but the Judgment of the
Court in awarding their Fines, {5c.

T'o this it was alledeed, That fecing they were
affembled in Guild-ball upon a lawful Occafion,
they could not be guilty of a Riot, or the like
Mifdemeanour, the Legality of their firlt Aflem-
bling not admitting thereof : Buc this Allegation
was over-tuled for thele Reafons s That altho’ an
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Affembly be never fo legully convened, yer if
they tumult or break the Peace, the Legahty of
tic Afflembly cannot bear them out: And more-
over, that when the Lord Mayor had adjourned
the Poll, the Aflembly was no longer a lawful
Affemnbly, but ought immediately to have depart-
ed to their refpective Habitations, which the De-
fendants not only delayed to do, but in Contemps
of Authority continued the Poll, and in a riotous
manner alflaulied. the Perfon of the Mayor, And
that for Inference, If a Congregation be affem-
bled ata Church, to hear Divine Service, which in
wlelf s Jawfuls yet if Bliws happen, or a riot-
ous ar diforderly Tumult 1s made, the Legality
of the Meeting fhall in no wife excufe che Au-
thors of fuch Diforders from the Penalties of
the Law, &r, of which Opinicn were not on-
Iy the Counlel for the King, but the Judges like-
wite,

Thefe, and fuch-lke, being the Arguments of
this Day, Mr. Juflice Fures being inditpoled, and
Mr, Jultice Raymond not coming upon the Bench,
the pafling Sentence was deterred ull Friday the
22d Inftant, and from thence al Mvirday the 25th
Inftant, at what time Mr. Juitice Joues being in-
aifpofed, 1t was put oii ull Tweflay, the 26th of
Funes when Mr. Atrsiney moved for Judgment,
requinng, that the Parties found guilty upon the
Information, might be fined ; and was {econded
by Mr. Sergeant Fefferies 5 both of them praying,
that they might have good Fines fet on them, as
an Example to deter others from the like At-
tempts ; as allo did Mr. 7ones, of Counfel for the
King; wlhen, on the other Side, Sir Francis Win-
singtonn, Mr. IWiliiams, Mr, Wallap, Mr. Pollexfen,
Mr. Thompforr, and Mr. Holt, of Counfel for the
Defendants, urged many Arguments for the Ex-
tepuation of the Fines, feeing they were at the
Mercy of the Court, alledging, That the Defen-
dants did that of which they were convicted rather
out of Ignorance than Malice, or any Defign they
had to injure or affront the Government; as not
being then capable ro determine,whether the Right
to adjourn the Common Hall lay in the Lord
Mayor or Sheriffs. Bur after the Arguments on
both Sides had been heard, Mr. Juftice Foues pro-
ceeded to declare the Heinoufhels of the Fa&t, and
what 2n evil Precedent it might prove if it fhould
pafs unpunifhed 5 and after fome Conference with
Mr. Jultice /7uthens, he proceeded to award their
Fines as followeth:

On Thomas Pilkington, Efg; by reafon of his
being a Prifoner, only 500l §. §hute, Efg; 1000
Marks, Ford Lord Grey of Werk 1000 Marks,
Sir Thomas Player, Ki. 500 Marks, Slingshy Be-
thel, Efg; 1ooo Marks, H, Corunifh 1000 Marks,
rirancis fenks go0 Marks, R. Frezman 00 Marks,
R. Goadenough 500 Marks, Fobn Deagle 100 Marks,
Robert Key 100 Marke, Yobn Wickham 1ooMarks,
3. Swinock 500 Marks, and on Fobn fekyl, fenior,
200 Marks; all of them appearing in Court, ex-
cept the Lord Grey, Mr. Koy, and Mr. Goodzirongh,
and according as they appeared to be of Ability,
lo were their Fines regulated,

This Judgmient was afterwards reverfed in Par-
liament, 1 /73 and Mary; and the Defendants
petition’d, that the Profecutors and Judges might
be excepted out of the then intended A& of
Grage.

To
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To the KIN G’s moft Excellent

MajEsTy,

The humble Petition of Sir Thomas Pilking-
ton, Kut. Lord Mayor of London, Slingsby
Bethel, Fif7; Samuel Swinock, John Deagle,
Richard Freeman, John Jekyl, john Key,
and John Wickham, 22 bebalf of themfeloes,
and of the refpcctive Executors and Adimi-
niffrators of Sir Thomas Player, K. dp-
ccafed, Henry Cornith, Efy; deceajed, Samuel
Shute, Efy; deceafed, and of Francis Jenks,
(l’t’fmﬁ.’d,

SHEWETH,

THAT your Petitioners, and the faid deceal-
ed Perfons, were, in the Year 1632, and
1683, by the Contrivance and Confedcracy of
Sir Fobi Moore, Kt. Siv Dudley Novth, Ke. Sir Pe-
ter Rich, Kr, Siv Edmund Saundeis, Kt, late Chief
Juitice of the King’s- Bench, and lome others, pre-
fecuted and conviéted for a Riot; the Fadt ob-
jeCted againft them being no other in truth, than
the peaceable doing their Duties as Citizens of Lon-
doir and Lnglifimen, in Election of Sheriffs for the
faid City and County of Middlsfex.

That in the Procecdings upon the {uid pretend-
cd Rior, many notorious Violations of the Law
were committed, and your Petitioners denied com-
mon Juiiize by the Combination and Confede-
racy of tiw Ferfons Jalt above-numed, and others;
infomuch th.t vour Petitioners, and the faid de-
ceafer Defendants, were by Judgment of the Court
of Kiug's-Beach, n rinity Term 1683, unrealon-
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ably fined 4100l and were, by Imprifonment
and otherwife, forced to pay the fame; which
Sum of 4100/ was long fince paid iato the K-
chequer.

That at your Petitioners Profecution, the faid
Judgment was reverfed, the laft Parliament, as
crroneous 5 whereby your Majefty ftands by Law
Jiable to make Reftitution of the faid Sum of 1100/,
as your Petitioners are adviled.

Now forafmuch as your Mzjelty’s gencrous
Undertaking in coming into this Kingdom, tend-
cd only for the vindicating and eftablifhing our
Religion, Laws and Libertics, and for relieving
the Opprefled ;5 and for that it is agreeable to
Equity, that fuch as did the Wrong thould make
the Reftitution: And your Petitioners hoping the
Parliament now aflembled will take the whole
Matter into their Confideration, and pals a Bill
for Relief of your Petitioners out of the Confe-
derates Eftates, and not leave them to be fausiied

by your Majefty :

Your Petitioners therefoie bumbly befeech yonr
Majefty, That the Jaid Confederates, the
Profecutors of yeur Pelitioneis, and the
Fudges, and Others concerned therein, may
be Excepted in the A& of Grace, intended
by your Majefly, as to Al they did in rela-
tion to the Profecution and Fudgment npon

the pretended Riot above [pecified.

And your Petitioners fhall always pray, &,

This A& of Grace is 2 Gul. & Mar, c. 10.
but there is no fuch Exception in ir, only of
Sir Francis Withens, who was excepted upon other
Accounts.
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CXNY. The Trial of Sir Parience Warp, Kz * ar ihe
King's-Bench, for Perjury ar the Trial between the Duke
of York Plumntiff, and Thomas Pilkington, Efg; De-
fendant, on an Aftion t upon the Statute de Scandalis
Magnatum. 19 May 1683. Pafche. 3§ Car. II.

The JURY were,

§¢r Thomas Dridges, A7,
Henry Reyncll, 24/7;
Thomas Herriott, £/4;
Thomas Airsby, £2/y;
Richard Pagett, /g5
John Fofter, L/g;

€ N Information had been preferred
A by the Atoraey General  againft
Sir Patience [¥urd, tor that he had
St malicionfly and  wilfully perjured
e5dE8e himfelfin the Court of King’s-Beuch,
upon the Trial between the Duke of 2%r%, and
Thomas Dilkington, Efg; to which the Defendant
pleaded Not Guilty, and was tried May 19.

¥ Burret's Hiftory of his Own Times, Vol. I. p. 530.

Thomas Eaglesficld, £/7;
Edward Maplefden, £/4;
John Sharp, £/7;

James Suckle, Gent,

John Olinger, Gent.

Richard Fither, Gent.

Cryer. Oyez: If any Man will give Evidence
on the Behalf of our Sovereign Lord the King,
againft the Defendant Sir Patience Ward, le
him come forth, and he fhall be heard.

Mr. Dolben. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen that are fworn, This is an In-
formation of Perjury preferred againit Sir Patigice
Ward, Whereas the mott illuftrious Fames Duke

1+ In this Adion the Duke of 2274 had recovered 100,000 /. Damages.

of
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of 2erk brought an Aclion spon the Statute de
Scandalis Magnatum agawft Thomas Pilkington,
wherein was deciared, that, whereas he was the
only Brother to our Sovereign Lord the King,

the {aid Pilkington did fpeak in the hearing of

divers of his Majeltv’s liege Subjecls, thefe
falle and fcandalous Words, He bath burnt the
City, (meaning the City of Louadon) and 15 (mean-
ing the faid Duke) cosie to cuut onr Throats, Gen-
tlemen, the Information {ets forth further, that
the Defendant Pilkinoion pleaded he was Nof
guilty, and that upon the Trial of this Hive, Sir
Pattence J/ard was produced asfa Witnefs vpon
the Behalf of the Defendant Pilkington s and that
the faid Sir Patience Ward then and there was
duly fworn to {peak the Truth, the whole Truth,
and pothing but the Truth, in the Premifes,
and that the faid Sir Paticice Ward did falfly
and corruptly fwear and give in ILvidence to the
Jurors empanelled to try the Iffue aforefaid, That
there was no mention at toe Time of this Difconrfe
aforcfaid had lelwucen the faid Thomas Pilkington
and divers of bis Majcflies Subjefls, concerning the
faid James Drke of York, that there was no men-
tign of entting of Throats, and that before M., Pil-
kington (meaning the laid Thomas Pitkington) came
71, {mcaning the Time when the Difcourfe afore-
faid was had) tbe Difcourfe about the Duke of York
svas over 5 and further, that the Duke of York was
720t ramed, (meaning at that Time when the Dif-
courfe aforefaid was had) whereas in truth at the
fame time there was mention of cutting of
Throats; and whereas, before Mr. Pitkington came
in, the Difcourfe concerning the Duke of 2ork
was not ended 3 and whereas the fhid Duke of
York was named at the Time when the Difcourfe
aforefaid was had, {fo that the faid Sir Patience
I77ard in the Cafe aforefaid did commit wiltul and
flat Perpury.

sit Rkt AT, Attor. Gein, My Lord, and you

Sewpere Gentlemen of the Jury, Sir Patience
Ward the Defendant {tands accufed for Perjury,
committed in a Ceule, that was between the Duke
of York Plaintitt, and ivir. Pilkington Defendant,
and in that Caule Mr. Piltington was accufed to
have fpcken falle Words of the Duke of Zork,
He bath brmt our Cityy and is ccme to cut our
Thiroats; to excule this, Sir Paticice Ward he
comes, and fwears polhuvely, frft, That 1he Duk-
of York cvas not mentioied 1 the Diftonrfe, aid
therofore thofe IPoids cordd not b2 meant of the Duke
of York ; this littic Evafion we don’t trouble you
with ; but they related to one [ubeit, hanged many
Years before; however we will lay that afide,
and not trouble you with 1t. The next dirett
Matter, which proves it was malicioufly done,
that he was fo ill a Man, and that e had {poken
{uch Words, he fwears, That all the Difcourje ve-
[atizg to (e Duke of York <was over before Pilking-
ton came iido the Reomr.  This Allegation is di-
reCtly falle, he fwears politively, there was no mes-
tisn made of cutting Throats.  Gentlemen, we wiil
firl prove unto you the Words; then we will
prove uato you, that they were [alfe, for Fil-

Lincton did fpeak thefe 'Words of the Duke of

2vrk. Gentlemen, we will Jeave 1t to you whe-
ther this Gentleman hath not forfworn himfelf.
Mr. S, Fefferies. If it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I muft necds fay, that
this is a Caule of very great Confequence of one
Side and Cother; it concerns a very great Perfon,
a Man that has been Lerd Mayor of Londen, and
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I think is fill an Alderman of London 5 it is in its
own Nature of very great Confequence, it is no
lefs than the charging him with the Crime of
wilful Perjury 5 1t comes to a publick Audience,
as 1t was very requifite it thould. The Crime we
charge this Gentleman with was conmmitted in
this very Place, in the Face of this Court, and
I think to the Admiration and Aftonithment of
all Perfons, that heard this Gentleman fivear ac
that very Time: And therefore, that the thing
may be intelligible to thefe Gentlemen, I thail
crave your Lordfhip’s Patience, to give an Ac-
count how this Macter was: This Martter was
attended with Circomftances of Malice, which
fhew 1t was not a Slip in Evidence, but a ma-
licious perjuring himfelf, Gentlemen; and they
are thefe, Upon his Royal Highnefs’s Return out
of §eotland, and coming to Newmarket to his Ma-
efly, a very loyal Gentleman, then Lord Mayor
of Loundonny Sir Jobn Mocre by Name, with fome
other Perfons, that I have in my Eye, had it in
Profpeét, as it became them to do, to fo grear a
Prince as he was, to waic upon him. My Lord,
there being this Delign of the Aldermen and
Lord Mayor to attend upon his Royal High-
nefs, to congratulate his Arrival from Scotfond ;
in order thereto, upon a fpecial Court-day, there
was an Order mﬁde, that the Lord Mayor and
Aldermen fhould attend his Majelly, to defire
his Leave, that they misht come and actend
likewife his Royal Highnefs, to congrarulate his
tate Arrival,  "This I think was wpon a fpccial
Court, before they went to Church, upon a Su-
day, In order 1o this, there happen’d another
Meeting of the Lord Mayor and Aldermen, to
protecute this Defign of theirs, to wait upon his
Royal Highnefs, to congratulate his Arrival ; and
thereupon an Inrimation was given to Sir Pa-
tience IWard, with one of the Sherifls, Pilkngton,
of their Intentions. At which Time, Sir Wil-
liam Hooker, and another worthy Gentleman, Sir
Harry qulfe, happening to be together in a Place,
which I prefume fome of you do well know,
in the Long Gallery or Ante-chamber to the
Council Room, where the Lord Mayor and Al-
dermen molt ufually fit, fome Difcourfe arofe
touching the Occafion of their then Meeting;
whereupon a Queftion was propofed, Whether
they fhould wait upon his Rayal Highneis or
not? One of thele Gentlemen was pleafed to fay,
atthat Time, that it was too late now the Court had
determined it, there being then prefent this Sir Pa-
tieice Iard, and thefe two Gentlemen along with
Mr, Pilkington then Sheriff, who, in Obje&ion to
the Propofal of waiting upon the Duke of 2oik,
(after this Dilcourfe wis over, and after they
had mentioned the Duke of 2+%’s Name to
him) faid, He bath Larit the City, and is now
come to cut the Thioals of onr Hives aud Children.
This, Gentlemen, was to deter and fright the
others from going, and given asa Reafon why
he would not go to attend the Duke of 1ork.
My Lord, this thing happening thus, an Aé&ion
was brought for thie, and came to a Trial before
your Lordfhip. It is very true, in that Trial we
did only produce Sir Harry Tulfe, that was pre-
{ent, and he fwore to all the Words aboat burn-
ing the City, and hikewife to the eutting of Throats.
But Str Paticnce Ward, without any manner of
Hefitation ; nay, and not only that, (I appeal to
the Memory of thofe that heard him {wear at

that T'tme) bue boafting himfif, as having as
eoo(
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good a Memory as any Man in England, (though
he was cautioned at that time to have a Care
what he fwore) did pofitively fay, TZhe Duke of
York wwes siot named after Pilkington <was there ;
that the Difeonrfe of the Duke of York was doue
before be came in. He doubled his Evidence on
purpofe to make the thing more plain.  But af-
terwards, when it came a little further to be dif-
cours’d of, I appeal to the Memory of the Court,
and the Gentlemen at the Bar, whether he did
not fAutter about in S8 Fames’s Park, and out
comes Hubzrty the Duke of Zork was not named,
but Fubert, Hubert, I clapp’d my Hand upon his
Mouth, fays 1, you mean Huberty and {o we had
oot Hybert into the Caufe on purpofe to fhut-
fle out the Bufinefs about the Duke of Zort.
My Lord, after this (I do 1t to refrefh the Me-
mory of thefe Gentlemen) he was pofitive, and
faid, I do pefitively fay, there swas nol a Word of
cuiting of Throats, even to the Surprize not only
of all the Auditors, but even of all thofe Pco-
ple that were concerned in Afection for him,
as well as they who were engaged in the Caule
that chey were to fupport. My Lord, in the
firlt Place we will give you an Account, that ic
was a defigned and malicious Evidence, necefla-
ry for the bringing off that Man, for If there
were not a Word fpoken of the Duke of 2%/,
then our A%ien was no Action s if there was not
a Word fpoken of cutiing of Thioats, then, of
cenfequence, the Verdiék mult have been againtt
us; and therefore finding there was but one
EFvidence, which was Sir Harry Tulje againft his
Evidence, that made him fivear {o pofitively ; but
afterwards your Lordfhip may pleafe to remems-
ber, we called Sir Wiliiam Hooker (a Gentleman
of well known Integrity) to preferve the Credit
of fo great a Prince, maugre the Malice of all
his Enemies. 1 fpeak this to fhew 1tis fit, i is
neceffary to clear this Caufe, In the firft Place
we will prove what is reciced 1n this Record, and
oive you an Account what this Perfon did fvear
ar the Time of the Tral. The Matters, that I
have opened, I think they will fufficiently fatisfy
the Court and the Jury, as they did fansfy the
Jury before, that what Sir Paticnce Ward {wore
then, is falfe now, and was falle then.

The Record of Pilkington’s Trial read,

Mr, S. Fefferies. Read the Information, Tie
Record wwas Anno predicto, but when it <was re
cited iu the liformation, it was Anno ultumo fu-
pradicto.

Mr. /Vard. Tt 1s neceflary, when we come by
way of Recital of the Record, to recite the very
Words in the Record, now in the Record it is
Anng predifo,

Mr. [Filliams. My Lord, theyare reciting the
Record.

Sit Edrand
Surders,

L. C. ¥. They do not recite it in
hee verba, the Subftance 1s true, the
Words are varying from the Record, in the Re-
cord they are Awio predidia, but in the Recital,
Anio altimo fepradict.

Mr. Williams. That is not the fame in Sub-
ftance as to fay Ao pradiéd’y the Tear beforefaid,
there are many Amni predich, and that may re-
fer to any of them s if there had been but one,
it might have been 1o, bur when there are feveral
Years mentioned before, Auno ultimo prediél’ re-
ftrains ic to the Iaft Year piedi?'.
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Mr. Attor, Gen. You may fpend as much Time

as you will 5 in the firft Record there was but one
Year mentioned. |

Mr. Recorder. That the City of Lon. St George
dont was burnc in the Year 663 thar wag 7"
one Year mentioned before, I am fure,

~ Mr. Attor, Gen. There are feveral Years men-
tioned in this Record ; there we muft fay ultimo
predic?,

L. C. f. The Objeftion is, That whereas it
was n the Record Auno predit?, here you have
more; and when you recite Anio predif? you add
wltino,

Mr. S, Fefferies, We could not do it otherwife,
my Lord.

L.C. 7. Asif a thing could not be well ex-
cept it were n fuch precife Words: Thar was
Ao predit? 5 this, you fay, is Aduwie ultime
predif.  Now if the filt had been Aduno ultimo
Supradié?, and n this you had faid Awao predic,
when feveral were mention’d, then 1t mioht have
been an Objetion; now it is not,

Mr. S, Fefferies. 1t Sir Palizice had been as
exall in fwearing, as you are in obferving, he
had done well enough.

Call Mr, Haich,

| [#ho was fworn,]

Mr. Wiliams. Pray teUs know your Name, Sir 2

Mr. Hateh. Ny Name is [Halzh,

Mr. S. Fefferies. Pray, Mr. Hatch, was you pre-
fentat the Trial between his Royal Highnefs and
Nir, Pilxington ?

Mr. Halch. Yes, my Lord, I was prefent,

Mr, S. Jefferies. Was Sir Patiznce Ward pro-
duced as 2 Witnefs?

Mr. Haich. Sir Patience Ward was {worn,

Mr. S. Fefferies. What did he fwear?

Mr. Hatch. He did f{wear, upon his Oath,
That the Sheriffs were not prelents that there
were fome Aldermen at the Table 1n the marted
Gallery in Guild- hall, fmoking a Pipe of Tobacco,
and that they had fome Difcourfe about waiting
upon the King and the Duke, purfuant to an
Order from my Lord Mayor the Day before,
and he faid, the Sheriffs were not prefent,

Mr. S. Fefferics. What Sheriffs?

Mr., Hateh, The Sheriff: And he did after-
wards fay, he did pofitively affirm, uvpon his
Oath, that Pikington did not come in il all the
Difcourfe was over about the Duke.,

Mr. S. Fefferies. What did he fay about cutting
of Throats?

Mr. I7illiams. Good Mr, Sergeant.

Mr. Fones. You fay he pofitively faid, there
was no Dilcourfe about the Duke of 2ork after
Pilkizglon came in.

Mr. Hatch. But then after, my Liord, he faid;
I do pofitively affirm, upon my Oath, that Ful.
kingfon did not come in till all the Dilcourfe was
over concerning the Duke of York. And further;
there was Difcourfe about burning the City by
the Papilts, faith Pilksigton, he bath bzfr{:! the
City 5 with that Sir Patizice Ward ton}: him by
the Shoulder, faying, Esplain yourlelt: What!
you mean Hubert, [ warrant you? Tes, faid he,
He being afk’d the Queftion, Whether any thing
of the Dule was namy’d, he faid, Ne: And fur-
ther, Whether there was not any mention of cui-
ting of Tisreals, be did pofitively Jay, There weas no
mention madz of curting of Throats. |

NMr, Willams. Mr. Hatch, Where wers you

placed at the Tral:
M.
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Mr, Hatch, At the Trial, Mr, Williams, T {tood

Juit there.

Mr, #illiams. Had you a Pen and Ink about

your

Mr, Hatch, Yes, Sir, 1 write Charaters,

Mr, Williams, Pray, Sir, did you take the
Words in Writing then, or no, in the Court?

Mr., Hateh, I belicve I might, I can’t pofitively
2ell,

Mr., Thompfon. Have you your Notes here?

Mr. Hatch, I think I have net.

Mr. Thompfon. A Man of a good Memory.

Mr. S. Fefferics. We have a matter of fome
thirty or forty Witnefles; don’t make fuch a
Rourt,

Mr. Pellexfen, Mr, Hatch, you are repeating
what Sir Patience I7ard faid ; Did he, in that Evi-
dence, mention the Duke of Tork, or not?

Mr., Haich. He faid, there was Difcourfe about
going to the King at §z. Fames’s, but not to the
Duke. Sir George Fefferies alked him that very
Queftion.

Mr. Polexfen. Let him now repeat the Evi-
dence which he {wore juft before.

Mr. S. Fefferies. 1 thought that would not have
been fuch a mighty Queftion at this Time of
Day.
Mr. Williams. 1 defire he may fay again what
was [worn by Sir Patieiice Ward.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Begin and repeat, Sir, in what
manner he fwore, in the very fame Form he
fpake then.

Mr. Hatch. Sir Patience TVard, being {worn
and examined upon the Account of Mr, Pilking-
ton, did fay, That there were fome Aldermen et
at the Mattzd Gallery, the Natted Chamber in
Guild-hall, and fineaking a Pipe of Tobacco, and
there was Difrourfz of waiting ufon the King, aid
the Duke, purinant to an Order of the Lord Mayor
the Day before; and being afked, Whether Mr. Pil-
kington was not prclent, he faid, Tbe Sheriffs were
not prefent, but at the Court of taking Licences in
Guild-hall, aind that .- ve was a Difcourfe about
burning the City by the Papifts, and, fays Mr, Pil-
kington, Hath be burnt the City ¢ Hath be burnt
the City ? Upon that, Sir Patience Ward took bim
by the Shoulder, and bid bim explain himfIf: You
meant Fluberr, [ warrant you, faith he, 2%,
faith Pilkington ; and being afked, Whether there
was any Difcourfe about the Duke of ¥ork, he
faid No 3 but pofitively faid, that there cwas ns
uention made of cuting of Throals,

Then Mr. Boxton was fwors,

Mr. Filliams. Your Name, Sir,

Mr. Boxton, My Name 1s Boxton.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Mr. Boxton, will you tell my
I.ord and the Jury, whether you remember
what was faid by Sir Paticuce IWard ¢

Mr. Bexton. My Lord, 1 was prefent at his
Trial, I happened to return the Jury.

Mr, S. Fefferies. Pray wilt you tell my Lerd
and the Jury, what was faid by Sir Paticice Ward ¢

Mr. Boxton. My Lord, 1 was prefent at this
Trial, having returned the Jury that was to try
that Caufe of his Royal Highnefs : 1 was above
in the Gallery, and I could not fo well under-
ftand it; but as that Gentleman faid before, he
was {aying, be beard no mention made of cuttiig of
Threa'sy 1 can’t fay the very Words, for I took

no Notes, |
it Williams. You were in the Gallery then?

Mr. Baxton. Yes, Sir,
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Mr, S. Fefferies. Pray, Mr. Affon, I think you
were prelent.

Mr. Afton. 1 was prefent in the Court that
Day, and I do remember, that Sir Pasicuce Ward
did fwear, I think pofitively, to the beft of my
Remembrance, that the Duke of York was o
named, while Mr, Pilkington was by, That js 3]
I do remember.

Mr. S. Fefferies. What do you mean by pof.
tively 2 that he ufed the Word pofitively 2

Mr. Affon. I think Tam pretty fure he did take
it pofitively, or upon bis Oath.

Mr. S, Fefferies, Whatdid he take pofitively?

Mr, Aften, That the Duke of w4 was not
named while Mr. Pilkington was by,

Mr., S. Fefferies, Do you remember any thing
cle?

Mr. Afton. As to cutting of Throats, 1T do nat
remember it.  Several People have afked me,
and I gave them that Relation, or ¢le I belicye,
that had been out of my Mind.

M, Wood frwarn.

Mr. 8. Fefferies. Mr. [Food, pray will you give
my Lord and the Jury an Account of what you
heard Sir Patience Ward fwear, in the Caufe be-
tween his Royal Highnefs and Mr, Pilkiusion,

Mr. Weod. My Lord, I was in Court when
Sir Patience Ward gave Evidence for Mr. Pilking-
ton, and I heard Sir Patience IWard fay, that the
Duke of York <was wot named ; and that the Dif.
courfe concerniung the Duke was over before My, Pi'-
kington came i, and that there 1was no mention of
cuting of Throats.

Mr, Fones. Did he {wear thefe Things pofitive-
ly, or as he believed, or heard ?

Mr. #sod. To the beft of my Remembrance, |
think he clapt his Hand upon his Breaft, and faid

-

pofitively there wwas no mention of cutting of Throats,

Mr. Attor. Gen. Do you fpeak of your beft
Remembrance as to his Pofture, or to the Word ?

I\.[’Ir:.) S. Jefferies, Did he fay that Word pofi-
lrvely

N%r. 7e0d. ‘To the beft of my Remembrance,
he faid pofitively, or upon my Oath; one of them
he did iay, I can’t tell which.

Mr, S. Fefferies. Either he faid pofitively, or
upon my Qath. Now, my Lord, if your Lord-
fhip pleafes, we have given your Lordfhip and
the Jury, a .fufhicient Account how pofitive this
Gentleman was; but as pofitive as he was at
that "T'ime, we will give you an Account, that he
dic: forfwear himfelf.

Swwear Sir James Smith (which was dore).

Mr, dttor. Gen. Pray will you tell the Court

what you can fay ?

Sir Fames Smith. 1 did little think to be call’d to
aive any Lvidence upon the Account of Sir Pa-
tiznce IWard, confidering the Relation that is be-
tween us, as Aldermen, 1did not take particular
Notice, but I do remember, that he ufed that kind
of Polture as they fay, and did pofitively, or
upon bis‘Oath, fay, I can’t be cerrain of the Words
he ufed, that Mr. Pilkington was not there while
they wvere difeourfing concerning going 1o St. James’s,

for be did declare, the Duke of Yok was not talked

of, and 1 do remember a very good Circum-
ftance that he cid fwear {o, for my Lord Chief
Juitice Pemberton was pleafed to apply himfelf to

Sir Harry Tulfe upon it; and I remember Sit
Harry Tulfe made Anfwer, Iam vary forry to fay
it, he was there ofl the whily,

Mr,
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Mo, Arz. Gen. Did you hear any thing about
custing of Throals?

Sir Fames Smith. T dont remember thar,

Sir Willlam Rawiterne fivern,

Mr. S. Fefferies. What fay you, Sir Blliam
Rawflziie ¢

51, il Rawflerne. My Lord, I was hete, but
I ook no particular Notice, but I do remember,
that Sir Patiznce Ward did fuy, that the Duke zcas
ot named when Pilkington was e the Room 5 1 can
{1y nothing elle.

Mr, Fones. Did you hear him {wear i1t ¢

Sir Wl Rawficine. Yes, Sir.

Mr. S, Tefferies. Sir James Smith, did he {wear
it upon his Oath:? '

Sir Ya. Smith, My Lord, I faid before, I can-
no: fay the Word he exprefled 1t in, bat either
pofitively, or npon bis Oatl, be was sot there all the
swhile thal Difeourfe was.

Mr. Pelexfen. Firft he fays, the Difcourfe was
of going 1o ¢ Jamzs's. |

Sir Ya. Smith. My Lord, as I faid before, he
did declare, that the Sheriif that then was, Mr.
Pilkington, was not by while they were difcourfing
of going to S, Fames’s, for he faid they did not
fpeak of the Duke of 2ork; but the Difcourfe
was about going to 8t Famess, and thar Dil-
courfe was at an End before Mr. Pilkington came
in 3 and while they were talking about firing the
City, upon that Mr, Pitkingten faying, be bath
fircd the City, he defired him to explain himielf,
whether he did not mean Hubeit.

Sir John Peake fworn,

Mr., S. ?aﬁ’rffs. Sir j’&bf} Peale, 1 dcfire to
know what you can fay.

Sir Jobu Peake. I was prefent at the Trial, and
Sir Patizice, 1 do reinember this, laid his Hand
upon his Breaft, and either {aid pofitively, or up-
on his Qath, I cannot tell which, one of the two
I am certain of, That Alr. Pilkington was nof by
while the Dute of York was meitioned,

Mr. S, Fefferics. What about cutting  of
Throats ?

Sir Fobir Peake. There was fomething faid of
cutting of Throats, bue I am not fo pofinive.

Mr, S, Feffeiies, Sir Thomas Field, 1 think you
was one of the Jury that tried the Caufe.

Sir Tho, fi:ld. Yes, Sir, [ was upon the Jury,

Mr, S. Jeflerizs. Pray do you remember, that
Siv Paticice Ward was a Witnels?

Sir Tho. Fisld, Yes, 1 do remember 1t

Mr. S. Feferizs. Do you remember what he
fwore?

Sir Tho, Fisld. 1 do remember he {wore the
Duke <as not wamed y that I can remember.

Mr. A2, Gen. Do you remember any thing
cile 7

Mr. S, Fefferics. Do you remember any thing
about cutting of Throats?

Sir Tho, Field, There was fomething, I cannot
pofitively fay that,

Mr, S, Fefferies. Do you remember what other
Words he faid ?

Sir Tho. Field, He did fay likewife, that M.
Pilkingion <was wot iin the Koom whenr any thing
was froken ielating to the Duke of York:

Nir, 8. Fefferies. Sir Francis Butler, Pray will
vou pleafe to give my Lord, and the Jury, an
Account whether you were of the Jury, in the
Caufe between his Royal Highnels and Mr, Pk
kington ?

Sir. Fr. Butler, 1 was of that Jury,

Vou, HI
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Mr. S Fefferies. 1 think you were the Fore-
man; Sir.

Sir Fi. Butler. T was the Foreman,

Mr. S. fefferies. Pray, do you remember Sir Pa-
ticice Ward was produced as a Witnefs?

Sir f#, Batier. He was produced.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Do you remember any thing
he fwore? and whar?

Sir Fr. Butler, The Evidence he {wore {which
I thought we had Reafon to obferve, for the
great Qneftion was, Whether the Words related
to the Duke of Zork, or no?) was, that it did noz
relate to the Duke of 2%k and Siv Patience
Ward was proving Alderman Pikisgton was not
in the Rocm while they difcourfed of the Duke
of Zork, and that the Duke of 2erk was not
named.

Nir. 8. Fefferies. Did he {wear that pofitively?

Sir Francis Butler. To the beft of my Remem-
brance, pofitively 5 I heard nothing of Qualifica-
tion at all.

Mr. S, Fefferies. This 15 a Gentleman of great
Worth, and the Foreman of that Jury.

Sir Fr. Butler. We did debate 1t after we went
out of the Court, among ourfelves, before we
brought in our Verdict, and I remember fome-
thing more in it; for we fhould have laid a lit-
tle more Weight upon his Evidence, if he had
not faid, that when Sir William Fooker toock fome
Exceptions at his Words, and afked, #bat do
you meain ? Sir Patience Ward then laid one Hand
upon Alderman Piflirgter’s Mouth, and, as I fe-
member, Uother upon his Brealt, and afked,
What do you mean 2 And Cother anfwered, Hubers,
That made us belteve his Lividence was to be laid
by.
Mr. S. Fefferies. Now, my Lord, if your Lord-
thip pleafes, I think wec have fufficiently fauif-
fied your Lordfhip, and che Jury, what Words he
fwore 5 now we will prove, that they were fa/5.

Mr. Att. Gen. Siv Harry Tulje, pray, will you
acquaint my Lord, and the Jury We will afk
you firft; Sir Hairy Tulle, were you prefent when
this Gentleman {wore? .

Sir H. Tulfe. 1 was prefent; I fat dbwn on a
Fore-feat, and he gave his Evidence behind: [
never faw him touch the Baok, nor kifs it.

Mr. Ait. Gen. What did you hear him fay ?

Sir A, Telfe. 1 was a hivde difcompoled at what
I had heard him fay, and fo I any nog able to aive
an Account, and I thought I had fome Reafon
for 1.

Mr. S. Fefferies, Why what Reafon? Was it
becaufe he fivore truly or rafhly ?

Mr, Thempfen. Good Mr, Sergeant, don’t lead

{o.

Mr., Williams. T think it is a Refleétion upon
an Alderman to be led by any.

Nir. At Ger, Mr. Williams, 1 can fhew vou,
you have led Aldermen, and agamnlt Law too.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Wil you pleale to 0 po .
give my Lord an Account whether
Mr. Pilkington was by when there was any Dil
courfe about the Duke of 207k ¢ |

Sir H. 9uife. Gentlemen, I don't know whe-
ther you expect the Account I formerly gave;
chat 1 think I have very perfect in my Memory.

Mr. A Gen. Give an Account cf that Pal-
fage,

JSir H, Tuife. The LEvidence 1 gave was this:
Upon the Tenth Day of April, (1 will not be po-
fitive, I think it was that Day) according to an
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Order of Court made the Day before, we met at
Guild ball, there was Sir William Hooker, Sir Pa-
ticnce Ward, Sherift Pilkington, and myfelf, I
remember no mores; and Alderman Pilkington
faid, fie burnt our City, and is come, or will come,
one of chele two Words, fo cut? our Throats., This
was the Evidence that I gave, this was true, |
was alked by the Courtr, what was the preceding
Difcourfe, whether made by Alderman Pilking-
toit; or Sir Patience Ward, 1can’t be pofitive 3 but
it was concerning an Order of going to 8¢, Fames’s,
or to the Duke of 200k, one of the two ; he did
complatn of that Order, they were complaining
of that Order, and [eemed to me as if they would
have it re-debated 3 1 made Anfwer, it was too
late, for the Court had agreed it

Mr. A, Gen. Was there any Difcourfe con-
cerning the Duke of 2ot while Mr, Pilkinpion
was by ?

Siv H. Tuli», Aiderman Pilkington wwas by, all the
while 152 Lyeot je oas,

Mr. A Gen. And was there any Difcourfe
aboug the Duke of Yo7k ¢

Siv [/, Tuite. I did nevor bear the Duke of York
namea by Aleermen Piilingron af ally as [ remem-
ber ;3 they complained ot the Order made the
Day belore, that Is, concerning gomng to §i,
Jaines’s, or to the Duke of 2ok, feeming to me
as thouch they would nave 1t re-debated ; upon
which I made Anfwer, It wis too late now, for
the Court had zgreed 1t; and then came thefe
Words, [le bath buint onr ity aid 15 comey or
il comy 19 cit o Thireals,

W, Al Gei, Do you fay Cillingtsin was there
when the Difcourte was ¢

Sie . Tulfe, Yes, Sir.

Mr. S. Jefferies, Siv Hairry Tule, 1 would afk
you a Quellion, by your Favour, vou fay there
was then mention of cutting of Throats, and you
iy Mr. Piltingion did not name the Duke of 20if
himfelf, that you can’t fay 5 but you fay he was
there while there was » Diicourfe about going to
congratulate the Duke.

Siv H. Tufz. 1 cannot be pofitive of that 5 we
difcours’d about the Order, that was the Order
thit was made before, to congratulate the Duke
of 207t 5 1 cannot foy that Alderman Pillington
did ever nawe the Duke of 2ork, but be was pre-
Jent at that Difconrfe.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Sic Harry Tulfe, you fay there
was mention made concerning debating the Or-
der, was there mention made of the Order? Did
they name what Order tley would have re-de-
bared 2

Siv I Tule. Yes, Sir. The Order was this, an
Order made the Day before, that we fhould go
and congratulate the King’s fafe Return, and with
the King’s good Leave or Licence, we fhould
then congratulate the Duke of 2ork, that was the
{fubjed&t Matter.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Pilkingtsn was prefent then?

Siv H. Tulfe, He was prefent there.

Mr, S. Fefferies. And upon that Dilcourfe,
pray, Sir Harry Tulfe, did Pilkington fay thefe
Words, He hath burnt the City, and 1s come to

cut our T hroats? _ _
Sir /4, Tulfz, No, Sir, that did not immediately

follow. |
Mr. Sol. Gen, Sir THarry Telfe, what Grder did

they fay they would have re-debaced €
Sir [{. Tudfz, 1took it for the Order made the

Day belore.
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Mr. Sol. Gen. Did they name the Order?

Sir H, Tulfe. 1 did make mention of the Order,
that the Court had agreed it, and it was (oo [a¢e
for that.

L.C.7. He fays it was too late to be debated
or {poke of in Court, [ apprehend it fo.

Mr. Jult. Jones. Was the Duke named, or not?

Sir H, Tulfe. Ar that Time, truly, Sir, 1 can-
not politively fay he was named ; for the Debate
was about the’Order made to congratulate the
Duke of 2ork, or of going to ¢, Fames’s 3 one of
them, I am {ure, was named, but I cannot be
poliive.

Jury-man, 1 defire to know whether this Gen-
tleman was there all the while,

Sir f1, Tul’e. My Lord, [ believe T was there all
the Time that there was a Word fpoke in this
Matter, the whole Time,

Mr. S, Jefferies, Siv Harry Tulfe, T would afk
you another Queftion: Who did you apprehend to
be meant, when Piitizgion faid, He hath burnt che
City 2 Who do you think he meant by tha ?

Sir H. Telfe. I will anfwer any thing that the
Courc thinks fic I fhould anfwer. I humbly pray
my Lord and the Court would afk me Queltions.

L. C. }.Sir Hairy Telfe, it was faid the Cicy was
burnt. Pray who did you apprehend was meant
that burnt the City ? Who did they mean ?

air £, Tu'fe. Who did T apprehend, my Logd 2
Truly, my Lord, T think I was the Man that
made Anfwer, that it was /Federt thar burat the
City, becaufe he wag hang’d for it

Mr. Jult, WPubins, Did you apprehend it was
Husert ?

Str M. Tuelfe. My Lord, there was a Talk of
Flubert 5 and I remember Sir Paticiice IVard took
hold of it, and bid him explain himfelf, Who do
you mean? Heubert 2 And then there was a little
Stop among us; and, as I remember, I made this
Anfwer, 1 think, that Hubert burnt the City, for
that he was hang’d for it.

L.C.}. Heark yous; T would afk you one
Queftion, if you pleafe; You heard the Expreflion
of cutting of Throati, be is, or will come to cu
oi:r Throals €

Sir H, Tulfe. Yes, my Lord.

L.C.%. Pray who did you apprehend fhould
be meant by thar? He could not mean Hulers,
furcly, for that?

Sir £, Tulfe. My Lord, 1 muft give my Opi-
nion, that it was the Duke of York.

Mr, Thompfon. Did you underitand that he
meant {0 at that Time?

Mr. S. Fefferies.  Siv IViliam Hocker, will you
give an Account of it?

Sir IV, Heoler. My Lord, 1 will, as near as |
can, tellthevery Words; T may lofe fome Words,
but of the Matter of Faét, | am confident 1 thall
mifs nothing. We met in purfvance to an Order
made the Day before s the Order was made to
meet 03 the Monday [ollowing, to wait upon the
King and the Duke of 2ork. My Lord, accord-
ingly, when I came into the Gallery, 1 found
S Geoige Waterman fitting on one Side, and [
fat oppofite to him, and Sir Henry Tulfe at the
End of the Table ; not long after, came in Sir
Patience IVard, my Lord, Sir Paticuce Ward fat
down clofe by me, and Mr, Pilkington ftood at
the other Lind of the Table, oppofite to me.
My Lord, to the belt of my Remembrance and
Beliet, Sir Paticncz Ward did move, that we might
confider this Bulinels of waiting on the sz!cé,

and,
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and, my Lord, Anfwer was made, I do believe,
by Sir Henry Tulfe, that it was now too late, for
my Lord Mayer was come, and would be going 3
upon his faying it was too late in this manner,
Pilkington ftanding at the End of the Table, faid
thefe Wordsy Hath be burat the City, and is be
come to cut-our Throats? Upon this, my Lord, I
reply’d ; Brother Pilkington, faid I, thou art in-
finitely miftaken in this Point; thou mayeft as
well charge it upon a Child unborn, as upon him;
for the Duke of York was as careful in the Fire
to prelerve the City at the fame time, ina Yard
in Coleman-fireet, as any who was by, was ; though
the Afhes came upon our Heads; and I never
knew a Man look more carefully than he did, at
the fame Time. This, my Lord, is the Sub-
ftance, but I cant fay that Mr., Pilkingten made a
Reply either one Way or other, but I think there
was fomething of Hubert {poke befides. Then
Sir George Waterman went away, and I went away
afterwards,

Mr. Att. Gen. So that you are pofitive that Pil-
kingtonn did {ay, be is come to cut our Throats?

Sir IY. Hooker. Hath be burnt the City ¢ And is
be coine to cut our Throals ¢

Mr. S. Fefferics. And did you immediately tell
him this of the Duke of York?

Sir. IV, Hooker. Immediately.

Mr. Sol. Gen, I think you fay it was purfuant to
an Order about waiting on the Duke of Zork ?

M., A, Gen. Did you name the Duke of 2ork 2

Siv. . Hooker. 1 did name the Duke of 2o to
Pilkington, after thefe Words were fpoke.

M. S. Fefferies, Pilkington was there then before
the Difcourfc of the Duke of Zork. Was Sir Pa-
tienice BWard there while the Dif{courfe was, concern-
ing cutting of Throats 2

Sir V. Hooker, T am not able to fwear whether
Sir Patience IWard did hear it or no; undoubtedly
he was there.

Mr, Sol. Gen, Sir William, do you think that
Sir Patiznce Ward did wink when he ftopt his
Mouth, or no?

Sir. ¥, Hooker. Truly I did not {ee him flop
his Mouth,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Sir William, was it plain to you
that he meant the Duke of York?

Sir, /¥, Hooker. 1 am not able to know other
Mens Thoughts; but certainly nothing could ap-
pear miore plain, _

Mr. 8o, Gen, Was the Subjet-matter of Dil-
courfe concerning the Duke of York?

Sir 7Y/, Hooker. About that, and nothing elfe.

Mr, S, Fefferies. He named the Duke of 2or#,
did he ?

Sir I, Hooker. He did not name the Duke of
York; I don’t fay that.

Mr. S. Jefferies. But you named him.

Sir 7V, Hooker, Yes, Sir.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Was that all you difconrs’d of £

Sir 2. Hooker. This is all.

Mr. S. Fefferies, Here is the Order.

Mr, Williams. We agree the Order.

Mr. S. Fefferies, For the prefent we will reft
here, and fee what Account they will give,

Mr. Recorder, May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen, of the Jury: I am of Counfel for
Sit Paticnce Ward, the Defendant, My Lord, as
the Counfel for the King fay they will reft it here,
fo if we fhould reft here too, I think there is no-
thing proved that fticks upon us. My Lord, I
obferve firff, that of all their Witnefles they pro-
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duce ¢oncerning the Words in Court, there is not
one of them all, but the firfk pretends to be a
Penman, and he fays he believes he did write, he
can’t tell whether he writ or no, and he can’t tell
whether he hath his Notes about him, and this is
all we can have of him. And the Truth is, "they
vary fo much among themfelves, that that is
enough to make any one wonder, on the whole
fpeaking of the Words. And we fee thefe wor-
thy Aldermen are very cautious; they did expect
to be call’d upon their Oaths, I did take particu-
lar-Notice of it. The Truth is, my Lord, for
this Matter, it is certainly as grear and heinous a
Crime, asany can be, and I believe thefe Gen-
tlemen will think; that in this Cafe, they fhould
have no lefs Evidence to conviét this Gentleman
of this foul Crime of Perjury, than to conviét
him of any Crime that concerns his Life, The
Truth of it is, if fuch a foul Difreputation and
Scandal fhould ftick, yet the Jury muft have plain
Proof. If there were a rath Word, if there were
a Miftake in a Perfon’s Remembrance, it is not
every Shp that will criminate a Man of Perjury,
it muft be a wilful and corrupt forfivearing a
Man’s felf againft his own Knowledge, and no-
thing lefs than that is fufficient. My Lord, it is
agreed on all Hands, the Record fhews it, that
the Duke hath recovered a Verdiét, The Caufe
went for him. If the Duke would have had 2
Verdi€t, he hath 1t if he would have had more
Damages, for aught I know, he might: he hath
more than an 100,000/, for he hath all Cofts, to
the utmoft Farthing. My Lord, in Cafes of this
Nature, a Man’s Words muft be taken together.
Your Lordfhip will acquaint the Jury, thac if there
be any thing in any Part of his Evidence, that
does explain, that does limit, thar does qualify it,
the whole Difcourfe muft be taken as one intire
Evidence, and that he fhall have the Advantage
of it in every Part, My Lord, the Ufe I would
make of this is to this Purpofe, that whatever
thefe Witnefles fix upon him, they do it by culling
and picking out Pieces of Words; they don’
pretend uvpon their Memory, much lels upon
Writing, that they are able to repeat the whole
Evidence. Your Lordfhip does very well re-
member the Lady Carr’s Cafe, a greater and
plainer Inftance than this, if it were proved as it
was pretended, in Chancery; fhe fwears the ne-
ver received Money of fuch a Man, and the made
a fecond Anfwer, and there fhe fays fhe received
no Money after fuch a time, and it was refolved,
that that fhould be taken together, and that that
was no Perjury. My Lord, we fhall infift upon
the two Things: Firff of all, that the Words
were not fpoken as they are laid, that they were
not fworn by Sit Patience Ward, as they are laid
and charged in the Information ; for they are char-
ged there pofitively and direly, but we fay they
were fpoken with all the Caution that any Man
can fpeak them with, as be belicved, and (o the
beft of bis Memory, and as he apprebended 3 and
this, I fay, circumfcribed with great Caution and
great Tendernefs, If they had bcen fpoken as
they are laid, yet this could not be Perjury 5 that
is the fecond Thing. So that if it fall out that he
was miftaken in this, your Lordfhip will acquaint
the Jury, that a rafb Oath is not Perjury, it it were
fo. My Lord, as to the latter Part, Sir Harry
Tulfe does go a great way; for he fays, that he
can’t take upon him to fay, that Siv Paticice Ward
ever faw Mr. Pilkington 5 if he did never {ee Mr.
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Pilkington, how can he be charged with Perjury
then, for faying he was not there? Under Favour,
if he did not lee him there, he mufl {wear accord-
ing to his Senfes, that he was not there, and you

cannot charge Perjury upon that. It demonftrates

the Uncertainty of thefe Words, that when they
come to lay the Declaration, they are fain to lay
thefe Words four feveral Ways, asthey do.  And
yet thefe two worthy dldermen f{ay, they took
down the Words that very Day. If thefe Words
were {o uncertain then, though they were writ
down, what fhould make them otherwife now?

Mr. A1, Gen. There hath not been fuch a Word
{aid yet.

Mr., Recorder. We will prove it, Sir.  As (0
the third Pcint, we fay this: It is charged there
was no cutting of Throats, no mention of cutting
of Throats; as to that, my Lord, I take it from
one of their Witnefles Mouths, that is, Mr., Bux-
toiry he fays, that Sir Patignce IV ard fwore, that he
heard no mention of cutting of Throatsy under
Favour, Sir, to fay that there was no mention of
cutting of Throats, that is pofitive, thar there
was no fuch thing fpolkien; but their own Wit
nefs fays, that there was no fuch thing heard, Can
there be a greater Difference than for a Man to
fay, there was no fuch Word froken, and to fay,
there was no fuch Word beard by me? This of
cutting of Threats, 1f it were fpoken at all, tho’
I believe it was 3 tor I bave that good Ogpinion of
thele worthy Aldernien, I mean Sir [7illiaim Heoker
and Sir Iiary Txle, that I prefume there was
fomething abous cutting of Throats; but I an-
fwer, that Sir Paticice IWard might not hear i,
And [ think they have given a very good Ground
forit:-Says Sir Hariry Tulfe, Is he, or will he, come
to cut our Throats? Whether 1t were #5, or whe-
ther it were zoill, that he cannot tell.  Sir 27illiam
Hooker, fays he, 15 cozise to cut our Throats : One
{peaks affirmatively, the other interrogatively,
Sit Hewry Tulfe fays it was our Throats 5 {ays Sir
Ivilliam Fasker, the Throats of our IWives and Chil-
dréii. Do not thefe twe Aldermen differ as much
between themfelves, as either or both of them do
with St Pafizice Ward, when Sir Harry Tulfe
fhall fay, there was no FVives and Children mens
tioned ? It is no Refle@tion atall, and I'hope there
will be no Caufe to reflect upon the other Alder-
man, The snext Peint 1s, that there was a Dils
courfe concerning the Duke of Zorx, and that it
was betore Mr. Pilbingtsn came in: Here the
Witnelles vary extremely ; one fays before he came
i3 another lays, before he came to the Table; an-
other fays, while he was in the Roomi 5 all thefe Va-
rieties we find in the Witnefies that {fwear the
Words out of Sir Patieince Ward's Mouth 5 and
certainly Sir Paticirce IVard would never {ay thefe
Words ; 1t is impoffible to fay the Difcourfe con-
cerning the Duke was ended, when in the very
next Words he fays, the Duke was not named at
all: For, my Lord, Sir Feary Tuife fays, he was
never named. But, my Lord, befides this, if I
fay he was not there in the Sight and View of Sir
Paticnee IVard, he is not guilty, be it true or falfe,
thac he was there before the Difcourfe ended 4
for it is a long Room, and no Man can fay but 2
Man might be behind Sir Patience Ward as he fat
at the Table. The fecond Thing, my Lord, is
this, that the Duke was not named ; that he 1s
charged to have fworn. My Lord, the Evidence
that he delivered was, that the Duke was not
named i his Hearing.  Now Sir Harry Tulfe fays
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the very fame that Sir. Patience I ard did, that there
was a Difcour{e about an Order, he fays, but no-
body named the Duke, and Sic Willian Hooker
fays, the Duke was not named.

Mr. Jult, ”ithins. e {ays he cannot fay he was
inamed.

Mr. Recorder. *Till after the Words fpoken;
and, my Lord, it was {o doubtful, that it feems
there was nced of Explication ; for the Words,
(under Favour) as proved, do not relate to cut-
ting of Throats, but to the burming of the Ciry
and what Sir 2Villiam Hooker fays afterwards, makes
it more plain. If we prove thefe Things, that
Sir Patience Ward carried himfelf thus, if he ex-
preffed himielf with fo much Caution, under Fa-
vour, that doth clearly avoid this Charge in the
Informartion. But, my Lord, if there were Per-
jJury, it was committed at the Trial of Mr. Pil-
kington, and at that Trial, when it was commit-
ted, 1t was belt underltood; for here 1s no new
Evidence as to the Words fpoken in the Gallery ;
therefore, under Favour, the Perjury was as ob-
fervable then, and more, becauie it was frefh
then., Now it 15 faid, that it was with great
Aftonifhment; we [hall give in Evidence, that chere
was no {uch Apprehenfion, that the Conrt, thag
the Councif, that every body did apprehend it as
delivered with that Caution as I have opened it to
your Lordthip: Firft, Sir George Fefferies, in the
very Conclulion, afked him, if there were nothing
fpoke of the Duke while Mr. Pilkington was by.
No, faith he, not to the beft of my Memory, faith
Sir Patieice Hard,  Saith Siv George Fefferies, by
Reply, Your Invention is better than your Memory.
Surely that were the moft impertinent Thing in
the World, if it had been otherwife. And every
body knows Sir George Fefferies isa Man that would
not have faid fuch a Thing, if he had not wholly
referr’d to his Memory, and given him an Occa-
cafion for that Reply.  And Mr, §olicitor, he fays
thefe Words, in repeating the Evidence to the Ju-
ry: Sir PaliencelVard goes a great way to confirm
that of the other Aldermen, and that fhews, that
they did obferve it far enough from Perjury ;
and my Lord Chief Fuflice, my Lord, when he
came to diret the Jury, he fays, that Sir Pa-
tieuce Ward had faid, that, as he conceived, there
was nc mention of cutting of Throats, and fo
on; and fays he, it is ealy to forget fuch Cir-
cumftances. If, 1n the Judgment of my Lord
Chief Juftice, it were an ealy thing to forger,
can it be wilful Perjury in any Man to teftify thac
which was fpoken as he conceiv’d? And truly, my
Lord, it 15 the more for that my Lord Chief
Tultice was upon his Oath as well as the Witnef~
ies ¢ And your Lordihips, that far with him,
would have rectihed my Lord Chief Juftice, if
he had mifapprehended him: And the Jury did
apprehend it fo, and looked upon Sir Paticuce
HWard’s Evidence as a Confirmation. My Lord,
all thefe things arc negative, and they do refer
to the Memory, and that my Lord Chief Juftice
faid a Man may eally forget, and that is enough
to excufe him. Befides, my Lord, this was given
in Evidence feven or eicht Months after the
Time thartheWords were fpoken ; and if any Man
were to repeat what was faid at this Bar, no
doubt but in feven or eight Months they would
ditter more than Sir Patience IVard did from thele
Gentlemen. Befides, my Lord, he is a Man of
good Reputation and Credit, he hath born great
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don, and this a Crime for mean Perfons, and we
think much les Evidence than this will fatisfy
yoar Lordfhip. We will prove what was faid at
the Trial, not by the imperfet Memories of
People that did not write, or cannot tell whe-
ther they writ or not; but by fome that did take
very exac Notes, and efpecially by one that
wrote the Whole, _

Mr. Williams. My Lord, the Queftion s, what
was fpoken by Sir Patience ard. My Lord, if
Sir Patience Ward did not {wear as they have laid
it in the Information, Sir Paticnce Ward 1s not
guilty. They have laid the Information thus:
That as to the cutting of Throats it was fworn
pofitively by Sir Patzence Wardy, butif Sir Patience
Ward did only {peak as by Hearfay, as he heard,
that there was no mention of cutting of Throats
in his hearing, then we are not gulty. My
Lord, how far then the Evidence doth touch us
in this Matter, how far they have proved us
guilty, is to be confidered. I do not find, that
any one Wicnefs in this Trial fays, that Sir Pa-
ticnce Ward did fwear pofitively, that there was
no mention of cutting of Throats, Lvery Man
that {peaks, fpeaks to the beft of his Memory, and
to the beft of his Knowledge, and no otherwife;
and I will appeal to your Lordfhip, upon what
every Witnefls hath faid, whether any Witnefs
can be conviéted of Perjury 3 for every Man hath
appealed to his Memory. Obferve every Wit.
nels, and not any of them do agree. The two
Aldermen that were then fworn, one of them
Sir Hariy Tulfe, tell you of the Difcourfe con-
cerning coming to burn the City, and cutting
of Throats ; as I take it, Sir Harry Tuife faid it
by way of Queftion, Is be come, 15 be come 10 cut
our Throats? Sir Witliam Hooker tells it pofitively,
H is come, ke is come to cut our Throats, If Gen-
tlemen do vary, as thefe two Witnefies, and have
feveral Apprehenfions of the fame thing, it ought
to have no Influence upon this, In this Cale,
we are here for wilful Perjury, 1f it be a Mif-
take of the Memory, that will never come up to
Perjury. We will make it out, that 1t was {po-
ken with great Caution and Reftriction. And
then for the other of the two Affignments, if
this be true, that there was no Difcourfe of the
Duke of 22rk, then the fecond will naturally fall.
The firft thing is this, that he fhould {wear there
was no Difcourle of the Duke of 26745 if this
be true, that there was no Difcourfe of the
Duke of 2ork, then the fecond will fall, If the
Difcourfe of the Duke of 1ok was done before
Mpr. Pilkington came into the Room, if there were
no Difcourfe of the Duke of 2ork, it is impof-
fible that fhould be the Meaning. And here I
muft obferve, Sit Harry Tulfe 1s a Thoufand Wit-
neffes in this Cale; he tells you exprefly, that
there was no Difcourfe of the Duke of Zork, he
hath told you plainly there was no Dilcourfe of
the Duke of York, nor any Dilcourfe of the
Duke’s Name; and what fays Sir Harry Tulfe ?
He fays very plainly, there was a Difcourfe of an
Order made the Day before. We allow the Duke
is mention’d in that Order, but the Queftion is,
whether there was mention of the Duke’s Name
at this Time. If you believe Sir Harry Tulfe,
there was no mention of the Duke’s Name.

Mr. Juft, Fones, He did not remember, that
there was. He did not remember, that the
Duke of 2ok was named.

Sic I Winwingtonn. By any body.

4

for Perjury.

Mr. juft, Fones, He does not fay, that the Duke

was not named.

Mr. Williams. Sir Harry Tulle is as much oblio=
ed to remember in this Cafe as any Man here,
This will be a mighty Evidence to juttify my
Client, then the Perjury will certainly fall wpon
th_efe, but we will clear this too. In this Magter
Sir Pattence Ward was 2 moft cautious Evidence,
{o is e, he did not fay pofitively, that there was
no mention of the Duke’s Name, but he fays, to
the beft of his Remembrance. So that there is nothine
proved againlt us. We will call Mr. Blazey, Mr.
Blaney 15 a thoufand Men in this Cafe,

Sir Geor. Fefferies. Is he fo?

Mr., Williams, He takes Notes exactly. We will
tell you what was {worn by Sir Patience Iard.

Sir Geor, Fefferies. 1 have known him out in a
Verdi&t,

Mr. Pollexfen. That the Duke of 257%’s Name
was named in the Difcourfe, is not proved ; no-
body fays it was before the Words fpoken.

Mr. Juft. Fones. After the Words fpoken ; it was
then he tells you; but it was not before the Time
of the Difcourfe.

Mr, Pollexfen, There was a Difcourfe of going to
§t. famcs’s, and upon this Difcourfe thefe Words
were {pcken, that Pikington did fpeak ;5 bur the
naming the Duke was after the fpeaking of the
Words in the Declaration ; therefore, there being
nobody that docs prove, that the Duke was named
in any Difcourfe preceding the Words fpoken by
Pilkington, I think it is no Evidence at all,

L.C.}. You make things fo intricate, that no
Man fhall be able to underftand what another fays,
but moft take it as you would have it, When it
was faid he had burnt the City, well, what fays
Cother? Sir William Hooker, I think, makes An-
fwer, {ays he, the Duke is as innocent as a Child,
and he was one that endeavoured tofave it, Muft
not we underftand, now, that this was a Difcourfe
of the Duke, all this while?

Mr. Pollexfen, My Lord, the Queftion is, whe-
ther there were any fuch Difcourfe preceding the
Words, or any thing in Queftion, but what hap-
pened after the Words.

Sir Geo. Treby. If the Duke were not named be-
fore the Words, can the Name of the Duke refer
to the expounding of them?

Sir Geor, Fefferies. No ;5 but Hubert, ten Years
after he was hang’d.

Sir Fr, Winnington. My Lord, 1 fee we arc in
Quettion for corrupt and wilful Perjury.

L. L. 7. You had beft call your Witnefles: for
aught appears, you are {o yet.

Sir F. Winnington. We will call our Witneffes,
and fhew what he did {wear.—— Mr, Blaney, will
you acquaint my Lord and the Jury, whether you
were by at that Trial; and give an Account ok
what you know Sir Paticiice Ward did fwear, and
whether you took any Notes?

Mr. Blaney, 1 was prefent at the Trial between
his Royal Highnefs and Mr. Pikington; 1 did fic
upon one of thofe Stools there, and I did take
Notes, to the beft of my Skill,

Sir Geo. Feflerizs. Have you your Notes !

. Mr. Blaney. Yes, Sir.

Mt Villiams. Firlt of all, acquaint my Lord
and the Jury, what was fworn by Sir Patience IV ard.

Mr. Blaney. Having received a Subpara irom
Sir Paticuce Ward about this Matter, 1 looked
over my Notes, and turned down the Leaves in
feveral Places,

' Mr,
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M. Williams. Tell what Sir Patience Ward fwore
concerning cutting of Throats; and what that
was : Recollect yourlelf about what was fworn by
Sir Patieice I/ard concerning cutting of T hroats.

Mr. Ait, Gen. Pray, Sir, don’t look upon your
Notes.

Sic £, Winmington, Your Witnefs don’t remem-
ber whether he writ Notes or no.

Mr. Blaney. 1 have read my Notes To-day,
again, and looked upon them ; Ido find it is thus,
and 1 do really believe to be true s for I don’t
know I ever altered any Man’s Evidence, either
in Subltance, or Form. He did then fay, Uron
my Qath, if 1t were Ibe laft Word I was tg fpeak, T
did not bear aie Word of cutting Throats,

Mr. #illiams. Pray, Sir, fay as he faid,

Mr, Blaney, Thefe were the Words: Upon the
Oath I bave taken, if it were the laff Word I was to
Jpeaky I did not bear one Word of cutting of Throats.

Sir F. Winnington. Was it writ fo in your Notes
at that Time?

Mr. Blaney. It is fo in my Notes,

Sir F. Whanington. Are your Notes alter’d fince?

Mr, Dianey. No, Sir.

Siv F. [Vinuington, There was no Thought of
Perjury then,

Sir Geo, Fefferies. Not by him, but by others,

Mr., Williams, Are thefe the Notes that were
then taken?

Mr, Blaney. Thefe are the Notes that were then
taken,

Sir F, Winnington. 1 afk you this; did you take

them as he faid them ? | |
Mr. Blaney. 1 did, to the beft of my Skill, nel-

ther added nor diminithed 5 Sir Patience in the
Beginning of his Evidence did {ay thefe Words:
That there was nothing mentioned of the Duke,

but of §t. Fames’s, in his Hearing,
Sir. F, Winnington. Are you fure the Words are

there ¢

Mr, Blaney, They are here. Any Man that
could read my Short-hand may fee it

Siv F. Winnington, W re the Words then taken?

Mr. Blancy. They were then taken,

Str F. Winington, Are they altered [ince?

Mr, Blanzy. They are not, Sir.

Sit F. Wningion. How are the Words?

M. Blasiey. That there was nothing mention’d
of the Duke’s Name, but of S Fames’s, in his
Hearing.

Mer, IFilliams. If this be true, it fhuts out the
fecond Affignment; but however we will alk him
concerning the other Affignment, whether there
was any Difcourle concerning the Duoke after
Dilkiyoton came 1n.

Mr. Blancy. 1t you pleafe, Mr. S, Fefferies was
pleafed to prefs it upon Sir Patience Ward, Sir,
vou were pleafed to afk the Queftion, Was all
the Dilcourfe over concerning going to S,
“fames's, or the Duke of York, before My, Pil-
kington came in? Was it all over before Mr, Pi.
tington came in? And Mr. S. Fefferies then faid —

Sir G. Fefferies. What did he anfwer o my
Queftion ? Was there nothing faid of it while he
was by ¢ _

Mr. Blaney. Sit Patieice Ward faid, Not one Sylla-
ble of it to my Memorys whereupon Sir George
Felferies (aid, Your Lirvention 1s better than your Me-
mory, And he reply’d, my Lord, [ thank God, I
bave a good Memory, though perbaps that Gentleman

bath not. o _
Mr. Williams, Was this written down in your

Book?
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Mr. Blaney. It was then taken by me in Writing,
in my Book.

Mr. Williams. Is any thing altered ?

Mr. Blaney. Not one Word,

Mr. Williams. Did you write them fitting there
as they were fpoken? -

Mr. Blaney. Juft as he {aid them: There I fat
where Mr. Owen fits now,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Do you fwear you remember any
Part of 1t?

Mr. Blaney. Sir, this 1 do remember, as well ag
I can remember any thing in the World.

Mr. A, Geir.  Blauey, tell me pofitively what
he faid.

M. Blaney, He faid, Not ane Syllable of it, to my
Memary s 1 do remember 1t, '

Mr. Att. Gen. Upon what Queftion ?

Mr. Blaney, Sir, of the Duke’s being not na-
med, but St Fames’s, 1 do remember likewife ;
but I can’t well fay any thing of the Bufinefs of
cutting of Throats ; I find it in my Book unaltered,
I do not know that I am miftaken.

Mr. S, Fefferies. Heark you, Mr. Blaney; 1
know his Notes have been miftaken fometimes
I remember once, upon Raree-fhow Bufinels, they
were miftaken, Upon your Oath, Sir, did you
hear Sir Patience Ward fpeak at that Time any
Words concerning a Law-fuit? Look upon your
Notes.

Mr. Blaney. Sir, I will fo.

Mr. Pollexfen. What have we to do with Raree-
Show ? Are we trying that?

Mr. Jult. #ithins. Gentlemen, don’t be angty,
let the Canfe be tried fairly.,

Mr. S. Fefferies. 1 may afk a Queftion, I hope.
[ afk a fair Queftion, I would fain meet with that
among his Charaélers.

Mr, Blaney. Sir, I would not bave looked it over,
if I bad met with any fuch thing in my Notes.

Mr, A1, Gen. Can you fwear any thing pofitives
ly upen your Notes?

Mr, S. Fefferies, It 1s fome Dilcourfe near the

Queftion.
Mr. Blaney. Thein, Sir, indeed it is not in my

Notes,
Mr. S. Fefferies. Did Sir Patience Ward ufe the

Word pofitively at any time in your Notes ; and
tell us to what?

Mr. Att. Gen. Whether he was pofitive to any
one Thing®

Mr. S. Jefferies. Did he fwear pofitively to any
cne Thing? And tell us to what? I defire to be
futisfied by Mr, Blaney’s Notes, Some Men can
take Notes on the one Side, and forget Things
on t'other.

Mr., #illiams, Come, Mr. Beaver,

Mr, Blaney. I dow’t fee the Word pofitive.

Mr. S. Fefferies. No, not at all.

Mr. Blaney, I dow’t pretend to fay I have writier
every Word,

Mr. S. Jefferies. Bat you do pretend to write
more than he faid.

Mr. Williams. What he writ is true,

Sir . Winnington, He does not undertake to
fay he writ every Word that pafs’d, but whether
or no he writ any Word that was not faid.  Is all
that you writ ctrue ?

Mr. Blaney, I werily belicve it is tiue,

L.C.7. Is that any manner of Satisfaction
when he hath not taken all that was faid, and fo
{poiled the Senfe, by leaving out fome of the
Words?

M.
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Mr. Jult, ¥ithins. How 15 1t poflible for a Man
to be a good Witnefs, that comes and {wears in one
Part, I know nothing of any fuch Words; and at
another Time fays he does not write all in his
Notes?

Sir G. Treby, Let that pafs for a Rule, and then
no Witnefs they produce can be believed,

Sir L. [Vinuington, They have given Evidence by
Witnelles wiva voce, without Notes, and make an
Objetion, becaufe he does not remember every
Paffage ; therefore he fignifies nothing, We urge
it in point of Evidence, my Lords; he 1s known
to be a Man very dexterous in writing Short-hand ;
in a marterial Thing he {wears to the beft of his
Remembrance. He took them from the Mouth
of the Perfon that {wore at that Time. My
Lord, we afked him whether he writ any thing
that was not faid. We leave it in point of iy
dence, my Lord, to encounter theirs.

Me, #illiams. We would give our Evidence in,
if they would give us Leave. Richard Beaver,
Were vou by, at Mr, Pilkington’s Trial ?

Mr. Beaver, My Lord, 1 was by, all thewhile.

Mr. Jult, Fones. Did you take Noges ?

Mr. t¥illiams. Were you prefent at the Trial of
Mr, Piltington ?

Mr. Beaver, I was prefent.

Mr. WWilliams, Can you remember what was
fworn by Sir Paticnce IVard upon that Trial 2

Mr. Beaverr. Yes, Sir,

Mr. [Zilliams. Canyou remember what Sir Pa-
vizitce Iard {wore, concerning cucting of Throats ?

Mr. Beaver. My Lord, he did fay, That to his
beft Remembrance the Difcourfe was over before Pil-
kington came into the Room. To the beft of my
Remembrance, my Lord, that Difcourfe concern-
ing the Duke was over before Pilkington came
into the Room.

Mr. Williams. How did he exprefs it? Pray
{wear what Sir Patience Ward fpake; tell how he

exprefled himfelf.
Mr. Beaver. Sir Patience Ward did fay, to the

belt of his Remembrance, That the Difcourle con-
cerming his Highnefs the Duke of 2%+ was over
before Sheriff Pilkington came into the Room,
where they were fmoaking Tobacco.

Mr. Williams. He faid thefe Words to the belt
of his Remembrance ?

Mr. Beaver. He did fo. Upon which Sir Geerge
Jefferies faid again to him, that he had a good Me-
mory, and he faid he had, and my Lord Chief
Juftice faid, You may thank God you have a good
Memory 3 my Lord Chief Fuftice himfelf faid fo,

Mr. IVilliams. What did he fay ?

Mr. Beaver. To the beft of his Knowledge, he
did not hear any thing of cutting of Throats.

oIr Fr. Winwiigion. Can you remember the Way
of his Expreflion ?

Mr., Beaver. The Way of his Expreflion was,
as | remember, to the belt of my Remembrance,
be did ftrike his Hand upon his Breaft, and fid,
When Sheriff’ Pilkington came in, he frruck his
Fand upon his Breaft, and afked him if he meant
Hubert, fo he faid, upon bis Salvation, or to the beft
of his Knowledge.

Str £, Winnington. What did he fay?

Mr, Beaver., He faid -

Sir &r, Winninglon. What did he fay concerning
culling of Throats ?

Mr. Beaver. He faid he did not hear any thing,
15 bhe biicved,

Mr. Jaft, Foues, Of what ?

Jor Perjury.
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Mr, Beaver. Of cutting of Throats.

Mz, Juft, Fones. Isthatall he faid, he did not hear
any thing of cutting of Throats?

L. C. 7. You Friend 5 you faid that Sir Patience
Ward faid hedid not remember any thing of cut-
ting of Throats 3 did you fay fo?

Mr. Begver. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. And thereupon you {ay, My Lord Chief
Fuftice did commend his Memory for it; pry’chee,
how came he to be praifed for fuch a great Memo-
ry, when he faid he did not remember any thing ?
Thou halt not laid the Plot well together,

Mr. Jult. Fithins. Was he commended becaufe
he faid he did not remember ?

Mr. Juft. Foies, Where did you ftand ?

Mr. Beaver. 1 ftood over-againlt Sir Patience
Ward, .

My, Juit. Fowes. Did you hear well 2

Mr. beaver. Yes, my Lord, [ heard every Word.
He faid hegot Honour by fpeaking Words againft
the Duke of 204,

Mr, Juft, Fones. What s that 2

Mr. Beaver, That Pilkingtonhad got Honour by
fpeaking againft his Highnefs the Duke of 2574,

Mr. S. Fefferies. In the meantime look that Parc
out in your Notes, that he {peaks of, Now [
would afk youa Queition, Iriend.

Mr. Aut. Gen. Pray will you recolleé yourfelf ?
Did you hear Sir Patience Ward fay, to the beft of
his Remembrance the Difcourfe concerning the
Duke of 20+ % was ended before Pifkington came in ?
Pray what did he f{ay, touching the Difcourfe of
the Duke of Zoik ¢

Mr. Beaver, Sir, he faid to his beflt Remem-
brance, that Difcourfe was over.

Mr. Att, Gen, What Difcourfe !

Mr. Beaver., Concerning his Flighnels, chat it

Was over,
Mr,S. Fefferies. Mr, Beaver, 1 would atk you

a Queftion, becaufe I know you will remember i
prefently, Do you remember any thing Sir Pa-
ticitce Ward {wore, that he never had a Law-{uit
in his Life? Do you remember any thing of that ¢

MTr. Beaver. If you pleafe, Sir, there was fome-
thing faid of that,

Mr, S. Fefferies. Then look that in your Notes
too, Mr. Blaney.—— Pray, upon your Oath, do
you remember he ufed the Word Pojitively ¢

Mr. Beaver. Nothing at all, goftizvely,

L. C.}. Upon my Word, your Memory muft
be commended,

Mr. S, Jefferies. Mr, Beaver, where do you
live, Mr, Beaver ¢

Mr, Beaver. I live, Sir! You know well enough,
Sir : What would you fay tome?

Mr. S, Fefferies. 1 only defire to know where
you live, Sir,

Mr. Beaver, | live in Soaper-Lane, Sir.
Mr. Williams, He is an honeft Man.
commended when he was Church-warden.

Mr., S. Fefferies, Many a wife Man hath been

in that Employ.
Mt Williams. Mr. Crifp, you were prefent at the

Trial between his Royal Highnefs and Mr, Pil-
kinglo.

Mr. Crifp. My Lord; I'was prefent here.

Mr. Williams. Can youremember, Sir, what was
fworn by Sir Patience Ward concerning custing of

T hroals, and how he {ware 1t ¢
Mr, Crifp. I cannot giveany perfeCt Account :

I was here, and a great many Expreflions I did
hear,

He was
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hear, a great many I did nothear. I heard Sir
Henry Tuife otve fome Account, and Sir Piliam
Heoker, that Mr. Pikington thould fay fuch Words
apout the Duke’s being come - -

Mr, Juit. iPubins. Go on, pray, Gentlemen.

M, 7illicns, Can you fay any thing of what
Sir Pasiznce IVard fware about cutting of Throats?

Mr. Crifp, Sir Paticice [7ard was {peaking whe-
ther or no fuch Words were {poken that were
fvore s he did fay chere was fomething faid, that be
weas cone 1o bira the City, that he did confefs @ but
my (0 cnltay of Threals, there wasnot a Word fpo-
ken i my Hearing, or to the belt of my Remen-
branee, or fomewing to that Purpole, I cannor be
pefitve,

Mr. /3 Gams. Can you be pofitive i this, Sir,
that he Gaid i bis Llearing, or [eantiot be pojitive &

Mr, Crifp. 1rook 1t in that Way, Sir,

Mr. JFilfians, Pray, Mr. Crifp, 1 would afk you
this; Do you remember any thing he fud, whe-
ther Mr, Pillington was in the Room, when there
was any Difcourle of his Royal Highnels, or the
Duke of 1%k ¢

Mr. Crif, To the belt of my Memory, he
fpake it thus: We were difcourfing together about
coing to wait on his Majelty, and then to go to
his Roya! Highnels 5 and we entered into {ome
oth=r Diltourie 3 and when we were difcourling of
that, Mr, Pillington came to the Tableto us: It
was concerning the Work of the Day ;5 aud when
we were about that Difcouarle, Mr, PiLizston came
to us to the Table.  Whether he faid he was not
in the Room, or came into the Room then, |
can’cteil 5 but I remember he faid he came to the
Table to us when we were abeut this Dilcourfe,

Sir Fr, iuaington. Do you remember any thing
that my Lerd Chicf Juflice tud to Sir Patience
I7ard’s Evidence ?

Mr. Crip, That 1 remember more than any
other Particular, becaufe Sir George Jeferies had
made fome Refletion upon Sir Paticnce 1ard,
and my Lerd faid, Sir Patience, that is ufual with
Counlel to fpeak foto T vidence 5 but do you go
on with your Kvilence 1or all chat, fays my Lord
Chicf fuflices Sir Paticnee, recollect yourfelf s 1t
5 fuppaled by vour Lividence, that you leave oug
thole Words, cither abong the Duke of Zor£’s be-
ing named, or about ceiting of Throa!s 3 therefore,
St Patiznce, recollelt yourlelf, Says Sir Patieice,
I do fpeak ic to the belt of wy Ademory. Says Sir
(7eeroe Fefferies, upon that or fome other Time,
Gy Inwention is belter than veur Memory, which 1
took more Notice of than other Things.

Siv Lo Wniingion. When my Lord Chief jufiice
bade him recolleé himfelf, how did he exprels
himtelf? Did he fay, to the teft of his dsemory ¢

N, Ciifr. That be did, pohuvely.

Mr, I tliams. Wir. Crifp, recollet yourlf, as
nearas may oe: When my Lerd Chief Fuflice mace
that Anfwer, either to thofe Words of cutting of
Threats, or the Duke of 2o7’s being mentioned ;
was it in the Conclufion of his Evidence

Nir. Crifs. It was towards the Conclufion 5 for
1 wentaway, being very much fweliered.

Mr. S. Felferies. Mr. Crifp, did you hear Sir Pa-
tience ard 1oy, in his Evidence, that he never
had any Suie ?

M. Crifp, He did fpeak fomething when youdid
reflect upon him, 1 dow’t remember that ever 1had
anytsire to do with Conrts 5 ey Eufinefs 15 al Home.

WS, Fefleries, A further Quethion 1 afk o—
can you teil, upoen your Oath, whether

sy
- : Fr N
1. it :fr':

Y
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Sir Paticirce Ward {wore any thing pofitively ?

Mr. Crifp. Idon’t know, Sir; Itook no Notes
at all 5 I cannot {fwear, or declare thofe Words
were not fpoken 5 but fill it was in bis Hearing, or
the beft of bis Aemory.

Mr. S, Fefferici. Do you remember he ever ufed
the Word pajitively, or was pofitive in any Part of
that T'rial ¢

Mr. Crifp. 1 do remember he fpoke it very po-
finvely 5 bue whether be fad the Word pofirive, 1
can’t fay : But {ti}l it was with this Refervation,

Mr.S. Fefferies. Heark you, Mr. Crifp, 1 will
afk you one Thing more. Do you take it upon
your Oarth pofitively, that he uled either to the
bifl of bis Niemory, or the bt of bis Belief, in any
thing he faid ¢

Mr. Crifp, In ks Anlwer to my Lord Chief Fy-
Shice he did.

Mr. §, jejferies. In any other Parry will you take
it upon your Oath, pofitively, that he ever ufed the
bejt of his Remembrance, or the beft of bis Belief 2

Vr. Crifp. 1 faud before, Idid not fixit in my
Memory.

Ste f. Wiinington, My Lord, he thinks it con-
venient to fay to the belt of his Memory too ———
Call Mr. Wright.

Here the King’s Connfel attempted to remark on the
Evidence,

Mr, Wiliiams. Pray, my Lord, when we have
given all our Evidence intire, if they have any
Oblervation, we will fubmit toit; but to remark
upen every Witnefs, would occafion too many
Interruptions, We would give our Evidence in-
tire.

L.C. 7. Youwill agree, that they may afk a
Queftion, when you have done with them ?

Mr. Luolt (to Mr. H-right). Was you prefent at
the Trial between his Royal Highinelsand Mr. Pil-
Kiigton ¢

Mr. Viight, Yes, Siry and Sir Paticuce Ward,
I remember, was alked this Quellion, Whether
he heard any Wordsconcerning killing, or cutting
of Throatss and Str Paticnce Ward{aid, For killing,
I heard that Difeourfe s but for cutting of Throats, be
never meiligied,

Mr. Williams. You are a Gentleman that exer-
cile your Viemory 5 pray, Sir, did he fay any thing
of cutiing of Throats?

My [Filliams, Towasto bis Hearing, or the beft of
bis Remembrance 3 he did 1c very cautioufly.

Mr. Williams. Was it as he believed or remem-
bered, My, Bright 2 Did he fay pofitively there
was no Difcour{e of cutting of T hroats, pofitively,
or with any Reference to his Hearing ?

Mr., Hrigat, As far as I can remember, thus he
ialg, Fhere was a Difcourle concerning firing 1h¢
City, bet st concerining cutting of Throats.

Mr. I7liams. Did he fay that pofitively, orto
the befl of his Underftanding 2

Mr. Fiight. The Occafion of it was this, Sir,
whether Nir. Pilkington was prefent when the Dif-
courle wasabout wanting on his Majefty, to con-
gratulate his coming to Town from Newmarket,
and his Royal Elighnefss Sir Patience Ward did
believe hie was not then prefent when the Difcourle
was; he was in Guild.hall, with the Lord Mayor,
hicenfing of Ale-houles.

Ste 7. inkington, When he did mention that
about cxtting of Throats, how did he exprefs him-
{L'ii :

Mr.
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fuch WWord [poken.

Mr, S Fefferies. I would ask your Parfon one
Quettion.

Mr. Wright. What you pleafe, Sir George.

Mr. A, Gen. Can you {wear yourfelf pofirive-
ly what he faid ?

Mr. Wright. I fivear thus far, according to my

Remembrance.
Mr. S. 7fﬁ'ﬁ'ie.f. I would ask him a Queftion.---

Wir. Att. Gen. All Iflues muft be tried by Belief

or Memory 5 what new Practice is this? Can you
{wear this upon your Oath, or do you only fuy, I
think or believe it ? _

Mr. Wright, 1 {peak to the beft of my Remem-
branc:.

Mr. S. efferies. Mr. Wright, I would ask you
a Queftion. If I rake you right, at the Beginning,

there was aTalk concerning killing and cutting of
Throats; my Lord, I appeal to the Memory of

the Court and the Jury, if he did not fay it two
or three times over, Mr, Wright, remember
what [ fay.

Mr. Recorder. He did fay it cautiouly.

Mr. Juft. Penes. He did not infilt upon it.

Mr, S. Yefferies. Was there any Difcourfe, upon
your Oath, when Sir Patience Ward gave his Te-
ftimony, that there was any Dilcourle concerning
killing and cutting of Throats?

Mr., Wrigit. He believed that the Word killing
wwas not fpoken in Mr. Pilkington’s bearing.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Now 1 ask you another Que-
{tion: Now, Mr. #right, pray do you remember,
thac there was any Difcourfe concerning Sir Pa-
tience’s having a Law-fuit, or no Law-{uic?

Mr. IPright. Sir Patience faid this when you made
a Refleétion upon him. My Lord, 1 hope you will

not [uffer me to be abufeds for I never remember [

wwas in any Court upon any Occafion of Law before.
Mr. S. fefferies. Now I would ask you another

Queftion,” Mr. Wright, becaufe you have remem-
bered more than other People have remembered ;
you have, by your Profeffion, an extraordinary
Occafion to uie your Memory ; do you take it up-
on your Qath, that he did give any Evidence poh-
tively?

Mr. Wright. 1 do not remember he vfed the
Word pofitively.

Mr: S. Fefferies. Did he {iear any thing poli-

tively ?

Mr. [Prisht. 1 donot know what you mean by
pofitively.,

Mr. S. Fefferies. Do you take it upon your
Oath, that he did pofitively declare any thing m
that T'rial? Mechinks a Man of your Profeflion
fhould underitand that.

L.C.¥. Did he fpeak pofitively, or the beft of

bis Remembrance? Do not you underftand that
Word?

Mr. 8. Fefferies. Or direltly, or categorically,
or any Word you ufes 1 perceive you do not
underftand pofitive, therefore 1 put another
Word. | |

Mr. Ait, Gen, Did he fwear any thing pofi-
tively ?

Mr. right. The moft of his Evidence thot

I heard, was with cautionary Words, 1o the beft of

his Remembrauce.
Mr. S. ¥efferies. Do you remember he fwore

any thing pofitively?

Mr. {fright. 1 cannot remember, Sir, the whole

T'rial.

Vour. HI
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Mr. Wright, Ibelievey or do think, ihere wasno

Mr. 8. Fefferies, Did he fwear any thing di-
rectly or politively ?

Mr. Wright. Thus far he £1id, To tbe beft of my
Remembrance, 1o the beft of my Kuowledge, this
Difcourfe was over,

Mr. §. Fefferies. Did he dire€tly fwear ic?

Mr. Wright. My Lord, he Jpake cautionarily,
thofe Words be fpake diretly.

Mr. Att. Gen, Did he {wear any thing indi-
re¢tly ?

Mr, S. Fefferies.  Where does my Parfon live ?
Where do you live, Mr. #7right? Upon your
Oath, where do you live, before you go?

Mr. Wright. 1t it be a material Quettion, I will
anfwer if.

Mr, Jult, Raymond. You muft do it.

Mr. Wright. My Lord, I live in Effex at J¥alt-
hasflow.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Are you the Minifter of the
Place?

Mr. [Vright.  Yes, Sir.

Mr. 8. Fefferies. He hath heard the Word 4i/-
ling, which nobody elfe heard before,

Mr, 1¢7illiams.  Pray call Colonel Birch.

Mr. Holt. Come, Col, Birch, will you come over
on this Side?

Ma, Williams. Thus, were you at the Trial be-
tween his Royal Highnefs and Mr. Pilkington 2

Col, Birch. 1 was—— My Lord, I am fworn
to {peak the Trath, and the whole Truth, and
nothing but the Truth.  As for {peaking nothing
but the Truch, I fhall be fure to do; as to
{peak the whole Truth, I cannot. My Lord, I
ftood where thofe Gentlemen do: Sometimes I
could hear, fometimes 1 fell back, and could not
hear, fo that indeed I cannot fpeak to any one
iS.EI'lEEnCE as it was delivered. This is all I can

2Y.

Mr. #lliams.  Then fay what you can.

Mr, Holt. Colonel, pleafe to go your own
way.

Col, Birch, My Lord, that which I took No-
tice of was the Cantion that I obferved Sir Pa-
tience fYard 1o give his Evidence with, that
was the principal Thing; I heard fome Pieces
of other Things, and then by-and-by I was put
out of Hearing, But methought it was fomething
Srange, becanfe I have wnet ufualiy beard the like
and therefore I charged my Memory wuith ity thac
s, Some Things be faid to the beft of Lis Memory,
cther Things as be remembred, or to the beft of bis
Kiowledge y thefe were the Things 1bat 1 thaiged
my Memory withal, but lo wwbat Sentence be apylied,
I am not able to give your Lordfhiy an cdccount upon
my Qath.

Mr. Williams, Colonel Birch, did you oblerve
this in giving his Evidence, generally : Was it ac-
cording to his Remembrance, or czutioufly?

Col. Birch. That was the main Thing he {poke
of 5 what be did in the general, was with Cantion.

Mr. Attor. Gen, Can you judge of that by what

you heard ? _
Col. Birch. 1am very ancient, Mr. Altorney;

but I can judge of a Man’s Caution by his {peak-
Ing.

“Mr. Attor. Gen, Colonel, did you fee him {trike
his Hand upon his Breaft ?

Col. Birch. 1 do not remember. I cannot apply it
to any Sentence 5 but from henceforth I will never
give Evidence, but what I can do direétly.

Mr. [Plliams.  Mr. Northey, were you at the
Trial between his Royal Highnefs and Mr. Pilking-
{5i £ 4 R Mr.
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Mr. Northey, My Lord, 1 was there, and
ftood behind there, bur I could not hear very
perfectly, to kaow any Sentences fully.

Mr. Williams.  'What did you obferve?

Mr. Northey. 1 do remember that Sir Patience
Ward did feveral times fay, fo 2he beft of bis Me-
inory, aid to the beft of bis Knowledge, one Time tar-
ticularly, Sir George Jefteries did pariicularly fay,
that bis Invention was belter than bis Memory,

Mr. Thompfon.  Was that towards the Conclu-
fion of his Evidence?

Mr. Nortley, He did it feveral times,

Mr. Thompfen.  But that ime, Sir?

Mr. Northey, He did ficear very cautionfly to the
ocf of bis Remembrances 1 cannot, my Lord, fuy
what he {wore.

Mr. S. Fefferies. You heard my Queftion: When
I faid to him s Invention was better than his
Memory, upon your Oath, upon what Occafion
was 1¢?

Mr. Nerthey. Really I cannot fay, Sir George,
what 3 but your Voice being much louder thau other
s, 1 heard you plainly.

Mer, [fofs. Mr. Nelfon, were you at the Tual:

Vir. elfpr. My Lord, 1 was prefent ar the
Trial, a=d in jomne Caes Str Patience Ward did
rely upon bis Meinory, tor dir George told himy fiy
{avention was better than bis Ademoiy.

Mr. IZiliams. Do you remember generally he
did fo?

Mr, Neloir. 1 had not remembred ihis, Ay 3il-
tams, if it bad wot becn for Sir George Jefieries’s
KReply.

Sit Fr. I aniigten. Mr. Baker, pray will you
telt my Lord what you know of Sir Paticuce
Prid's miving Lvidence !

ivir, Baker. My Lord, according to the beft
of my Remembrance, my Lord Chief Juftice
Pemiertor axd ay, Sir Palience, Sir Paticice, you
jieas to toe bed of your Memory, to the beft of vour
Remembrance s 1 fay, my Lord Chiet Jullice Pem-
perioir did {peak to Sir Patience Fard, Sir Paticace,
Sir Patience, you fpeak :: the beft of your Memory.
My Lord, fays he, [ do it to the beft of my Re-
membrance, my Lovd, all that I can fay.

Mr. Wilfiams. Can you remember the Oceafion
ot this, or the Time?

Mr. Baker, My IL.ord {poke to him once or
twice, as I remember, he faid once, mind your
Lvidence, Sir Patience; Sir Paticice was angry a
lirtle at fomebody.

Mr. Wiliiams. Can you {ay what was 1t?

Mr. Baker. Some Words, as I remember, paf-
{ed between Siv Geoige Fejferies and Sir Patience.

Nr. iliiams. And what was the Occafi

Vv, Baker. I cauiot rememter indeed,

Mr. Wiliams. Did you obferve upon the Trial,
that Sir Patience Ward did {wear generally pofi-
tively, or to the beft of his Remembrance?

Mr. Baker, I apprebended bim to fwear to bis
Hearing and Memory fometimes.

Mr, Juft. Fownes. Do you remember the parti-
cular Things he {worer

Mr, Baker. No, my Lord.

Mr. S. Fefferies. 1 would ask Mr. Blaney this:
{ know you exaétly take Notice of what he fays;
find out in your Book, Sir Patience, Sir Paticuce,
you fpeak to your Memory.,

My, Pdliams. Mr. Bennet, pray can you remem-
ber what was fworn by Sir Patience IWard ?

Nir. Bewnnet. Sir, 1 was here, and I could hear
very little s buot then fome time after, fomethipg
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towards the latter End, I got my Head in, and
could hear a httle, and that was that Mr, Pil.
kington was not at the Table, and the Difcourfe
was ended before he came, of waiting upon his
Royal Highnels, about going to his Majelty, and
after to St. Fames’s.

Mr. Hilliams. How did he fpeak that, pofitive-
ly, or to his Remembrance 2

Mr. Beinet. He was asked both by you and
Sir George fejferies,  He did not anfwer you, bug
he antwered Sir George 5 for Sir George asked him
this Queftion, Was this Difcourfe quite over be-
fore Mir. Pilkington came in? He did declare
(I will tell you immediately, if you will give me
Leave} He did declare not one Tittle qwas [poken, or
to that Purpofe. It was the latter Part, near it I
am fure. ’

Sic br. iuinngten. How did he exprefs him-
felt m thae?

Mr. beanet. He declared, as I have told you,
that gt one Syllable was fpoken tn bis Hearing,

sie L. Daiington. He fays, my Lord, that
not one Syllable was fpoken in his Hearing,

Mr. 5, Fefferies. The Court hears what he fays.

Str Fr. Hmmirgten.  Siry that agrees with the
Notes of M, Blasey.

Mr. S, Fefferies. The Word that he faid was,
to the belt of his Memory. IHow was the

vord, Sir Paticiice, Sir Pativrce ?

Mr. Bilaney. That was notin, Sir.

Sir L L wnigton. My Lord, now we will go
to anoth.# Part of the Lvidence; we will call
Perfons of Quality, that have long known S.r Pa-
fierge IVard, that will give your Lordfhip an Ac-
count, whether he be a Man likely to forfwear
himlelf corrupdy and wilfully, —— Sir William
Rufld, are you {worn? Pray how long have you
known Sir Patience Ward ?

Sir 2l Ruffel. Near upon twenty Tears,

S L. Lumington,  Pray will you give an Ac-
count what you know of him?

Sir [Vl Ruffel. T have bad feveral Tranfaitions
with bim for confrderable Sums of Maonev, I never
found but very fair, and boncff, and reputable Deal-
mg. 1 have known him almoft twenty Years, I
have dealt with him for feveral Sums of Money,
and have found him very fair, juft and reputable
in all Tranfactions between him and me.

Mr. IVilliams. Do you think he would wilfully
or corruptly forfwear himfelf?

Sir Will, Ruffel, 1 never had that Opinion of
him: I was impanelled upon the Jury, but the
Court refufed me, and I went away,

My, W illiams. Sir, did you obferve him to be a
Man of Truth in his Trading?

Sir 173l Ruffel,  Ewer, Sir.

Mr. [Pilliams. Was he given to tell Lyes, or
prevaricage ¢

Sir Wl Ruffel. 1 always found him & Man of
Truth and Fuftice in his Dealing, all the Time I
dealt with him.

Mr. S. Fefferies. Siv William, 1 know you will
fpeak the Truth; you are a civil Gentleman.
Have you not taken him to be a fa&ious, fe-
ditious Man ? Did you look upon him to be
a Man well-affeCted to the King and Govern-
ment ¢

o #7ull, Ruffel. T never did concern myfelf in
thole Affairs much, 1 never had any Converfe
with him about them,

Nr. S. Fefferies. 1 know you were a Common-
Council-man in his Mayoralry.

Sir
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Sir #ill, Ruffel. 1 was a Common Council-man
in his Time. . -

Mr. 4¢t. Gen. Pray, upon your Oath, did you
look upon him to be a Man well-affeCted to the
Government £

Sir il Ruffel.  1do not underftand, Mr, 42-
torney, that I ought to pafs my Opinion upon Per-
{ons in that Point,

Mr. At. Gen. Have you not obferved in the
City his Actions there?

Sic #ill. Ruffel. 1 was concerned at that time
when he was Mayor.

Mr. Att. Gen. How did you obferve him ?

Sir #ill, Ruflel. 1 do not know that 1 have
heard him {peak in a Court of Aldermen.

Mr. Ait. Gen. I ask you, Sir, would he ftrain
a Point to ferve a Party?

Siv Will. Ruffel,  1do not know, Sir,

Mr. Williams. I think you have known Sir Pa-
tience a great while: Do you take him to be a
good Subject to the King or no:

Sir Will. Ruffel, I never knew otherwife by bim.

Sir Fr, Finnington.  Mr. Fobn fobnfon,

Mr. Juft. Fores. This kind of Evidence doth
welgh very hetle.

Mr. Recorder, It is a very improbable thing, that
a Man that hath borne fo many great Offices, that
hath reprefented the King in that great Office of
Lord Mayor, fhould be guilty of this.

Mr. Ait. Gen. My Lord, if they talk of Repu-
tation at large, we will call all the Court here
for the Reputation of our Witnefles.

Mr. Juft. Fones. For a Man that hath been fo
eminent as Sir Patience hath been, there 1s very
little more to be faid for his Reputation.

Siv Fr. Winnington. Mr. Fobufon, do you know
Sir Patience Ward ?

Mer. Fobnfon.  Yes, Sir.

Sic Fr. Winnington, How long, Mr. Fobnjon,
have yon known him?

Mr. Jobnfon, Ten or twelve Years, Sir.

Str fr. IVnmirgton, Have you had Dealing with
him ?

Mr. Fobnfon. Yes, Sir, for confiderable Sums, for
Thoufands of Pounds.

Sir Fr. Winnington, Has he dealt with you.as a
juft Man?

Mr. Fobufon. A very bonef juft Man as ever I

dealt with in my Life.

Sir Fr. Winnington, Do you think he would
forfwear himfelf ¢

Mr. Fobnfon. I doi’t think be would tell a Lye.

Mr. Att. Gen. No, not for a Party?

Mr. Fobuforr. No, not for @ Party, Said I, Sir
Patience Ward, you are looked upon to be a Perfon
dijaffected to the Govcrnment., Says he, It is my
Misfortune 5 I am as loyal as any Man in England.

Mr. Jult. #ithins. Heark you, Sir, pray how
came you to queftion whether be was or no?

Mr. Fobufon. Being intimate with him, Sir.

Mr. Juft, #thins, What made you doubt, to
ask the Queftion ?

Mr. Pollesfen. Do you apprehend him to be 2
Man that would for{wear himfelf?

Mr. Fobnfon, No, truly, he was a Man of few
Words,

Mr. Pollexfen.  'Was he cautious ¢

Mr. Fobufon, Yes, Sir, as exalf @ Man as ever I
dealt with in my Life. 1 am very well known in
the Court. Idon’t come to ferve a Party. I can

ferve his Majetty as well as fome in Court.
Vs, 1L
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Siv Fr. Winnington, - Mr, Toriano, how long
have you known Sir Paticnce Ward ?

Mr. Toriano. Thirty Years.

Sic Fr. Winnington. In all the Time have you
looked upon him as fair in his Dedling ?

Mr. Zoriano. I have known hima Man of Truth,
one that would not be falfe to his Knowledge.

Sir Fr. Winnington, Do you think he would
forfwear himfelf?

Mt. Toriano. 1 don’t think he would tell a Lye
to his Knowledge.

Mr. S, Fefferies. You fay how long you have
known Str Patience Ward: Have you not wondered
within three or four Years?

Mr. Zoriano. 1 have not meddled with Things.
He hath, by his Difcourfe, been as loyal a Man
as any.

Mr. Williams. Mr. Pickering, how long have you
been acquainted with Sir Patience Ward ?

Mr. Pickering, My Lord, I have been acquaint-
ed near forty Years. We have dealt together as
long as he did follow a Trade.

Mr. Williams, Pray, n your Converfation and
Dealing with him, did you obferve him a Man
given to Lying, or Falfenefs, or Deceitfulnefs,
in his Converfation and Dealing ¢

Mr. Pickering. I never in all my Life did ob-
ferve him guilty of any thing inclining that way,
but of a fair Converfation, never given to many
Words.

Mr. Williams. Do you think he would cor.
ruptly forfwear himfelf upon any Account?

Mr. Pickering, Truly I believe not willingly do
it, nor any thing that way.

Mr. Ait. Gen, Mr. Pickering, you have obferv.
gd him to be fwerving of late?

Mr. Pickering, Truly I have been a Comimon
Council-man in the Ward where he is Alderman,
and all the Difcourfe I heard from him was very
loyal truly.

Mr. S. Fefferies, By his A&ions you have Jook-
ed upon him to be a Man very well affeéted to
the Government ?

Sir Geo. Treby. (To Capt. Grifith.) Do you
know Sir Patience Ward ?

Capt. Grifith, I have known him ever fince he
hath been Alderman of that Ward.

Sir Geo. Treby, How many Years, Sir?

Capt. Grifith. About thirteen or fourteen
Years.

Sir Geo. Treby. In all that Time how have you
looked upon him ¢

Capt. Griffth. 1 have loocked upon him in that
Repute he was in as an Alderman. I never had
any Dealing with him.

Sir Geo. Treby.  Did you think he would for-
{wear himfelf?

Capt, Grifith. No truly, I think no Man of
Honour would forfwear himfelf.

Mr. At Gen. Caprain Griffith, upon your Oath,
how hath he carried himfelf towards the Govern-
ment?

Mr., Williams. Sir Harry Tulfe, in all your Time
did you find him to bt a Man given to tell Sto-
ries for Truth?

Sir H. Tulfe. Sir, 1 never had any Dealing with
him in Matter of Trade.

Mr. Williams., How did you find him in his
Converfation !

Sir H. Tulfe. Truly, Sir, I never heard any
thing 1l of him.

i N2 ir.
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Mr. #illiams, Did you find him a Man of Fal-
fity or Truth in his Converfation ? Y
Sir H, 9ulfe. 1 never had any Dealing, f{o ¢an
{peak little 5 1 never heard any thing amifs of
him; I have heard he s a very confiderable Mer-
chant, and [ believe he 1s fo, and accounted a
very civil Gentleman, Ihave had the Honour to
fit in the Court of Aldermen ten Years with him,
and we have had fometimes fome Difference In

Judgment.
Sir Geo. Treby, Would he wilfully forfwear him-

iclf, do you think ¢

Siv H. Tulfe, Truly, 1 believe not.

Mr, S. Jefferies. Do you believe every thing
he {wore at the laft Trial was true? You are upon

your Oath, Sir Haiiy Tuife,
Sir H. Tulfe. 1 believe they were not true.

Mr, S. Jefferies. Siv William Hooker, we would

give you no more Tronble,
Mr. IPilliams, Becaule they called you, Sir I7il-

Ziam, I would ask you a Queftion, what do you
think of Sir Patience I ard ?

Sir [Pilliam Hooker, Truly thus, according as it
hath been faid ; but truly when I confider what
a Condition Sir Patience Ward was in, when he
dehivered his Evidence; for to my Remem-
brance, he looked like a Man three quarters

dead ——
Mr. 8. Jefferies. Do you believe whatever he

{wore was true?

Sir J#74l. Hooker. 1 do not remember any thing
lie {wore then,

Moy, Jult. Foucs. Have you done?

- Mr. Williams, We have done, we leave 1t to
the Court,

Mr, S, Fefferies. Sir Francis Lee — Sir - Francis,
Were you ac this Triaf, and do you remember
what Sir Paticice [Vard faid at the Trial 2

Sit Fr. Winnington, Always you come with
Drops at faft.

Mz, H Wliams. Thisis a new way of going to
Work,

Sir Fr. Lee. 1 was upon the Jury between his
Roy:1 Highnefs and Mr, Pifiingten, and Sir Fa-
dieree did fwear, that Mr, Piliington was not In
the Room, when the Difcourfe concerning the
Duke of 7274 was mentioned ;s but afterwards
did fwear, when Mr. Piltington {aid, he hath burne
the City, faid he, 1 clapp’d my Hand upon lus
Mouth, and t'other upon his Breaft, and bid him
explain him{&lf's who do you mean? Hubert 7 Sir
Francis Butlzr, who was our Foreman, and ftood
next to me, joge’d me, and bid me take Notice
of thats and {uo I did: And after we had this
Difcourte together, he faid, Sir Fraucis, 1 would
have had you to wke Notice: Did you take No-
tice of itf 1 told him I did. Truly, it feemed
clear to me, That be fhould frvear be was not pre-
Jent at the Dijtonsfe about the Duke of York, and
afterwwards be muft infer he meant the Duke of York ;
or elje, whas fhould be bave Jopp’d bis Mouth for ¢

Mr. TFilliams, My Lord, bhere are Gentlemen
that heard all the Trialy they might have been
called certainly in Order, Bur, my Lord, to come
in at laft, when the thing is heard on both Sides,

then to come in with Witnefles agam, [ don’t

underitand,
L.C.°f. They may call theirs, when you have

done witly yours,
Siv Fr, W iniington, My Lord, I will but put

this one Inftance s ina civil Caufe it hath been
denivd, much wore in Perjury,
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Mr. Williams. We will leave it to the Court

if Mr, Attorney fays he will, we will, .
Mr. Jult. Withins, Take your Liberty on both

Sides, I pray. .
Me, A, Gen. If Sir Patience did not know it

to be falfe, then it 1s no Perjury,

Sir Geo. Treby. 1 faid no fuch Words.

Mr, Juft. 75 #thins. They refolve they will con-
clude s therefore, Gentlemen, take your Time,

Mr. Ait, Gea, 1 remember what you propofed
Uother Day, you made a Speech after two or
three o’th’Clock in the Afternoon.

Sir Geo, Treby. Who, did 1¢

Mr, Juft. Bithins. Nay, good Gentlemen, don't
quarrel,

Sir Geo, Treby. 1 defire to fay a Word or two,
That your Evidence doth not ar ali encounter
ours, it {tands with 1ty ler them have as much
Reputation as they will.  They fay, Sir Patien:,
IFard did fay thus and thus, as concerning cur-
ting of Throats, and as concerning the Difcourfe
being ended, and as concerning the Duk’s being
not named 3 ours fay the fame too; but they fy
m~re ; they fay, he {aid with all the Caution 1
the World, from the Beginning to the End. My
Lord Chief Juftice bids him recollect himfeli;
he fays, heipeaks to his Memory, Upon Sir
Gearge Jefferies’s Queflion, he fays, he Ipeaks to
the beft of his Remembrance, and thereupon i
that memorable Reply of Sir Gesrge, Your [n-
vention 1s better than your Memory, One of
their own Witnefles fays 1t was fo, and {o fays M.
Blingy, and fo fays another Witnels.  While che
Difcourfe continued, whether he was there er no,
Sic Harry Tulfe doth agree, that be cannot fay he
did fee him.  Now, under Favour, it he did not
fee him, he might fay, he was not there, for no
Man can {wear otherwile than according to his
Senfes 3 what a Man does not fee, muy be behind
his Back, although he had not limited himfelf
with that Caution, as he did limit himielf wicth
the greateft Caution, and faid, as he did defieve,
he was not there. My Lord, none of their
Witnefes will undertake to fay he ufed the Word
Pofitive : They don’c deny the T hing, it Is impof-
(ihle any Man fheold; but that there were thefe
Words of Limitation, they might be faid, and not
heard by them, they might be faid, and not ob-
ferved by them. None of them did pretend to
write Notes, except the firflt 5 and from the Evi-
dence of the firlt, I have all the Reafon in the
World 1o believe, that bis Notes did contain all
thofe Cautions, and all thofe Qualifications, that
we {peak of ; why elle thould he be to feck to
that written Short-hand ? He aid not Faowo wwhether
be Dad Notes herey he did know, whether he had
confulted the Notes lince, Would ahy Man in
the Waorld lay by Notes at this rate, that in-
tended to give full LEvidence? Thovgh [ will
fay that for him, he does not undertake to fay
pofitiely, but according to the beft of his Me-
mory, and according to his Belief.  Sir Jf illians
Hooker fays, he was in a great Confuflon. Here
are a great many Gentlemen beyond all Excep-
tion n the World, thar do fay his Dealing was
fo fair, that he never told a f.ye, that he was-
moft exact and moft jult in his Desling,  ltisim-
poffible that a Man (hould avoid fuch an Evii
as this1s, for fo long a Time, ard in fo grea
Places and Offices, and {houid now st faft bs
guiley of fuch a wile and bafe Sort of Crime as

Perjury is, which no Man ought 1o prefume of
HEETIR T
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another, unlefs there be the greateft-and plaineft
Proof to the contrary. But, my Lord, on our
Side is the plaineft Proof that can be, by Wit-
nefles that remember the Words as well as the
Qualifications s and one of our Witnefies is worth
Abundance of their Witnefles that did not write,
elpecially fuch a one as does not fhew bis Notes,
Butr as I faid before, they were teftified by Sir
Patience Ward, with all thofe Cautions; and we
do think, that there 1s no Colour in the World

that this fhould be Perjury.
Mr. IHilliams. Gentlemen, I am of Council for

the Dafendant, and the Queftion is, Gentlemen,

Whether Sir Patience IFard be guiley of the wilful
and malicious Perjury that is laid to his Charge
in this Information 2 Gentlemen, 1t is agreed on
all hands, and that will appear to you, there
hath been no manner of Evidence given {or the
King againft Sir Patience IFard, either as to his
Honour, or Repurtation, or Truth: There is
nothing, Gentlemen, endeavoured to be charged
upon lum, but this particular Crime.  The Gen-
tlemen that profecute him do not offer any one
Thing againlt his Reputation or his Dealing; fo
that, Gentlemen, for aught appears to you yet,
before this was laid to his Charge, he wasa very
clear Man. Gentlemen, he hath borne great
Offices in the Cicy of Londons he hath been Lord
Mayor of Londonsy he is now ina confiderable
Place of Magiftracy 5 he is an Alderman, We
Liave proved by feveral Gentlemen, he isa Man
of great Value, a Man of great Reckoning and
Dealing, a Man of Truth, a Man of Veracity,
a Man, that they believe, would not forfwear him-
felt for a World: Gentlemen, the very Witnefs
againdt us, they fay i, Siv Wdlliam Hooker tells
you, he was under that Confternation, he was
like a Man three Parts dead, fo that there could
be nothing of Malice in that Man s he was with-
out Senfe, without Paffion 5 and if any thing was
done, i1t was done as it were by a dead Man, a
Mun that was fenfelefs. Sir Harry Tulje believes,
he would not willingly have perjured himfelf;
then he is not guilty of wilful Perjury, and thar
15 the Quettion you are to try. Now [ have
faid this, Gentlemen, as to the Condition of the
Perfon. And now for the Imputations that are
Jaid upon him, The fecond Obfervation that I
make, 1 from the Nature of the Crime; we are
accufed of Perjury, firft, that we have perjured
ourfelves, Thatin any one cafual Thing done
upon any Account whatfoever, to prove the
act done, that a Man is perjured, it is an eafy
Martter, Men are fubject to miftake 5 the Words
ipoken, Gentlemen, were fpoken in a very few
Moments. Confider what a Thing the Memory
of Man is, how {ubject Men are to miftake Words,
To fay, that Men fhall not differ, that there
fhall be no Variacion between Man and Man, it
15 to put ah End to all Converfation, there would
be no bringing of Witneffes, if there might be
no Variation. Nay, Gentlemen, to Juftify what
I have obferved to you, obferve thefe two Gen-
tlemen ; Sir H. Tulfe, he tells you, thatthe Words
were by way of Queftion, Is the Duke come ? T hat
Pilkingion (hould fpeak the Words by way of
ueltion, Is be come? Is be come to cut onr Throats ?
S0 that he tells you, Pilkington faid thefe Words
by way of Interrogation. This is the Evidence
of Sir [Hairry Tulje 3 and both of them agree, Gen-
tlemen, that they were {poken at one Time.
What fays Sir JTilliam ssker ? How does he ap-

A

-

prehend thefe Words? He tells you they were
pofitive in the prefent Tenfe: He is come, be is
come 1o defirgy onr Wives and Children. So that if
thefe Gentlemen miftake, one takes them by way
of Queftion, Uother fays, they were delivered pofi-
tively, in the prefent Tenfe, Suppofe this were
brought againft thefe Perfons, no Man will fay
this is Perjury. As thefe Gentlemen have mif-
remembered, fo might Sir Patience Ward have
mifremembered ; and if he had, it is his Infirmity,
no Crime: For any Man is {ubje& to. miftake,
We are now upon the Perjury, and it is not any
thing that is Affirmative, but they are Negatives.
The firlt Negative isthis, that he fhould fay there
was no Mention of cutting of Throats, Say?
The Queftion is, What was the Difcourfe abour
cutting of Throats¢ Say I, there was no DifL
courfe about cutting of Throats; it 15 natural to
a Man to fay, I heard no {uch Thing, and every
Man muft {fpeak to his Hearing; itis that which
muft pierce your Ears 3 that Organ mult be touch-
ed. There was no Dilcourfe, I heard no Dif-
courfe ; I could fay no otherwife, nor any Man
that goes by common Reafon. It mult be by
Hearing, it is not natural: Won’t you believe
what they fay, that Str Paticsce JFard did fay, and
Mr. Blaney, and other Witnefles with him, there
was no fuch Difcourfe ? Is it not rational for a Man
to believe there was no fuch Difcourfe? So thart, I
take ir, was the Nature of the Thing, For the
other Thing, there is not one Man that hath
proved it to you, that he faid there was no Dif-
courfe of cutting of Throats. L.t them fhew me
that Witnefs that he did pofitively fay 1t, and then
I will give up the Caufe, for my Share. Iam {ure
Mr. sfton, a Clerk in the Court, he fays it was,
to the belt of his Obfervation. Mr., Affon 1sa Man
that ufes to be here, and a vigilant Man in the
Court; he does not take it upon him pofitively,
Thefe worthy Gentlemen, the Aldermen, don’t
take upon them pofitively. Their Witnefles
were wary in it. Are there any two of them
agree how the Words were fpoken ¢ So that, Gen-
tlemen, there is no poliive Proof againft us,
Now the Proof lies on our Part, We prove
very plainly by Mr, Blancy; and can any Maa
do better in this Cafe? The fame Evidence
runs to the other two Inftances, as to thiss
therefore I do not love to multiply Words,
Now our Evidence is to jultify this. Here 1s Mr.
Blainey, he fatin a moft proper Place, and the
moft likely to hear of any Man in the Court ; he
{ar in the Middle, between the Court and the
Jury, near the Witneffes, heard as much as any
abour the Court, He tells you directly, he did
refer his Evidence to his Hearing ; he tells you, he
referr’d all the Parts of it either to his Memory
or his Obferuation. He does not truft to a frall
Memory 3 but he tells you he took it in Writing,
and tells you that Writing is here 5 he producesit
here. He is a Gentleman that ufes totake Write-
ing 3 fo that if you give Credit to this Gentle-
man, certainly he isin the right. Mr. Blaney is not
alone in this Matter; we have called feveral, and
they agree with Mr. Blaney, Every Witnefs that
fpeaks, jultifies Mr. Blaney. So [hff:t we have fo
many Witnefles that jultify every thing, or moft
of the Things that we have faid,  Now, Gentle-
men, when I have faid all this o you, confider ;
for there are fome Things remarkable in all Caufes,
and the Truth is, all the Wiefles give you
one remarkable Inflance, and that s, of Sir Gen.

Jeferies,
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Fefferies, that he madea Comment upon the Word
Memorys headmired his Invention, but leflened
his Memory, as if the Gentleman had been trou-
bled, that he had not remembered 5 for I remem-
ber it was a Reflection upon his Memory, that his
Memory was not better 5 but commended his In-
vention mightily. So that this, Gentlemen, isa
remarkable Thing. They give you that Inftance
to juftify what was faid by Mr. Blaxey: Now, Gen-
tlemen, I have faid all this to you, we muft rely
upon thefe Things. They afk, Whether any thing
that was faid, was pofitive? It was a Trial lafted
fome Hours 3 and I think Sir Patience Ward was
an Hour in examining. Did he fayany Word pofi-
tively? Can any Man anfwer fucha Queftion ? It
1s an impertinent Queftion. Gentlemen, upon
thofe three Marters that are aflign’d, whereof he
was accufed ; as for thofe three ‘Things, they are
anfwered particularly, Gentlemen, now weare in
your Hands, and the Queftion is, What you will
do in our Cafe? Hereis a pofitive Proof for us;
all the Prefumptions that can be for us; here is the
Proof of our Reputation ; here is nothing againft
the Gentleman’s Reputation ;s and a Man of Ho-
nowr hed rather be tried for bis Head, than for bis
Ears. 1 know, Gentlemen, you are Men of Value,
Men that value your own Reputation; I leave it
to you, whether you can in Confcience fay, upon
your Oaths, that this Gentleman is guilty of wil-
ful Perjury.

Sir F, I¥innington. My Lord, this is a Caufe of
great Importance, not only now, but in point of
Example hereafter. My Lord, the Information
is, that Sir Patience Ward, by his Confent, and
out of a wicked Mind, did falfely, voluntarily,
and corruptly fwear fo and fo: So that if fo be
that he hath not fworn wilfully and corruptly, I
know your Lordfhipand the Court will tell the
Jury, he is not guilty of Perjury. Truly, myLord,
in this Cafe, I muft obferve to your Lordfhip and
the Jury, that we are now contending what Wit-
nefles have the beft Memory ; for the Thing is
not in Controverfy for any A<t done, but our De-
fence 1s, what Sir P ince IWard did {wear ac the
Time when he was at the Trial. T muft fay, there
are no Memorials in this Caufe gtven on the other
Side, of any Man that did undertake to wrice
down at that inftant Time for the King ; but one
Man fays, he cannot very well tell whether he took
Notes or no, So thatl do fay, my Lord, with
your Lordfhip’s Leave, that of all the Witnefles
they have produced, there is not any one of them
but does vary in Words; they are not confiftent
in LExpreflion, even to any particular Queftions
that were afked 5 and can it be faid to be wilful
and corrupt Perjury, upon fuch an uncertain
Evidence! I don’t doubt, Gentlemen, but you
will take great Care of it. My Lord, I will men-
tion but two Particulars to your Lordthip, that
I think, go through the Cafe, My Lord, Mr.
Blaney hath rold you feveral Particulars that have
been remembered he writ 1t at that Time, withour
any Variation; it hath a great Advantage over
the other Side, that have only retain’d it in their
Memories, and their Memories might fail them,
and differ from the Time of fpeaking; but here
the Writing remains, that was writ at that very
Inftant 3 here it was frefh written out of his Mouth.
The Queftion was afked, Can you fwear, Mr.
Blancy, you writ every Word, orno ? [t wasafked
the Witnefles, Can you fwear, that he fwu_re no-
thing pofitively? T muft confefs, my Lord, 1t is a

Queftion that is ftrange for 2. Man to anfwer,
Any thing pofitive! Does he know what a Man
means? He muft reduce it to Particulars. Bu,
my Lord, 1 have asked Mr. Blaney, Did you take
it as it came from his Mouth ? He {wears chefe
Words he fpake, and there is no Variation, but
written inftantly at that very Time. My Lord,
I do think this is a Thing goes a great way. My
Lord, there is one thing more that I think goes
through the Caufe, and that 1s Mr. Crifp; for Crifp
acquaints your Lordfhip, that when there was
fome Variation between the Afliertion of Sir Herry
Tulfe, and Sir Patience Vard, my Lord Chief 7u-
fiice gave an Admonition to Sir Patience Hard,
Str Patience, Sir Palicnce, recollect yourfelf. My
Lord, faith he, what I deliver, Ido according o
the beft of my Remembrance ; and then this after-
wards, (for this was at the End of his Evidence)
s a Qualification quite through the Caufe, This
being to weigh it with t’other Side, But I would
{ay one Thing more ; to what End fhould this be?
Is any Man damnified by this Oath ? Is there any
Man can fay this Oath hath prejudiced any Man in
his Reputation or Eltate ? It was very ftrange, that
a Man that hath brought fo many Witneffes, and
thofe very worthy Perfons, that fay they believe
he would not {orfwear himfelf, fhould do this for
nothing, thata Man fhould be the wickedeft Man
in the World at one Fump, that you can hear no-
thing of any A of Falfity of him before, Now
when there are fuch plain Evidences, undubitable
Evidences, it is a Thing of grear Confequence.
And Colonel Birch fays, generally, as he does
remember and belteve, he did cautioully {peak.
And Sir William Hosker fays, he wasunder Con-
{ternation at this Time. So that it appears he
had much Caution; and if fo, it is of mighty
Conlequence, and concerns any Witefles to
come. Here is a Man perjured, and a great many
Witnefles may.  You are not to mind whar is faid
by the Counfe! of both Sides, but what is faid in
point of Proof. It will make all Men cautious,
becaufe they may infer Danger by a pofitive Af-
fersion. My Lord, this is a Cafe of Perjury, in
which I, and every honeft Man,that values his Re-
putation, fhould be tender. If this Man be guiley,
it is a great Crime; I muft leave it to your
Con{ciences,

Mr., Pollexfen. The Nature of the Cafe T do
humbly pray your Lord(hip to take into Confider-
ation, and the Jury. It muft be wilful and cor-
rupt 3 for {o are the Words in this Information,
and in all Indiments : [t muft be wilful and cor-
rupt Perjury. My Lord, if {fo be that feveral
Witnefles interfering one with another, one remem-
bering one Parcel of Words that were {poken
at the fame time, any Man fhould be perjured in
this Cafe, by remembering, and not remember-
ing, no Man almoft durlt be a Witnefs. What
Difcourfe hath pafs’d, let us but obferve in this
Matter. Here were three Aldermen prefent, one
of them fwears there was no Difcourfe of: cutting
of Throats; it isa Negative, notan Affirmations
and no Man that hears him, but muft fay of it,
no Difcourfe, that he beard. When I fay there was
no Difcourfe of fuch a Thing, any Man will un-
derftand, No fuch Difcourfe came to my Obfer-
vation or Hearing, For the others that fay there
was fach Difcourfe, they vary themfelves; one
{ays 1t was cutting our Throats 3 Cother, cutting the
Throats of our Wives and Children. I only fay this
to fhew the Weaknefs and Fallibility of Mens

Nemaories,
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Memorics, that carry Things fo in an Uncertainty.
Two or three Men {wear a Man faid fo, t’other
fays he did not; no Man canunderftand it in any
other Senfe, but he did not hear him fay {o: For
a Man can fay no more of what another {uys, than
what he heard. So, my Lord, confidering the
Circumf{tances of the Cafe, it is fo that Men may
perjure one another upon Omiflions.  One Man
may bring one little Part of a Difcourfe, and an-
other another ; it will be a very unfafe Thing for
qa Man to be a Witnefs fo. But, my Lord, the
nexe Thing is this of pofitive Evidence, and up-
on Remembrance. My Lord, if fo be there mult
be pofitive Evidence to convict a Man of Perjury,
I would leave it to your Lordfhip in the Caule,
whether there be any among all their Witnefies,
have proved it pofitively ¢ Next, my Lord, if
fo be that we mult have of Cother Side poficive
Evidence, we have more pofitive Evidence than
chey, under Favour, conlidering that Mr. Blangy
hath his Notes. This I anfwer to that Objection
of theirs, Did he fay any thing pofitive? Did you
write down this or that? That is not the Matter ;
thete is no Man chat writes all: Buc the Queition
is of that he did write, Whether that be truc? If
that be true, 1t is more certain, being written ac
that 1ime, being written here in Court, when
there was no Thought of being made ule of as
an Lvidence, is ftronger than many Mens {(lippery
Memories.  But b2 n chis 1s back’™d with a great
many other Witnefles thae do fpeak ic, though nos
fo politively as he does, becauje he hath his Notes
o help him; and he fays particularly to one
Thing, that he does particulariy remember it
And io, being they were written at that Time, that
is, under Favour, a better Evidence than twenty
flippery Mens Lvidence can be.  So that raking
all this together, confidering the Perfon accufed,
antl the great Offices he harh borne, confidering
the rear Shame and Scandal of the Crime, all
Men chat have known him for twenty Years to-
aether, faying he was not any falfe Man; better
1 Man had raken his Head from him, than raken
away his Repuration, Unlels, my Lord, there be
plain and full kvidence, I hope it will not aficct
us, nor Witnefles that fhall come afterwards.

Mpr. Att. Gen. The Marter, Gentlemen, before
you, is, Whether or no Sir Paticnce W ard, for
fwearing thefe Words, be guilty of wilful or cor-
rapt Perjury ? I hall admit that; but it is the
firt time I ever heard of, that we muft go to prove
the Intentions of this Gentleman, that if he did
not intend to fwear wilfully, or voluntarily falfe,
that it will not be a corrupt or wilful Perjury. My
Lord, therefore I muft obferve this to the Jury
if the Macter that he fwears be falfe, the Law con-
{trues it to be corrupt and wiltul ¢ If the Matier,
I fay, does directly come in Iffue, and he in that
Hlue {wears that which is falfe, fo as chat it hach
an Influence upon that Iffue, the Law conftrues
it corrupt and wilful : For that is the Reafon, my
Lord, why that Regard is given to all Oaths in
Caunfes, that they may be plain and diret; and
a great Punifhment is upon them, if they are not
true 5 that is the only Reafon for it, and no other.
For without Doubt, we have nothing to prove the
Cafe, but thefe two Things ; for we cannot fearch

mto 2 Man’s Intentions, that when he fpeaks of

the Duke of 2ork, he intends Hubert; bur we
muft take Things as they are, whatever a Man in-
tends, So the Jury are to inquire but of fzo
Things; Whether or no thefe Words zivie [igker

Jor Perjury.
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by bim, as they are laid? The next is, [Zhether they
are falfe ¢ We have iothing more todo : But if we
prove thefe two Things, thar the Words that
were, fpoken, were {poken by him as they are
latd, n that Manner, not as thele other Witnel-
fes would have, with the Words, I believe, and,
as { remzmber, but that they were pliinly and pofi-
tively fpoken, my Lord; that we aré to prove,
and we have proved it. The #ex? Thing we are
to prove, 1s, taat the Words are falfe; that they
are falfe, they do admic by all the Witnefles ;
they don’t go about to encounter that Proof ac
all 5 they have not ar all endeavoured ir, but thar
thefe Words, as they are faid, are abfolutely falfe ;
and they were contrary ro the Matter, that was.in
Iflue in that Cafe. That this Gentleman fpake
them, my Lord, the very Thing ipeaks; for he
was heard by the Courtas a Witnefs, and as their
Evidence in the wholé Canfe ; and the Court, after
he was examined. pur it upon this Gentleman,
IWbat do you frvear 2 1 ithad been ally as I remea:-
bery and, as I believe, the Court would have de-
clared 1t was'no Evidence. Ny Lord, if a Mar-
ter be 1n e, and a Man comesand fays, a5 7 re-
member, and bcdieve, this doth not encounter che
Iffue, nor the Proof that is for that [flue, when
there were two pofitive Wirnefles, that pofitively
fwore the Words, that the Court ihould then refer
it upon the Teltimony of Sir Putiznce JFard 10 the
Jury, the Courr would give Judgn:ent he was no
fovidence 5 1tis plam he was no Evidence, if he
{wore to his Memory and Belief. That that is no
Evidence, the Reaton 1s plamn 5 for there would be
an End of all Trials, 1f ever that fort of Doétrine
be admitted : No Man can be perjured upon bis
Remembrance, norupon Lis Belisfs who can tell
he believes centrary to whar he fays? So thac
thiere 1s an End of that which oughy to be the Cure
of all the falfe Witnefles 10 England 5 for I take it
in pointof Law, the belt of Remembrance in this
Nature, or a5 I believe, 1sno Evidence atall, and
therefore the infiting much uvpon that, is to
charge the Court with Injuftice to put that upon
the Jury ; and the Jury need not have given 2ny
Reajon why they would not believe him ; for thete
had been an Lind, if he had faid, as I remember,
the Jury might have faid prefently, there are two
pofitive Witneffesaguinft him. Thetwo firlt Wiz-
neffes we have call’d, Hateh and //7ed, they do
fwear as to thofe Words of cuwtting of Threats;
they fwear it pofitively, bothof them. Whether
he ufed the Word pofitively, or whether it was
upon his Oath, that, indeed, they ceuld not fpesk
to; but they were pofitive, without any Refer-
ence to his Belicf or bis Memory, To the other
Point of the Duke of Zork and Pilkingten being
there, that they {peak poliuively to; and I think
Sir Fames Smith doth fpeak as pofitively that he
was fure his Words were, either [ do pofitively fay,
or #pon my Oalh, one of them ;3 but without any
Words of Reference.  Mr. Aflon, who 1sa Clerk
of this Court, and fat there in this Place, he
fpeaks to that pofitively,

Siv . Winnington, [ think, 1 am pretty fure, I
think, thefe are the Words. )

Mr. Att. Gen. The Foreman of the Jury he re-
peats the fame pofitively, and givesa plain Reafon;
if it were not pofitive, 1t were an tdie Thing,

Mr. W#illiams. Willyoudo us Injury in the Caufe?

Mr. Aflon. If he fpake any Words of Mitiga-
tinn. they were fo low, I could not hear 3 and L
chink I could hear thiemall, . L A

Me, Jalt, IPirians. l}my o0 on, CtT e M
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Mr. Ait. Gen. 1fay, my Lord, feveral Witnel-
fes we produced, and Sir William Hooker parti-
cularly 3 for we had never made ufe of him, if
there had been only fo idle an Evidence ; for we
did not call Sir William Hocker till after s Evi-
dence was given, to encounter this politive Kvi-
dence. We then produced Sir William Hooker,
after he had given pofitive Lvidence, and Sir
William Heoker did {wear it pofitively upon him
again ; then the Court asked him, [¥bat do you
fwear? My Lord, after this, he might be [hy in
his Evidence, and fay, Iremember, and I belizve,
After this, we put it upon him again, and then
we fay the Words were fworn pofitively 5 for by
way of Hear-fay and Belief is no Eviderce.
Now Mr. Blaney is all in all, and I think now Nr.
Blaney will fignify nothing. I fay, my Lord, A.r.
Blaney, what is his Evidence? He pulls out his
Notes, and there he tells you, to fuch a Queftion
there was fuch an Anfwer, and there indeed 1t 15
to the beft of bis Remembrance, But what docs
Mr. Blaney tell you? Mr. Blaney polittvely tells
you, that thefe are but fhort Notes, many Things
omitted, and T perceive whole Sentences omitred,
a great deal of Difcourfe omitted 5 and that ap-
pears by that Paflage of Sir George Fefferies’s
Interrogation. Then, my Lord, inone Place he
comes and fays, fo the beft of my Remembrance
afterwards he is prefs’d 5 for furely 1t was to no
Purpofe we would let fuch an LEvidence pafs, but
when he is prefs’d 5 Mr. Auderman, 1s 1t {o, orno?
For Beliefis no Evidence, There, my Lord, he
anfwers pofitively, and that s omicied out of Nr.
Bla ¢y'sBook : This was neceflary, my Lord, we
{houkl do, and notlet fuch a Thing pafs, as that
to the bt of my Remembrance.  Niy Lord, then to
fee what Mr, Blaney himfelf fays, he took Nores,
he did not anfwer one T hing pofiuvely througn-
out the Whole ; for which he is to be rejected, |
think, as no Witnefs in the Cafe, as a Perfon that
comes and {wears by Hear-fay 5 and it was fo re-

markable a Thing, my Lord, that we who are of

the King’s Counifcl, thould take Notice of 1t to
the Courr. Heis no Witneis ; he fwears nothing
pofitively : Itisan Arr, my Lord, was never m-
vented till of late, and if it be allowed, 1t wiil
make an End of all Trials; for you will have as
much forfwearing, as you have lying, Hures one
gives Evidence he never told a Liye in his Lafe,
and [ care not whether the Jury believe that or
no. Surely, my Lord, we fhould not let 2 Man
go away with fuch an An{wer as this, /o his Ke-
membrance. 1€ they take upon them this Way of
Swearing, I tell you plainly they are no Witnefles
at all. My Lord, I muft appeal to the Court, if
fuch a thing, be allowed, what will become of all
Trials 2 The Punithment of Perjuries does make
Men cautious in {wearing 5 and fo it was from the
Beginning, ever fince Swearing was allowed to de-
cide Caufes, Perjury was to be punifhed. By the
Law of God it was feverely punithed. Ifthere be
a new way introduced of giving Evidence, /o the
Deft-of my Remembrance, you have fhutout the Pu-
nithment, Can you convict any Man of all their
Witnefles, when none of them fwear? Colonel
Birch, and others, they come and fay to fome
Things, there were thefe qualifying Words; if
it had been to material Things, my Lord, were
we fo fenfelefs, or the Court fo fenfelefs, to let
the beft of my Remembrance pafs for Evidence £ So
that, my Lord, they do not tell you plainly, they
fpeak hothing at all exprefs. When they are ask’d,
Can yqu fwear, that he added thefe Words, 20 the

beft of my Remembrance 2 they fay he did to fome
Things, but are not pofiive to what.  So thas
your Lordfhip fees we have plain Teltimony, they
have no Proof. So you fee what fort of Evidence
thisis. Now, my Lord, for lis Crime, He hath
been a fair Dealer, furely, in the World, or ¢lfe
he could never have ga’d fuch an Eftate 5 byg
when Men are engaged In Parties, we fee what g
Man will do for a Party, and to help a fickly
Brother, that was falling into the Pic, over the
Hidge, Bur I fay, my Lord, it is nnpoflible,
that their Evidence fhould encounter ours, And,
indeed, if we had had Notce, that this would have
been given as m.terial Evidence, truly we could
have given a great deal to fhew the many Blots
in this Gentleman 3 but, my Lord, I fay this is
not materil, of what Repuration a Man hath
been, but whether or no he fpake thefe Words
in this Aanner, and whether they are falfe;
that they are f{alle, is graumted, and thar he
{pake themn as they are laid, that we bove

proved.

N, Sl Gen. The Queftions that we were 1o
prove were, Whether Sir Palierce Ward did
oive his Itvidence at the Trial between the Duke
of 2ork und Pilkington? Whether or no he did
{weur pofitively, that Piliingon did not come in
till the Difcourfe concerning the Duke of 24
was over £ Whether he did twear politively, thac
there was no mention made of cutting of Threats ?
Sir Patieace IVard, we fay, did take upon him to
{wear this betore pofitively, and not with that
Reftriction that they would have pafy’d upon
them. We call’d two Wiwnefles, and thev are
both very pofitive in it; for they fwear, That
Sir Paticnce Hard did {wear, That al the Difiourfe
concerning the Duke of York was ov.i b fore Mr,
Pilkingron came 1125 that they fwear pofitively,
that he cid 1c pofitively 5 both ot them do {wear,
that Sir Paticnee Fard did take it wpon bis Oath,
andd to the Manner of 1g, poliuively, though he
did not ufe the Wod geftividy, yet they twear
them without anv fuch Reftrdtion.  Thefe aie
the two Witnefics, Hatch and £ ced. 1 hen there
s Sty Fr. Butler hath given you an Account of
his IZvidence, and they did debate 1t among
themivives, and give you the Reafon why they
did not believe Sir Patience Il7urd,  Now, firfl,
they encounter us with the Evidence of M.
Blaiey, and his Notes muft be the Meajure of the
Truth of his Cufe, and nothing muft be raken
for true bat what he hath writ; he tells you at
the fame time he had not writ all,  Mr. Avteruey
made a fuliObfervation upon that: Suppofe he did
fay he cid not hearany mention of catting o f Throats,
or did fay to the bgi of bis Rememdraree, yet furely
that doth not contradict our Wicnefies, that take
upon them to fwear poliuvely, that he fwore it
without any fuch Refiniction; and it is rea-
fonable to believe he might be prefs’d to fay
fomething to the Quelticns that were asked 3 for
if he faid he did hear it, it had been an imma-
terial Evidence, Sir Fr. Butler doth take upon
him to fay, that he did {ay 1t without Reftriction 3
and their confidering the Weight of it to reject
it as untrue, doth make good whar our Witnefles
have faid, that he did fwear it without any Re-
firiction.  But after all this, they fay he cannot
be found guilty, for this might not be wilful
and corrupt Perjury 5 nay, they go fo far, that
they are {etting up a Do&ine, that I dare fay
no Man thall be guiley of Perjury for any Words
he [hall fwear «iffelly and corruptly. If a Nan

is,
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is confcious to himfelf, that the Truth is other-
wife, or if he be uncertain whether it be fo or no,
yet if he take upon him to {wear ir, that is wil-
ful Perjury in him, for he did not know it to be
as he did affirm. Now, my Lord, I fhall offer
but one Circumitance more: Confider how this
Difcourfe did rife ; 1t wasupon a Debate concern-
ing waiting upon his Royal Highnels upon his
Return, they were all prefent in the Gallery at
Guildball 5 and it is reafonable to be prefumed, that
every one muft hear the whole Difcourfe——And
Sir Paticice IVard, by the Aétion he did in this
Cafe, muft be prefumed to hear every Particular
ofit. When Mr., Pilkington came to thefe Words,
He bath burnt the City, and 15 come to cut onr Throals,
Sir Patience Ward catches bim, and flops bins i~
mediately upein bis faying this. Now he thar was
fo near him as to lay Hands apon him, furely it
canpot be prefumed but he muft hear what he
faid, and he check’d hun for what he faid, and
would fain have fetcch’d him oft by an Invention
that ferves to little Purpofe s bur did verify
this, that he had fpoken Words of the Duke of
York, and therefore did adminilter an Excufe to
him 3 thetetore I fay 1t cannot be prefumed buc
that he muft hear 1. But however, if he took
upon him to {ivear a thing pofitively, that he was
sot certain of, it will be wilful and corrupe Perjury
in him. But, they fay, though he fhould fay 1t
pofiavely, 1t muft be underltood be did not bear
i1+ that he fwears there was no fuch Difcourfe
as bz did bear. At this Rate, my Lord, no Man
will be found guilty of Perjury, but there will
be all the Mifchief in the World introduced ;
for a Man that {wears to the beft of his Remem-
brance, there will be no Danger of that Man’s
being indi¢ted of Perjury, that is no Evidence.
Buat a Man that will take upon him to fwear po-
fitively there was no {uch Difcourfe, he is an
Evidence, and a material Evidence in the Cafe,
Suppofe, my Lord, there were Witnefles concern-
ing the Publication of a Man’s Laf i7ill, that there
were two Witnefles did fic upon the fick Man’s
Bed, one fwears he did hear him puoblith it in
that Form, and that this was his Laeft il and
Teflament 5 the other comes and fays pofitively,
he faid no fuch Words; certainly this is a very
material Evidence. Shall that Man come off
from a Conviction of Perjury in this Cafe, by
faying he did not hear? What a dangerous Cafe
arc all Mens Inheritances in at that Rate? My
Lord, I will pot trouble your Lordthip, only
there 1s one Oblervation they have made, which
I cannot let pafs, thatthere is no Damage in the
Cafe, If a Man fhould forge a Deed, and the
Jury detect this Forgery, there is no great Da-
mage, fhall the Man be accufed, becaufe he is
difcovered? Shall no Perjury be punifhed, but
what 1s {uccefsful ¢

St Gen, Fefferics, 1 fhould not have troubled
you in this Caufe, but that Mr. Selicitor was
call’d into another Court, My Lord, I fhall not
offer any thing in this Caule, nor repeat any
thing that hath been faid. My Lord, 1 fhall
fay of this Caufe, what the Gentlemen of the
other Side faid ; it is a Caufe of very great
Confequence, and it 1s a Caufe of that Con-
fequence, that I know it hath a very great Im-
preffion upon your Lordthip, and likewife upon
the Jurys; and they are not now come (o try
whether or no Siv Patience Wara did deal very

fairly between Man and Man in a Matter of Mo-
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ney, but whether or no Sir Patience Ward did
{wear what we have alledged in the Information
he did fwear, and what he did {wear was true:
And for that Matter, my Lord, I muft needs
agree with them ; nay, I cannot believe the Gen-
tiemen of the Jury will take any thing to be
Evidence that is faid by us that are Counci! at
the Bar, but only fofar forth as they have Evi-
dence proved to them in Court; for in cafe we
were to guide Juries, Iconfefs Mr, Pcllexfen hath
determined it, by faying the Jury’s Verdi&t muft
be falfe, if they find againtt Sir Patiznce Ward
which I think is a pretty ftrange Inference, and
one of the fharpelt Inferences for fuch a way of
Reafoning, that I confels my poor Senfe won’t
reach it. In thenext Place, 1 fay, the Gentlemen
of the Jury ought not to take any Confideration
in this of his Reputation, notwithftanding all his
Dealings before this Cavfe 5 for certainly till fuch
time as Sir Patience Ward came to be called upon
his Oath, any Man of Confcience and Tuftice, and
common Charity, had he been afked the Queltion,
he muft have faid he did not believe, that Sir Pa-
tience Ward would wilfully forfwear himfelf. God
forbid arty Man fhould have fuch a Thought of
him, 1f he were a Man of lefs Quality than Sir
Paiteiice Ward! But T muft conclude, that after
Sir Harry Tulfe was of that Opihton, fo I niuft
conclude with Sir Harry Tulfe, if in our Cale he
be to be believed, at that Time he did believe he
did for{wear himlclt. Pray, good Sir, give
me Leave, 1 will not, to the belt of iy Remem-
brance, do you any thing of Injuftice, My Lord,
I do fay, in this Cafe, that though heé hath been
Lord Mayor of Loudeir, and boine the Cflice of
Sheriff, and though heis nowan Alderman, er,
I do fay, Perfons that have borne thefe great Of-
fices, have been guilty of greater Crimes, that
is, Crimes that have greater Punifhments, than
this Gentleman 13 now acculed of 5 1 mean that of
Rebellion, and all that Mankind car be capable
of : So that it is not the Dignity of Place, ex-
cufes Men from Offence.  But certainly upon his
Evidence, Sir Patience IVard ought tobe belicved
by the Jury guilty of wilful Perjury, rather than
three or four Aldermen that fwore againtt him,
Gentlemen, the next Thing 15, the Obfervation
of Mr. Williams, of the Variance and Difference
of Expreflion between thefe two worthy «/der-
men, Sir Harry Tulfe, and Sic William Hooker 5 one
comes and fays as though 1t were pgfitive, Cother
as though 1t were ae%ng/ffwz. If 1t can be exnref-
fed, my Lord, either one way or tother, or
both, he would be guilty of Perjury; for your
Lordfhip remembers the Record mentioned in
this Record, and all the Words that were {wore
by Sir Harry Talfe, were Part of the Action that
Pilkington was charged with 5 all the Words Sir
William Hooker fwore, were likewife Words putin
the Record ; fo that both of them were material
to the Iffue. Now what comes Sir Paticnce I ard
to do? Does Sir Paticnce Ward come and teftify
it to make a Difference between thefe two Gen-
tlemen? You fee both of them agree there was a
Talk of cutting of Throats. Says Sir Harry Tulfe,
Is be now come to cut our Throats 2 Says Sir William
Hooker, Is be now come to cut the Throals of our
Wives and Children 2 What {ays Sir Patience WWard
as a third Man ? He fays there was no fuch Dif-
courfe of cutting of Throats, that is the thing
thefe Gentlemen have a Mind to forger; one fays
he is come to burn the City, Is be come to buarn !}u
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City, fays t'other? That 15 not the main Queftion ;
thefe are little minote Differences, It is the Pru-
dence of Mankind to take all Words in their Af-
firmations, rather than to make Contradittions
between them. In this Cafe he finds there was a
Neceffity to ferve a Turn, and he comes pofitive-
ly, and {ays, all the Difcourfe about the Duke of
York was ended before fuch time as Pilkington
came in; and there is an End of all, in cafe he
{wears true 3 for in this Oath he abfolutely con-
tradi@s what both thefe Gentlemen fwores; for
this is not fuch a little Variance as thefe Gentle-
men would have you to believe. But, Gentle-
men, I fhall apply mylelf to the Evidence they
have offered, which is defigned to overthrow ours.
The firft is, Mr, Blaney, and there is a great Va-
lue put upon Mr. Blairey ; he fat in a convenient
Place, juft in the Middle, and there he took
Notes, and believes he did not alter them., Now
I appeal to your Lordfhip, and the Court, I ap-
peal to the Jury, whether or no their own Wit-
nefs did not hear Sir Patience Ward {ay, be bad ne-
ver been i a Trial; he never took notice of a
Word of that, And another Man (Mr, Baker)
fays, that my Lord Chief fufiice faid, Sir Patience,
Sir Patience, bave a Caiey you [peak according to
the boff of your Remembrance. Now, my Lord,
Mr, Blaney takes not the leaft Notice of that in
his fhort Notes. The Queltion was afked Mr.
Blaney, Can you take, upon your Oath, that he
{wore any thing pofitively, or that he did not?
Truly, I caw’t tclls not in my Hearing, are his
Words. Next comes Beaver 3 his Word was, iz
my Hearing. It was Mr, Blaney’s Short-hand Re-
marks that Mr. Beaver prefaces all his Difcourfe
with, to the beft of my Remembrance, They
have called Witnefles that could not be politive,
I appeal to your Lordfhip, and the Memory of
the Jury, whether ever any one of them was able
to fay, that the Words, 20 the bt of my Remem-
brance, were annex’d to this, or that, or t’other
Sentence. But, my Lord, on the other Side, I
mult fay, that there a-¢ here Aldermen that have
fat upon the Bench, and have behaved them-
felves with Loyalty and Integrity to the King
and Government; thefe very Aldermen here do
pofitively fay, Sir Fames Smith, Six fobn Peake,
Sir William: Rawfierne 5 1t s true he cannot be po-
fitive as to the Bufinefs concerning cuiting of
Thieats 3 but as to the firft, does not Sir Fames
Smith particularly fay, 1 cannot fay sehether be did
fay pofitively, or sohether bz did fay, upon my Oath
but he did undertake to fay, that either the one
or the other he was poflitive in, that he was very
exprefs, that the Duke of 257k was not named af-
ter Pilkington came in. And for the faying, that
Blaney took Notes at that very Time, therefore
Mr. Blaney muft be a Man of Ten thoufand, as
they call him ; he is worth Ten thoufand Witnef-
fes, becaufe he took Short-hard Notes: I would
have you confider what Sir Francis Butler fays,
that was Foreman of the Jury at that Time, tha

bid Sir Francis Lee take notice of it at that Time s
he did it pofitively: He fays, Sir Fraucis took no-
tice of that, and fays he, we debated it immediately
among ourfelues,  And I remember, particularly,
Sir Francis Lee, Siv Francis Butler, and Sir Thomas
Field, all three do agree together ;s this pofitive
Oath they fwear Sir Patignce Ward did make,
They did debate immediately after, among them-
{elves, two Witneffes fivearing againft him was

the Occafion of the Debate, Bur, my Lord, I
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muft come to another Thing: Mr. 4ffon, a Clerk
in the Court, a Man very well us’d both to Write-
ing and Hearing; Mr. 4ffon, as well placed as
Mr. Blaney, he gives this Account: [ do pofitively
fay, That the Duke was not named after fuch time as
Pilkington came there.  But his being a frail Me-
mory, as they would have it, and no Notes to
refrefh him, they put no great Value upon 1t: Bug
I remember what Mr. Affon faid 3 T have feveral
Times afked the Queftion, and that makes me
contain this Thing in my Memory. This does
Mr. Affon pofitively fpeak to. So there, Gens
tlemen, all thefe five or {ix {everal Wimeffes Jdo
pofitively fwear to it: The two firlt Witneffes
they are pofitive, Hatch and Weod 5 they do di-
reCtly fwear to every Particular. Gentlemen, you
are not to mind the Flourifhes that are made by
the Gentlemen at the Bar 3 here isa Lord Mayor
of London, here is an Alderman, can you believe
him guilty? But do you think, that thefe Gentle-

men of Quality, that have acquitted themielves

{o dutifully, and {o loyally, as they have done,
and f{o faithfully, that no Man can lay a Blemifh
upon them, wil] you take it upon your Oaths, that
thefe Gentlemen are forfworn? Will you take it
upon your Oaths? That will be a {trange Thing!
The Laws and the Exercife of Juftice are con-
cern’d, and are to be maintai’d. I beg your
Lordfhip’s Pardon, that I have taken up fo much
Time. My Lord, I fay, Juftice is to be done;
there 1s no Man fo big as to be exempted from
Punifhment : The greater the Perfon is, the greater
is his Crime. One that will come and tell an
Untruth in 2 Court of Juftice, the greater the
Perfon, the more 15 the Crime.  We have given
your Lordfhip, and the Gentlemen of the Jury, an
Account of the Matter before you, and we fhall
leave it to you.

L.C.}. Gentlemen of the Jury, this 1s an In.
formation againft Sir Patiznce Ward for Perjury s
and the Information doth fet forth, that there was
an Action that was brought by his Royal High-
nels again{t Thomas Pilkington, and it was for
fpeaking fcandalous Words of his Highnefs;
faying, he burnt the City, and that be was come to
cut their Throats, and cut their Wives and Childrens
Throats. Thele were the Words that were laid in
that A€tion. That Aétion was in this Court in
Michaelmas Term laft, The Information that
now is before you, is this: Sir Paticnce [Vard he
was {worn to give Evidence, and that he in his
Evidence, upon his Oath, did pofitively fwear,
upon mentioning the Difcourfe concerning his
Royal Highnefs, by Pilkington, and concerning
his burning the City, and cutting of Throats, Sir
Patience did {ay, that there was not any mention
of cutting of Thioats at all, and that bifore Mr.
Pilkington came iu the Difeourfz of the Duke of York
was over,  And upon this Mr. ditorney General
hath affigned a Perjury, that this was falfe ; where-
upen tae Defendant hath pleaded Not guilty. The
Queftion 1s, whether Sir Paticiice I ard is guilty of
this Perjury, or nc. In the firj? Place, I muft
aver to you, that 1f fo be this was falfe, then this
muft be what the Liaw calls a wilful and malicious
Perjury.  For it wi.. the very Point in Queftion
then, 1t was sn Action brought againft Piltinglon s
the Queftion, Whether he faid thefe Words or not¢
And Sir Patience }Ward he did come, and did fwear,
that there was no fuch thing, Plainly, that was to
acquit the Defendant. So that it was the principal
Mattey/zhat was to be confidered. Now for aught
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I do perceive plainly — Pray do not go with
any Miftake, for I would beloth to do wrong in
this; but as far as I do perceive, one Side and
t’other upon the Matter do agree, that if Sir
Patience Ward did {wear it pofitively, it is agreed
on both Sides, thatit wasfalfe; itis agreed ; for
aughe I fee, there is nothing atall faid to the con-
trary. Here are three fubftantial Men, Men of
very good Quality, that do all fay there was a
Difcourfe of his Royal Highnefs in Pilkington’s
Prefence, and inthe Prefence of Sir Paticice Ward s
they do likewife all of them fwear, that there were
fuch Words. So chat I fay it 1sagreed, for aught
that I fee, chat it is plain, that it was fo in Faét,
that there was a Dilcourfe of the Duke, and chat
it was in Pilkington’s Prefence, and thar there was
likewile mention of cutting of Throats. Now
the Matter that you are to conlider; 1 will tell
you, you are to confider,. whether or no this was
fpoken by Sir Patience IWard pofitively, or, as the
Defendants would have it, that it was not {fpoken
in his Hearing, or as he remembered ; for they
would qualify it, and fay that the Defendant did
not fay it pofitively, but with thofe Quahfications;
and if with thofe Qualifications, then 1t 1s plain
he cannot be convicted of Perjury 5 becaufe no
Man can be convicted for faying he did not re-
member.  This I muft obferve to you though,
by the way, fuppole now that Sir Patience 1 ard
comes here, and fays that it was not fpoken in his
Hearing, or in his Remembrance, take 1t that
way, there Is this confiderable Why Sir Patience
Ward did hear it fpoken, and {o far heard it,
that he took notice of ir, and would reftrain i,
and put an Interpretation upon itf Would any
Man, that had minded his Oath, would Je have
faid, that nothing was faid in his Hearing, when
even he himfelf was prefent; nay, and {o take
away the Iixcufe of his not hearing, though he
were by ? Fle himfelf takes notice of it, and if I
take 1t right, he puts an Interpretation upon it when
he talk’d of burning the City ; Oh, it is Hubert,
It is very hard for a Man to fwear it was not in his
Hearing, Pray fet me right, if I mif-
fake,

Mr. Pollexfen. No Man denies but thefe Words
were {poken ; but the going to 8% Fames’s, and
the Duke of 2ork, whether that were not before
he came in?

Sir Geo. fefferies. It wasone intire Sentence, my
Lorxd.

L. C. ¥. I do take it, the Evidence was, that
Piltington did fay, he had burnt the City, and he
was, or would, come to cut their Childrens
Throats ; that was1n one Sentence : For the burn-
ing the City, Sir Patience Ward being there at
that Time when Pilkington faid the Words, 05,
fays he, you mean Hubert ; ask’d the Queftion, I ho
be meant by it ¢ he meant Hubert.

Mr. Williams, He did not hear t’other Part,

L. C. 7. That I will leave to the Jury ; thatis
to fay, there were upon the Matter but two Claufes,
buriing the City, and coming to cut our Throats.
And now 1t is, for aughe I perceive, agreed, that
Sir Patience did hear one Part of the Sentence,
and did not hear Cother. But this I will make
an Qbfervation on by-and-by. But furely he did
not {o well, if it were ho more than that for a
Man to fay he did not hear any fuch thing, when
it 1s plain he took notice of it ac the fame time.
For that, Gentlzmen, that they fay here is no Man
that hach any Harm 5 if a Man does commiz wil-
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ful Perjury, though no Man Is injured by it, hath
not he committed a Crime ? And though he had
notinjured any Man by his Perjury, itmight have
fallen out, that he might have done it; andif {o
be 1t hath not Succefs, it is the fame Crime : For
1t 15 very plain, if fo be the Jury had given a
greater Credit to Sir Patience Ward, thanthey did
to the other two Gentlemen, then it 1svery plain
it had gone another way, and that had been an
Injury. And therefore, Gentlemen, that is no-
thing at all. But that you muft lay afide, and
you muft come to this Matter, that 1s the prin-
cipal Point. The Queftion is, Whether or no Sir
Patience Ward did give his Evidence with Quali-
fication, as he did believe, oras he had heard, or
believed, or whatfoever it was, or whether he did
give the Evidence pofitively.  Atthe Trial there
was two, I think three, bur two that were at firft
examined, that did prove the Words {poken by
him againft the Duke of Zork, and {wore they
did reprove him for it. Sir Paticuce Ward was
produced by the Defendant, for to defend the Ifiue
on his Side, and to prove him to be not guilty
in that Action, that he had not faid the Words.
Now it is plain, if fo be Sir Paticace ¥ ard faid
only, I doi’t belicve fich a Thing, I don’t remember
it, or any fuch thing, that certainly had not been
an Evidence that had been worth the Confidera-
tion of the Jury ; for that was no more Evidence
than any Men that they might take up s the nexe
Man in the Court mighc have faid, he did not be-
lieve it, or the like. Now for the King, in this
Cafe, there are feveral, I think there are eight
or niney and they all of them do fay, that they
remember it very well; nay, and fome of the
Witnefies do fay, they took fpecial Notice of it
then, for they were fomething aftonifh’d to hear
fuch Evidence. It 1s true, all of them don’t come
to both Parts, but either to one Pare, or to both ;
they all agree in this, that it was politive Evi-
dence, and not as be believed, or heard. There
was a Queftion about Mr. Afleir, and he was afked
himfelf; he fays it was pofitive 5 if he did qualify
it, it was fo low, he could not hear 1t and that
he might do as he pleafed, I think there 1s none
of thefe Gentlemen, that any thing atall isto be
alledged againft. Thar eight or nine Gentlemen,
and fome of them of very good Quality, and all
of them of very good Credit, that they {hould
join together to perjure themiclves, for a Revenge
upon Sir Paticice IFard, is ftrange. For aughe
appears, there is not any Man appears, but is for-
ry for him, and fome of them have a Kinancls
and Refpect for kim. That is the Evidence the
former give; Ican’t go to every one of the Evi-
dences, toopen what they fay ; that will make 1t
very long ; and I think there is no Occafion for it.
You have heard it well, and I believe remember 1t
better, poffibly, than I do, On the azher Side,
for the Defendants: They do bring you, in the
firft place, Mr. Blaney 5 and he does fay, That he
hath raken Notes, and in his Notes it was by Qua-~
lifications that Sir Patience Ward did fpeak, that
it was according to the beft of his Knowledge,
and that he was here, and fat here in a Place
wherc he could very well hear all that was faid,
and that Le took it from Sir Patience Ward’s
Mouth. This is faid againfl him, that it 1s plain
he did not take every thing 5 and whether or no
this was taken truly, or not, is fill a Queftion
for you to cenfider on.  They, when they did
call him, #id fav he was as good as Ten thonfand.
3 7 They
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They would have his Witnefs to be of nore Va-
lue than Nine thoufand that did fwear upon their
Memories, and they had fome Reafon to fay {o
too, for to obferve there 1snever a Man that does
come pofitively ; but he does fay, as he takes it,
angd he was fure it was right, although in fome
other Parts it is plain he <did mifs. But he does
{ay, it was true. But then for the next Witnefles,

Mr. Bzaver and Mr. Crifp, they do come and fay,
how thatthe Defendant did interlard his Difcourfe,
as he believed, and as he heard. But when he
came to be pinched upon that Point, Do you fwear
this Thing pofitively, or according to the beft
of your Memory, then every one of them, (pray
correét me, if I be miftaken) every one of thele
Winefles did fay, it was according to the beft of
Memory. And, Gentlemen, the nine Witnefles
on t’other Side, every one of them did take it
upon them.

Council, No, no.

L.C.¥. Look you, look you, Gentlemen, one
{pake to one Part of the Words, another to an-
other; but thefe Witnefles did {wear pofitively to
what they did fwear.

Mr. Williams. They were upon their Memories,
ftill.

Mr. Jult, Withins.  Siv Fraucis Butler, Sir Henry
Lce, was not, nor Sir Thomas Ficld s and Hatch

and /¥eed was not.

L. C. ¥. But did take it upon them pofitively.
For your Witnefies, there was B:awver, and Crifp,
and J/7rizht, thefe three they dia fay, that Sir Pa-
ticice 17 ard did 11y, as be belicved, or according
to the beft of his Memory ; but they would not
take it upon their Memories precifely, but accord-
ing to the beft of their Memcries, And now
for Colonel Bivch, and Northey, and Neljon, and
Baker, and Pery 5 they faid, that he faid, accord-
ing 1o the beft of his Memory, but they could
not hear very well what wuas fald 5 fo that they
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could nct fay any one Sentence that was faid, and
that 1s, I think, the moft of the Evidence, all
your Evidence, "as {0 Words. You have brnucrht
fome Perfons to teftify for Credit; truly, |
think, that of all the Aldermen, one that hath
pals’d the Chair, thould not have brought under
an Alderman, at leaft, to have ]u{hhcd him,
But *us plain there are ‘others come and fay, he
was a fair Dealer, and they have known him for
a great many Years, Nay, I muft confefs, here
was one of his Brethren, Sir Harry Tulfe, and truly
he looked upon him as a fair Dealer, and did
not look upon him as ftain’d with any enormous
Vice whatfoever, When he was afked by the
King’s Counfel, whether he did belie.e he had
{worn true in this Parcicular, he could not fay to
there. But, Gentlemen, for all this, I do not
fee any thing, whatfoever hath been faid, that doth
ftick upon his Reputation, only this very Thing
that he muft be tried upon. And, thtlcmen,
upon the Evidence you have h&dld you are {o
conflider the Merits of the Caule, and not the
Perfon, one way or other, any otherwife than
doth relate to it.  If you believe the Witnefles
that have fworn for the King, that he did (wear
this pofitively, then 1t isagreed, that it was falie s
if he did fwear it pofitively, then you muft find
the Defeirdait Guilty, 1f fo be you believe the Evi-
dence that hath been given on the Defendant’s
Part, agaimnft the King’s Evidence, if you do be.
lieve that, and not thc. King’s Ev:dcncc then you
muft acquit the Defendant, It is 1 preatl Crime,
that 1s the Truth of 1.

The Fury witldreco, and after _/Eum Tine 7e-
turi’dy aid bionght the Befendant in Guilty 3
but before the Dﬂ_}* for Senteiice, by thousht
it beft to go oul of 1o Way, baving bad
Tntelligence they dutcaded to et bui i ibe
Pillary.
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PN Hurfdsy Fuly 12,1633, at the Seffiviis
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R, 5 -—“L Houfe in the Old Bailey, London:
(ﬁ@ ,i,,...‘ The Court being met, and Procla-
"”“ M mation made for Attendance, the

a0 L*
’t{?ﬂ_@ Proceedings were as follow :

Thomas Walcot being {et to the
Bar, and after having held up his Hand, the In-

dlftment was read as follows:

London. The Furors for our Severeign Lord the
Kiug, upon their Oaths, prefenty That Thomas Wal-
cor, late of Londen, Gentleman, as a falfe Traitor
ngar.«;_'ﬁ the moft Hluftiious and Excellent Prince, our

Sovercian Lord Charles I1. by the Grace of God, of
anriand Scotland, France and Ireland King, bis
satitral Lor d, not baving the Fear of God in bis Heart s
stor sweighing the Duty of his Allcgiance, but being
moved and feduced by the Infligation of the Deuvil s

aind the irue Duty, and natural Obedience, whien True

* Barnet's Hillory of his Own Times, Vol. L. P 538

and Faithful Subjelts of onr Severeignn Lord the King,
towards hint ous jmd Loid the Kiug, do bear, aid
of Right ought to beairy woholly withdrawii g3 rznd it
his <whols Strength ffff"-f’dhfg the Peace and commoi
Tranquillity of his K cdein of England fo diffurt,
aid War avd Rebellion againft our faid Lord the
Kiug 1o move aid flir up, aiid the ‘Governmeit of
0t ﬁz:d Lord the King wwithin this Kingdom of Eng-
land t9 fubuvert, and our faid Lovd e’ba tha ﬁm
bis Titrz, Hoioer aird Kingly Name of the Im[*.ﬂmf
Crotuir ﬂf this bis Kingdom of England to put down
and deprive, aind our faid Lord the King io Death
and final Deftruétion to bring and ut, the ﬁcmm’ Day
of March, in the Year of the Retgin of onr Scvereign
Lord Charles . King of Eﬂﬂ]d.'ld &re. the Five-
and-thirtieth, and divers other Days and Times, as
well before as after, at the szﬂ: of St. Michael
Baffithaw, in the Hard of Baflifhaw, London,

afcrefaid, malicionfly and traitevoufly, <with divers
other
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other Traitors, to the Turors aforefaid unkiown, did
confpire, compafi, imagine and intend our Jaid Lord
the King, bis Supreme Lovd, not only of his Kingly
Statey, Tutle, Power and Goveriment of this bis King-
dom of England io deprive and throg dowon, but
alfo our faid Lord the King to Ml aud to Degth
to bitig and put, and the antient Goveryiseny of Lhis
bis Kingdom of England to chasge, aller, and wholly
/o fupverty and a miferable Slaughter amoig ft the Stb-
jels of our faid Loid the Ning, through bis whol.
Rigdom of England, 1o caufe and procure, aud In.
furiedtion and Rebellion agaiitft our faid Lord 1he King
to move, and flir up, <within 1his Kingdom of Eng.
land = And to fulfil and perfeit the Jaid moft hoiri-
ble Treafons, and traiterous Compaffings, Imaginations
aid Purpofes aforefaid, the faid Thomas Walcot gs o
falfe Traitor, their and therey and divers other Days
aid Times, as well before as after, malicionfly, tra;-
teiofly and advifedly did affemble, meet together and
confult with the aforefaid other Traitos, to the Y-
rors aferefaid unknowi, and with
and for the executing and perfelling their Treafons,
Compaffings, Imaginations and Purpofes aforefaidy and
that the faid Thomas Walcor g5 4 falfe Traitor,
malicionfly, iraiteronfly, and advifedly, then and
therey and divers other Dy y§ aiid Times, as well .
Jore as_after, did take upoi bimfelf, and to the afore-
faid other Traitors did proife to be aiding and affift-
rig a ihe Execulion of the Treafous, and traijeroys
Compaflings, Imaginatiois and Purpofes aforefaid y and
. retiding drimsur and arined Men, to fulfil and

Ferfels the faid Treafous and Iraiterons ompaffings,
Imaginations aid Purpofes aeforefaid,  And the Jaid

moff wicked Tireafons, and traiterous Con paffings, Ima-
ginations and Puipofes afsrofaid to Julfil aid bring 1
pafs, be the faid Thomas Walcor 45 4 Jalfe Trai.
to1'y malkicioufly, tratieronfly and advifedly, then and
there did procuie and prepaie Arimsy to wit, Blunder-
buffes, Caibizzes, and Piflols, againft the Duty of his A)-
legiance, againft the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the
King, bis Crowin and Digiity, and againft the Foppy
of the Statutes in that Cafe mads: aid provided, &c,

Clof Cr. What fayft thou, Thomas [ alror 2 Art
thou Guilty of this High T'reafon, whereof thou
ftandeft indi€ted, or Not guilty ?

Capt. Walcor. Not guiley,

Choof Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be tried ;

Capt. Walcot. By God and my Conntrey.

Cl of Cr. God iend thee a good Deliverance.

Then were William Hone, John Roufe, 214
William Blague arraigied, swhe pleaded Not
aullty o ther Indiftments 5 and 1he Coust
adjorii’d Lill the dfternoon, When Tho mas
Walcot being again brought 1o the Bar, after
fome Exceptions, the Jellowing Jury was iy,
zanelld,

Williain Rutland,
Thomas Short,

Nicolas Chariton,
Chriftopher Pitts,

Rabert Bedding field, Tur Theophilus Man,
Fobir Pellig, Jobn Genew,
William W indpniry, Fohn Short,
Thoumas Seaton, Thomas Nichslas,

Cryer. Oyes, If any one can inform my Lords
the King’s Juitices, &,

L.C. 7. Mr. Sheriffs, This is an
extraordinary Cafes it is reafonable
the Lividence fhould be well heard -
I'require you both to leep the Court quicr,.——

Jor High Treafon,

them did treat of

68¢
Mr. Tanner, fwear the King’s Evidence one a¢ g
time, .

Clerk, Thomas Walcor, Hold up thy Hand. You
of the Jury, look upon the Prifoner, and hearlien
to his Charge: He ftands indiéted by the Name
of Thomas Walcot, Gent, prout in :the IndiCtment
before, mutatis mutandss Upon this Indi@men;
he hath been arrdigned, and thereunto pleaded
Not guilty, and for his Trial put himfelf upon
his Country; which Country you are, Your
Charge is to inquire, e

Mr. North, May it pleafe your Lordthip, and
you that are fworn, the Prifoner ftands charged,
That he being a ‘falfe Traitor to the King,
intending to raife War and Rebellion againft
King, and to bring his Majefty [0 an untimely
Death, did on the fecond of March in the five-
and-thirtieth Year of the King, at the Parifh of
St, Michael Baffifbats, meet with other Traitors
like himfelf, and there conipired o bring thefe
Treafons to Effec: and accordingly promifed to
be aiding and affifting to provide Arms for it 3
and did actually provide feveral Arms, as Car-
bines, Blunderbufles, and Piftols, for the perpe-
trating this Treafon, This is the Charge, to which
he fays he is Not qutlty. We will call our Wi

nefles and prove it, and thep you are to find
it

Mr, Ait. Gen. Gentlemen of the
Jury, the Prifoncr at the Bar is accy.
fed of the higheft of Crimes, High
T'reaton againft his Sovereign Lord, in compaf-
fing the Murder of the King, in raifing Rebel-
hon within this Kingdom, to the overthrowing of
the beft conftituted, and the moft excellent Go-
vernment in the World, Gentlemen, he does
not ftand alone; and therefore he ;e charged in
the Indi@ment ‘with 2 Conlpiracy with many
others ; T am hearrily forry to fay there are many,
Indeed there is hardly any Kingdom or Nation,
wherein there are not dif; contented Perfons, whofa
narrow Fortunes,or malevolent Spirits,render them
unealy in that Condition God Almighty hath put
them ; bue to find Men that pretend to be Chri-
ftians, or to have any thing of Virtue, and undey
the beft of Governments, that indeed s & matcer
of Wonder ; and indeed it cafts fo areat a Stain
and Reproach upon the Proteftant Name, that
It is not to be wiped off, but by the fevereft Ju-
ltice of the Kingdom. Gentlemen, this Defign
was for a general Rifing, and at the fame time to
affaffinate the King and the Duke of 2ark : This
is the Defign which the whole Courfe of our Evi-
dence will open to you, and lies o naked, that
I hope no Euglifiman tha lives, bur will fee
through thefe Men, that have made fuch 2 Notfe
and Tumult in thefe latter Days, This Defign o
affaffinate the King, and the Rifing, was defigned
ta be in Offober laft, upon the King’s Return from
Newmarket 5 and ar thar time there was a No-
ble Lord, that is gone now to his own Place, as
will appear by the Evidence, that furnifhed them
with confiderable Sums of Money, for the provi-
ding Men and Arms for the aflaffinating the King
at cthat time 5 but the Aflaffinates were not then
ready, as God appointed they fhould not.be rea-
dys and fo at that time they were difappointed.
Then the general Rifing was put off'.till Queen
Elizabeth’s Day, which will open your Eyes to
fee upon what Grounds the tumultuous Meerings
were encouraged in the City, to.the Terror of al] ,
heneft Men: But dhar Rifing was alfo difappointed

becaufe

the
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becaufe fome of the Confpirators were not ready
with their Men in the Country. And then, Gen-
tieimen, though it was prefs’d on by the Perfon
I mentioned, he then thought it high time to
leave thefe Confederates to themfelves. Gentle-
men, after this we fhall trace them in their feveral
Meetings and Confultations; for there was a time,
that they ftruggled with themfitlves, which fhould
be effected firlt, whether they fhould firft kill the
King and the Duke 5 or whether they fhould firfl
rile, and profecute him in an open Rebellien, and
deftroy him that way. And the Courfe of our Evi-
dence will fhew, how ingenious thefe Men were 3
for it appears there were Men of great Ingenuity
and Courage, as appears by the Prifoner at the
Bar; and they would difcourfe of thefe Marters
in Phrafes, that common Perfons fhould not un-

derltand them.
Capt. Walcot. 1 do not underftand you.

Mr. At, Gen. 1 {peak asloudas I can. At their
Meetings, for cutting off the King, that was 1he
execttling of a Barpain and Sale s and a fhort Cou-
veyance, tocome to their End. The raifing of a
War, that was under the Notion, and fo to be
dilcours’d of, of executing a Leafe and Relea'e, to
vort: both upon the Poffcffion and ujcnthe Reverfion :
And under thefe myftical Terms they difcours’d
of all thefe Subjeéts, when they were in publick
Places,

Capt. Haleor, 1 do not hear.

M, AL Gen. You will hear the Witnefies, and
that will concern youmore. Then, Gentlemen,
In thefe feveral Meetings they contrived to allor
every Man in his Part; {ome wereto provide Arms,
others were to provide Men to do the Execution,
which was laft refolved upon to be atthe Rye, upon
the King’s laft Return from Azwmarker.  Gentle-
men, in all thefe Parts, which I hope to prove,
the Prifoner will appear to have a principal Part
m them all : In all the Con{ultations and Adwifings
for the raifing Men, wherein he was to be a prin-
cipal Commander, aczording to the Skill he hath ;
but for the Aflaflination at the Rye, Rumbold was
to conduct the Men hired for that Purpofe.  Gen-
tlemen, accordingly the Time was appointed for
his Majefty to come, and the Alaflinates to meet
him there: Butit plealed God, that thar was dif
appotnted by a miraculous Fire ; for fo all £xgli/b-
men may call it: And whereas they were to 2o
down on Friday to Kumbeld’s Houfe, and the
King to come up on Safurday, the Fire brought
him to Town on Tufiay: But notwithftanding
this great Providence to divert them, Rumbold
and others of the Confederates refolved to go
on with it ftill ; and feveral Places were appointed,
and feveral Officers were appointed to view thofe
Places, either between Hampton-Conrt and Windjor,
or elfe to do it at the Play-houfes or upon the
King’s Paflage from the Play-houfe, by Bedferd-wall
at Covent-Garden 5 but if thefe fhould fail, rhey
were refolved to do it at the Bull-feaff.  Gentle-
men, they went further; they provided Arms ;
which very Arms opportunely fell into our Flands :
We feized thofe very Arms that were bought for
that Purpofe to kill the King and the Duke. We
fhall go through with it 5 I will name you the
matertal Places of their Meetings, that {o you
may underf{tand the Witnefles ; the Giver-Dragon
Tavern on Smow-hill, the Salntation Tavern in Lom-
bard-fireet, the Angel Tavern near the Lxchange,
and Mr. ef’s Chamber in the Middle-Temple
thefe were fome of the principal Places, tho’ they
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had feveral other Places, whereinall thefe Matters
were confulted and tranfacted. They had pre-
pared a new Model of Government, and they were
for overturning all, as all thefe Politictans do; the?®
they had a moft excellent Government, yer they
had a better in their own Brains; or, at leaft,
their Share would be greater 1n it, as all Rebels
have a Profpet of. Gentlemen, for the other
Parts, we thall have lefs Occafion to give Evidence
of now; for every one had their particular
Part ;3 fome for the great Defign of the Rifing,
fome for the Killing of the King, whereof that
Gentleman, the Priloner, was one 3 and there
were other Parts affign’d to others, for taking
and furprifing the Tower. We will call cur Wi
neflus, and proveall that we have opened, and make
it as clear to you as the Sun fhines: Such a pro-
digious Villainy nothing buta Firebrand fromHes
could kindle in Mens Minds, to kill the beft of
Kings, and to deftroy the beft Frame of Govern-
ment. Gentlemen, 1 do not queftion your Jullice,
but that this Man fhall pay what 1s ‘due to the
Jultice of the Kingdom.

Mr. Serg. Fefjeries. My Lord, I only defire to
aive an Account of the Method of ocur [yi-
dence.

Capt. Falcot. My Lord, Idefire I may have
the Favour of Pen and Ink.

L.C. 7. That you fhall have.

Mr. Serg, fefferies. My Lord, and you, Gentle-
men of the Jury, Mr. Autorney hath already
given you an Account of the Dcfign that was to
be put in Execution by a Parcel of evil Men,
whereof the Prifoner at the Bar we charge to be
one. We fhall not detain you longer wich open-
ing the Matter, but beg the Favour of the Court,
that we may acquaint you a little with the Method
we 1niend to follow in calling our Evidence for
the King againft the Prifoner at the Bar,  In the
firlt place, my Lord, we will call our Witneffes,
to give your Lordfhip and the Jury Satisfaction,
That there wasa Defign in general, and thatchat
Delign was firlt intended to be a general Rifing
over all the Kingdom 5 in which Defign the Pn-
foner at the Bar had a very confiderable Shurc ;
and was looked upon to be a very proper and fic
Perfon for the Managery of that Part of the De-
fign : For other Meetings, and at what Places,
Mr. Attorney hath already opened toyou, We
will then come to more particular Agreements
that were between them, in order to the carrying
on this admirable good Work, as it hath been truly
ftated, for the Deftruction of the beft and molt
merciful of Kings, and for the Deftrution of the
belt of Religions, the Religion of the Church of
Ligland, 1 take Nortice of it, becaufe all Men
may know, The moft of thefe Perlons, nay all
of them, concerned in this hellith Confpiracy,
were Diffenters from the Church of Lngland,

And the better ¢o effet this horrid Villainy, (I
am [ure I want Words, and {o does any Man elfe,
to exprels the Bafenefs of thefe Crimes, the better
toeffect chis Thing) the way it was to be done,
was by taking off the King, and by taking off
lus Brother too. At length after feveral Debates,
and fome Propofals made between thele Perfons,
they came toa Determination, and an aual Refo-
lution, to take off the King, and his Royal Brother.
My Lord, we will prove generally, that this was
the Intent of the Delign or the Plot in general,
My Lord, we will then give you an Account,
That chey entered mnto fevers] Confuliations for

1 new
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a new Model and Frarie of Government; for they
intended to fet up the People, and they had
even fx’d a certain Superiority, and refolved, as
all People of their Principles'havc a mind, ac-
coiding to their feveral Inclinations, to fix the
Power in the People ; Gentlemen, an old Tenet,
that brought the King’s Father to that untimely
and horrid End, by fixing the Power in the Peo-
ple. Thefe Gentlemen had a mind to infinuate
and engage the People, by fixing the Power in
them, and faying, that publick Proclamations were
to be made. And after this horrid and barbarous
Murder intended upon the King and the Duke,
there were Declarations to be made in the Names
of fuch and fuch Lords, and the Aflociating Mem-
bers of the laft Houfe of Commons; thefe were
the Perfons thought fit, in whofe Hands the
Power of the whole Kingdom fhould be lodged.
Gentlemen, after we have given you an Account
of the feveral Meetings, then we will come to
the Prifoner at the Bar, and prove againft him,
That he had not only an Hand in the firft Part
of the Plot, about the Rifing, but he was alfo to
be one of thofe Villains that were to murder
the King : I cannot exprefs myfdlf in more mo-
derate Terms, and I am fure no Man can blame
me that hears the Proof. Gentlemen, when we
i..ve thus given you this Evidence, I hope we thall
fausty -he Court, and all Mankind, That Perfons
that have been thus guilty, under Pretence of Re-
ligion, or under any other Pretence whatloever,
are fit Objecls of the Severity of human Laws.
If we prove againft the Prifoner at the Bar, That
he had an Hand in this horrid Confpiracy, I make
no Doubt but you will fhew yourlelves to be
Englifbmen, loyal Men, and overtake all Men
that thirlt after the King’s Blood.

Mr. So/. Gen. Gentlemen, we will
call our Witnefles; and as no Man
can doubt, but the Murder of the
King, that vile Defign, would have been fecond-
ed by a Power to back that hornid Villany 5 fo we
fhall fhew you, That this Gentleman was concern.
ed in both Parts, in the immediate Aflaflination
of the King, and the raifing of Arms. We need
rot go about to give you an Hiftory of the Thing
any other way than in applying it to this Perfon,
for there is no Part of this Confpiracy he can clear
himfelf from, and all the Evidence that fpeak of
this Defign, {peak of this Man as a chief Aéor
m it

Mt Ati. Gen, Call Col. Rumfey.

[Who was fuoory,

Mr. Sol. Gen, Col. Rumfzy, Pray, give my Lord
and the Jury an Account of what you know of the
Prifoner at the Bar, whether he were concerned,
either in relation to the Murder of the King, or
the raifing Arms.

L.C.F. Mr. Rumfzy, raife your Voice fo audi-
bly, that you may be heard.

Col. Rumfey. The firft Meeting I had with this
Gentleman was at Mr. 7¢#’s Chamber,

Mr. Ait. Gen, Before you begin to tell of your
Meeting, give an Account of any Rifing that you
heard of,

Col. Rumfey. Sir, about the latter End of Of-
ber, or the Beginning of November, I was with
my Lord §haftfbury late at Night, and he told me,
That the Duke of Monmouth, my Lord Ruffel,
my Lord Grey,and Sir Thomas Armflrong, were at
one Mr, Shepherd’s Houle, near Lombard-fireet. He
defired me to go to know what they had done

Mr, Firch,
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about the raifing Ardis at Tammion, I did 00,
and Mr. Shepberd carried me up to them, and
they told me, That Mr. Trenchard had failed them

about the Men, and they could proceed no fur-
ther at that time,

L. C. 7. What Shepherd was this? |

Col. Rumjfey. Mr. Shepherd, the Merchant, near
Lombard-fireet, one Mr. Thomas Shepberd. ~And
fo I came to my Lord the next Day, and told

him of it; and then he made his Preparation to
be gone for Hslland, *

L.C. 7. What Difcourfe had you with my Lord
Soafifbury thereupon? What did he fay? What
made you believe he made Preparation to be
gone?

Col. Rumfey. My Lord, he faid there was no
Dependence upon thofe Ge:iilmia thur mer,
and he would leave Engl7nd,  After that, a Fort-
night or three Wecks, there was a Meeung one
Day at Mr, Weff’s Chamber, aad chere was Mr.
Wefty and Mr, Goodenz»zo, and Mr. Pade, and
fomebody elfe there was, but I cannot remem-
ber his Name, Captain IFalcot was in Follaud then.
There it was propofed nothing was to be done
by a general Rifing 5 but there was no furer way
than 1o take off the King and the Duke; and
that to that Intent and Purpofe they could not
carry it on without Mr. Fergufon 3 and fo he was
writ for into Hvulland y and he came out of Holland
upon that Letter, and Captain Walecot with him.
After Mr, Fergufor’s coming back from Hollaud,
there was very fuddenly a Meeting again, and then
it was concluded, that nothing was to be effeted
without taking off the King and the Duke, or to
that Purpofe. Mr. Fergufon was not at that Meet-
ing. There were two or three Meetings before
Captain Walcot was there, to find out Men, and
they could not find out 2 Number of Men, with-
out which Mr, Rumbold would not undertake it
So, about three or four Meetings after, Captain
Walcot came; and he was reflolved at laft to join
in the Matter 3 but he would not have any Hand
in attacking the Coach, but he would command
a Party that fthould charge the Guards,

L.C.7. What did he fay?

Col. Rumfey. Fle would not meddle with the
King in the Coach, but he would command a
Party that fhould charge the Guards that came
along with him.

Mr. Att. Gen. After what manner was it fettled
that it fhould be done?

Col. Rumfey. There were feveral Parties; ope
{mall Party was to have killed the Poftilion, an-
ther to kill the Horles, and Mr. Rumbold with a
certain Number to feize the Coach, and Capt.
Walcot the Guards.

Mr, Att, Gen, Where was it to be done?

Col. Rumfey. At Mr. Rumbold’s Houfe.

L.C.¥. Where is that?

Col. Rumjfey. Near Hodfdou.

L. C. 7. Forwhat Purpofe was Mr. Ruubold and

thofe other Men to attack the Coach
Col. Rumfey. To murder the King and the

Duke,
L.C.7. How was it defign’d to be done, by

Piftol, or how? |
Col, Rumfey. By Blunderbufies, and if they mii-

fed, then Swords, | o
Mr. Att. Gen. Did they give any Directions

about preparing Arms? | *
Col. Rumfey. When that time fail’d, after the

Fire fell out at Newmarket——
LC7.
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L. C. 7. When was this to be done?

Col. Rumfey. When the King returned from
Newmarket,

L. C. ¥. About what time?

Col. Rumfey. The Saturday before Eaffer,

L.C.7. I don’t afk you the Day; but was
1t when the King was laft at Newomarkst, or be-
fore?

Col. Rumfey. Laft at Newmarkes.

L. C. 7. When he was laft ac Newmarket, in
his Return from thence ?

Col. Rumfcy. In his Return from thence.

L.C. 7. Whereabouts?

Col. Kumjey. At Rumbold’s Houle, which is near
Hodfdon.

L.C.7. In Hertfordfbire ?

Col. Rumfey, In Hertfordfbire,

L. C. 7. And you fay, thole Methods were
chalked out by them, that Rumbold and fome
others were to attack the Coach, others to kill the
Poftilion, others to kill the Horfes; and this Gen-
tleman, with a commanded Party, wasto fall upon
the Guards ? You fay this?

Col. Rumfey. Yes, my Lord.

Capt. IWalcof. T would beg Leave, my Lord—

L. C.77. Stay, Captain /Zalrot, you fhall have
Leave to ask him any thing by-and-by 5 but you
muft firft let the King’s Counfel have done with
him.

Mr. At Gen. I would ask you what you know
of a Delign at any other time ?

Col. Rumfy. 1 do know nothing, I heard by
Mr, 17/, butl knew nothing before.

L. C.'¥. Nir. Ruanfey, About what time was this
Refolution taken up, as near asyou can? [ ask
neither the Day nor the Week, but about what
Month ?

Col. Rumfey. The Beginning of 1t was in Ft-
bruary.

L. C.F. Laft February ?

Col. Rumfey, Lalt February, Mr. Fergufon, and
Captain Walcot, came to this Town upon A/b-
Wednefday.

Mr. Serg. Feffertes. W hat other Meetings were
you ag, Sir ¢

Col. Rumfey. This was the firft, when the Pri-
foner at the Bar camein.  The frft Time wasag
Mr. W7eF’s Chamber, where he came: There it
was confldered and debated.

M, Serg. Fefferies. Very well, you fay that was
the firlt Time Capt. //a/cor came in ?

Col. Rum'ey. It was at Mr, W7/P’s Chamber :
This was before the King came from Newmarkes
that they were to do this, and the Number
of Men could not be got ready 5 fo there were
everal Meetings efterward at Mr. J/2/’s Chamber,
1o confult whether they could raife the Number
ihey refolved upon s and there were Notes brought
Wy Mr, Gosdenough, and Mr. Rumbold, of many
Names, I cannot {ay who elfe brought Notes of
rhe Mens Names, to lee that they might not be
deceived in the Number 3 and that Time Captain
Valet was therey, and did undertake to go to
Mr, Rumbelds Houfe, and 1 think did go down
to the very Place.

L. C.¥. Look you, Sir, Was there any Num-
ber of Men nfilted vpon for doing this Vil
iy 2

Col. Rumjey, Capi. Rumbold did infift upan 50
Men,

L.G. 7. BatCapt, IPalzot, How many was he
:0 have ?
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Col. Rumfey. It was not divided to a perfeét
Number.

M. Serg. Fefferies, What other Meetings were
you at with Caprain Halcos

Col. Rumfey. 1 was at the Salutation with him,
and the Green-Dragon with him,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Where is that ?

Col, Rumfey. The Green-Dragon 1s upon Snow-
hill,

Mr, Serg, Fefferies, Where is the Salutation ?

Col. Rumfey. In Lombard-fireet,

Mr. Serg. Fefferics, Now tell what Difcourfes
you had there ?

Col. Rumfey. That wasabout dividing the City
into 20 Parts, to feec how many Men could be raifed
out of every Part, and they were to be divided into
Fifteenths, and every Man to lead a Fifteench, that
they might not be at a Lofs.

Mr. 4. Gen. Who was intrufted with this to do
it ?

Col. Rumfey. Mr. Goodenongh, Mr. 77721, and
Mr. Hade.

Mr. At. Geii. What Account did they give of
what they had donc ?

Col. Rumfey, Mr. Gozdenongh gave an Account
of 7 Parts of the 20, and {aid out of them would
be ratfed 2goo Men, and made an Eftimare, thae
the other 13 would not raife above as many morce;
for thofe were the moft confiderable Parts, as
Waprptig and Sonihwark,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Mr. Ruwmfey, Pray what Con-
fultation had you afterward, and what was done
after 2

L.C.7. Pray let vs go on a little gradatin.
Whatwas the Reafon, that this was not efieéted
when the King returned irom Newmarie! ¢

Col. Rizanfev. The Fire happened, and brought
the King {ooner from Newmarket than the Men
could be got ready.

L.C.7. Was there a Day appointed for the
doing this? Had you a Profpect when the King
would return ?

Col. Rumfey. Yes, it wascommonly talked that
1t would be the Saturday before Eafter, but he came

on the Tuefday before,
L. C. 7. Thengive usan Account how that De-

fgn was difappointed at that time.,

Col. Rumfey, The Fire happened in Newmarket,
and they wereall in Confufion, and could notges
their Men ready by Tuefday; the News came
upon Friday to Town.

L.C. 7. Of the Fire?

Col, Rumfey, Of the Fire, and there was a
Meeting. Mr, Fergufon lodged then in Covent-
Garden, and fent to feveral to come to him, to
fee if Men could be got together againft Tref-
day, when the King was to come inj and it
could not be done, and it was laid afide for that
{ime.

Mr. 4. Gen, Upon that, what Refolution was
taken *

Col. Rumfey. Then they had a Mecting, and
Fergujon was not there, there was Capt, I7alcot,
Mr. I7eft, and Mr. Goodenongh 3 this was imme-
diately after chis Difappointment: I am not cer-
tain whether i1t was in Mr. 772#’s Chamber ;
and that there might no Accident happen af-
terwards to hinder it, 1t was refolved, that Mo-
ney fthould be raifed for the buying of Arms ;
and Mr. Fergufon undertook to raife Money to
buy Arms, and Mr, #7¢ft did undertake to pro-
vide them,

Mr,



1683. 0. B.

Mr, A1, Gen. Who undertook to provide Ment

Col. Rumfey. Mr, Goodenough, and Mr. Rumbold.

L.C. 7. Look you, Colonel Rumfey, after this
Difappointment, when this next Meeting was,
had you any further Delign upon the King
then ¢

Col. Rumfey. Yes, my Lord.

L.C.¥. Give us fome Account of that,

Col. Rumfey. It was to be done a coming from
Windfor to Loudon, or from Windfor to Hampton-
Conrt, or the Play-boufe 5 and therefore that Arms
fhould be ready againft any Opportunity that
fhould happen, let it be what it would: And
Mr. 77eft did undertake to provide Arms, and he
told me he bought them, and did not ger his
Money in [ix or {even Weeks after. A Day or
two after going to Fergufon, he told him now
he might have his Money, if he would fend a
Note to Major Wildman 5 but after, he was told,
that Major #ildman would not pay it by Note,
but he mult fend Mr. Rumbold to him for it ;
for he would truft no body elfe but him. And
fo Mr, Jeft did fend Mr. Rumbold, and he was
there at his Houfe by fix o’ Clock in the Morn-
ing, but he was gone out of Town an Hour
before ; fo Mr. I/¢ft went to Mr, Fergufon, and he
then told him, that he fhould have Money in two
or three Days, if he would come to him; and
M.}t did go to him, and he paid him an hun-
dred Pouncs.

Mr. A1t Geir. Was there any Provifion made for
a Rifing now again?

Col. Rumfey. Yes, this general Rifing, by this
Divifion of the City, was intended to be ready
againft the firft Opportunity that happened.

Mr, Al Gen. Betore this Dilcovery, did you
keep up thefe Meetings ?

Mr. Sol. Geir, When was your laft Time?

Col. Rumfey. My Lord, I think it was the very
Thurfday before the Difcovery ; but then on Fri.
day or Saturday we had Inklings, that this was dif-
covered, and did meet at the Geosge upon Ludgate-
Hill.

L.C.%7. Who met then?

Col, Rumfey. 1 think it was the very Thusfday
before ; T am not very certain ; we met at the Salu-
tation in Lombard-fireet, and there was Caprain #al-
coty Mr, Weft, Mr. Wade, the two Goodenoughs,
and Mr. Nelthrop, and mylelf,

Mr. Ait. Gen. What did 1t come to, pray, what
was your Difcourfe then and Refolution ?

Col. Rumfey. The Refolution was {till to carry
it on. We went thither to know of Mr. Goadenough
what was done about the other thirteen Parts 5 he
told us he had no Account, but he faid, he thought
he thould have a Meeting on Saturday in the Af-
ternoon at Ludgate-Hill, at the George, to have
his Anfwer; but the Difcovery coming, there
did only meet Mr. Norton, Mr. Bourn j ——u
there was another, I don’t know who the other
was ; there was a fourth.

Mr. Att. Gen. Mr. Rumfey, Pray, after the Dif-
covery, What did you refolve upon # What Meet-
ings had you upon your Flight: =

Col. Rumfey, We met at Capt. Tracy’s.

Mr. Ait, Gen, What Day was that?

Col. Rumfey. That was upon the Monday after
the Difcovery.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Who was there ?

Col. Rumfey, There was Capt. Walcot, Mr. Weft,
Mr. Wade, MIr. Neltbrop, the two Goodenonghs,
and Mr, Ferzufon, |
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Mr. 411, Gen, What did you difcoutfe of there
Col. Rumfey. There was exclaiming againft M.

Keeling, and taking Refolutions to be gone.

L. C.}. Mr. Keeling ! What was Keeling ¢

Col. Rumfey. Mr, Keeling was he that made the
Difcovery, ‘

Mr. Serg,. Fefferies. Have you ever been in Keel.
ing’s Company ?

Col. Rumfey. 1 was that time we met at the
Salutation , he came in there for a quarter of an
Hour. |

L.C. . Look you, Sir, Do you know Capt,
Walgoz? Are you fure it is that Gentleman at the
Bar: *

Col. Rumfey. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Hath he owned always the Name of
Walcot ¢

Col. Rumfey. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Whatdid he fay to Mr, Keeling, when
he came to the Salutation ? |

Col, Rumfey. There was in that very Day’s Ga-
zette a Report of the Rifing at Cologre, and one
Gulick that headed them; and faid Mr, e to
Keeling, he fhould be our Gulick,

Mr. Ait, Gen, Pray, how did he interpret it at
that time ?

Col. Rumfey. Mr. Weft {aid, that Gulick was Kecl-
ing, Gu was Keel, and lick was ing.

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. A Quirk upon his Name.

Mr. 4tt. Gen. When you refolved to fly, had
you any Dilcourfe of making a Stand, and fight-
ing the Government then ?

Col. Rumfey. Not that I know of, I was not all
the time with them.

L.C.7. Look you, Colonel Rumfey, let me
afk you this: What was Keeling to do? Was chere
any Polt afligned to Keeling in this ?

Col. Rumfey. 1 never faw him before,

L.C. 7. How long was it before the Difcovery
that you did fee him?

Col. Rumfey, The Thurfday before,

L.C.F. At the Salutation-Tavern ?

Col. Rumfey. Yes: He was there call’d Gulick.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. I Capt. Walcot will afk him
any Queftions, he may,

L. C. 7. Look you, Mr. #alcot, Now you may
ask Col. Rumfey; tell me what Queftions you
would have asked, and I will ask him.,

Capt. Walcot, I defire Colonel Rumfey may be
asked, Whether I ever met at Mr. ef’s Clam-
ber, till after his Majefty's Return from New-
market ¢
- L.C.7. Look you, Sir, you hear the Que-
ftion; 1cis, Whether ever Mr. Walcot met with
Mr. Peft, till after the King’s Return from New-
market ¢

Col. Rumfey. Till afeer ¢

L. C.F. Till after the King’s Return,

Col. Rumfey. Yes, Sir. '

Capt. Waleot. My Lord, I have fuffictent Evi-
dence againft that. |

M. Serg. Fefferies. I think that he was to un-
dertake the Guards; that was before the King
came from Newmarket, .

L.C. 7. He hath given this Evidence, He was
there, and he would not attack the Coach ; he
would not meddle with the King, but he would
fall upon the Guards,

Capt. Walcot, Shall I fpeak a Word, my Loord?

L.C.7. Look you, Iwilltell you, you fhall
have your Anfwers to thefe things; you have Pen,
Ink, and Paper,

4 T Capt,
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Capt. Walcot. But I have a bad Memory, and
I am afraid I {hall forgec this very Thing,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. 1 hope the Jury will not for-

oct 1L,
S L.C. 7. Look you, Mr. Walcot, we muft not
admit you to break in upon the King’s Evidence.
When that 1s heard, you fhall have your Liberty
to make your Aniwer to any thing, and call any
Witnefs.

Col. Rumfey. My Lord, I will give one In-
ftance more: There was one Meeting at the Five
Bells in the Strand, where there was only Fergufon,
Captain Rumbold, Mr.Weft, Goodenough, and my-
felf: And Mr, Fergufon told vs that Night, that
Captain Walcot would come the next Meeting we
had at Mr. 7¢f’s Chamber.

L. C.¥. Then Captain Walcot was not with you
at the Frve Bells ¢

Col. Rumfey. Mr. Fergufon told us he would
come in the next time at Mr., #ef’s Chamber,

and there he did come,
L. C. 7. And that was before the King went to

Newmarket,  Pray, Sir, anfwer this, Was this
before the King went to Newmarket, or not?

Col. Rumfey. No, my Lord, this was when he
was at Newmarket - for the King was at New-
market when he and Mr. Fergufon came from Hel-
land, the King was then at Newmarket,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. Now we will call Mr. Keeling,

[#bo was fworn,

Mr. Att. Gen, Pray, will you acquaint my Lord,
and the Jury, what you know of thefe Confpira-
cies touching this Man,

Mr., Keeling. Some time, my Lord, before the
King went to Newmarket, 1 was at the Sun-Ta-
vers, and in company with Richard Rumbeld, Ri-
chard Goodenough, and fome others, Goodenough
calls me forth of the Room, and afked me, What
Men I couid procure? I afked him, For what Pur.
pofe? He faid, To go down towards Newmar-
ket, 1 afked, forwhat End? He faid, To kill the
King, and the Duke of York. I told him, I

thought none. Before the King came from Nezw-
market he renewed his Queftion to me again fe-
veral times: I had in the futerim fome Difcourfe
with Burton and Thompfon. Burton told me, That
Barber would be concern’d 3 and he alfo told me,
Thompfon would. The Saturday after the Fire hap-
pened at Newmarkety, Rumbold came down to
my Houfe, or the Friday, the Day that the News
was of the Fire, the Day that he commonly came to
Town, he came to my Houfe; it was on the Fri-
day, to fee thofe Men I could procure, and he
defired to fee them on the Morrow, which .was
the Saturday before the King returned. The Satur-
day after the Fire I went into London, and met
Mr. Rumbold that Day at the Exchange, and he
then put me in mind of the Matter again, I did
oo to Burton and Thompfon, and Barber ; the Place
appointed on Safurday was the Mitre~-Tavern at
the Corner of Duke's-place within Aldgate. He.
did meet there, where there was fome Difcourfe
happened tending to, that Matter by Rumbold ;
the Subftance of which was, Whether they were
willing to go down? I think he called the Place
by the Name of The Rye, that is his Houfe ;.

there being, fays he, no greater Conveniency than.

in that, I believe {carce in Eungland, for the execu-
ting fuch a Defign, being an Houfe very intire
to itfelf, and very remote from Neighbours, be-
fides the Advantage that belongs to it of 2 Court

ar Wall. And, among other Difcourfe, this was.
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an Argument to prevail with tiiofe Perfons: For,
faith he, it will be a keeping one of the Com-
mandments, to kill the King, and the Duke of
York 5 for, fays he, if that be not done, there will
be otherwile a great deal of Bloodthed commit-
ted. He alfo told us the way that he defign’d to
effect this at his Houfe ; That he had a Conve-
niency for our Horfes ; and that there would be
{fo many appointed to fhoot ar the Poftilion and
the Horfes ; and that there would be fo many ap-
pointed at the Coach, and fo many Men to at-
tack the Guards: And if there was a Failure in
{hooting the Coach-horfes, that then there thould
be Men in the Habit of Country-men, with a
Cart in the Lane, and they fhould run this Cart
athwart the Lanc, and fo ftop the Coach. T be-
lieve there might be fome other Particulars, which,
at prefent, I do not remember. I'rom thence we
went to the Exchange, and there we met in the
Afternoon at the Dolphin-Tavern in Bartholomer:-
Lane ; there was Rumbold, Weft, Goodenongh, and
Hone the Joyner, And after we had been therea’
little, 17eft atked Rumbold, Whether he heard the
King would come home that Night? He faid,
Yes, he heard fo; boet faid 771, I beileve he
won’t come till Monday, and L hope he won’t come
tll Saturday; for that was the Day appointed to
go «duwn to the Rye, to meet the King, and the
Duke of %irk. Szid Rumbold, 1 hope they will
not come till then : Bur, faid 272/, if they do come,
How many Swan-quills mult you have? How
many Goofe-quills ? And how many Crow-guills, with
Sand and Izk, muft you have? Said they, Six
Swan-quills, Twenty Goofe-quills, and Twenty or
Thirty Crow-quills,

L.C. ¥. Explain that.

Mr, Keeling. I am coming to it. I afked /Veff
or Rumbeld, or both of them, what they intend-
ed by it? They told me Swan-quills were Blun-
derbufles, Goofe-quills Mufkers, and Crow-
quills were Piftols, Sand and Ink Powder and
Builet. This is all my Lord, as I remember in
general, as to the Defign.

L.C.7. What can you fay concerning the Pri-
foner at the Bar?

Mr. Keeling. 1 was at the Salutation-Tavern, and
Captain alcot was there; and when I came in,
there was fome Perfon called me Culing, and 12
litle ftranged at it, not knowing the Meaning.
Says I, Gentlemen, What do you defign by 2
Says one, Here’s a good Health to our Englith
Culing.  Says Weft, Culing in Dutch is Kecling in
Englhfb, And fays Mr, #eft, 1 hope to fee Mr.
Keeling av the Head of as good an Army in Wap-
ping, as Culing is at Collen, 1 fuppofe Captain
Walcot remembers it very well, I can fay no
more, Sir, to the Prifoner at the Bary [ remem-
ber not to have feen him any other time upon
this Defign,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. Would the Prifoner at the
Bar ask him any Queftions?

Capt. Walcot. My Lord, I don’t remember any
fuch thing. = If you pleafe, my Lord, to ask him,
whether I call’d -him Culing, or faid any thing
more or lefs.to him,

Mr. Keeling, 1 don’t fay you did, but you were
by, that [ fay,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. 1 think, Mr.Keeling, you were
the Perfon that made, the Difcovery 5 give an Ac-
count of ir for the Satisiaction of the World,

L..C. 7. Upon what Occalion did you reveal-

this? {
Mr, Keeling,
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Mr. Keeling. If your Lordfhip pleafe, I will give
you an Account. There was fomething happen-
ed before that time. Some time before this thing
was difcovered, Goodenongh came down to my
Houle, and I went with him to dtink a Difh of
Cotlee, and there was in Company with him Ri-
chard Rumbold, and his Brother William, that I be-
lieve Mr. Walcot knows 5 and when we were by our-
felves; he pulls out fome Papers out of his Pocket,
and gave me one. Iatked him what he meant. He
told me he had divided the City and Suburbs into
twenty Parts, and there were three Divifions: And,
fays he, you know the Perfons better than I, and
who you can truft with it.  One 1s for yourfelf,
and I would have you take to your Affiftance nine
or tcn Men, more or lefs, that you may commu-
nicate it fafely to ; and they were to go to feveral
Perfons, and afk them, Soppoling that the Papifts
fhouid rife, or that there thould be a general In-
furrection, or a French Invalion, are you in a
Pofture of Defence? Thiswas all we were to com-
municate of the Matter to them, and this was to
feel them, and fee how many Men they could
raite. And he told me there was a Defign to kill
the King, and the Duke, which was defigned to
be done at the Bull-feaft; for Mr, #¢f had told
me it was to be done between Windfor and Hamp-
ton-Court, Iafked him, If that Delign went onj;
and he faid, No; for the Duke of 2orf feldom
came with the King from #indfor to Hampton-
Conrt, but it was to be at the Bull-feaft. And
fays he, thefe Men are to be in a Readinefs, and
it’s defign’d, that the thing thould be laid upon
the Papifts, as a Branch of the Popifh-plot. He
alfo told me, there was one drawing a Decla-
ration, which would relieve poor People of
that which feemed moft burdenfome to them,
which was the Chimney-money; and then the
common People would fall in with them more
readily.

Mr. 4it, Gen. How came you to diflcover it ?

Mr. Keeling. T will tell you, Str: I'was troubled
in my Mind about it, and do declare that was the
only Reafon. I thought I did very ill in not dif-
covering it, and 1 had no Peace, nor Satisfaction,
nor Content, nor did I mind my Bufinefs, nor
could I take the Reft that at other times I did,
and that was the moving Caule, and no other.
I thought, if it were a Sin in David to cut off the
Hem of Sanl’s Garment, it was a Sin in me much
more to kill my King.

L.C.7. Was there any Polt in this Cafe aflign’d

to you? Was it requir’d of you to do any thing

yourlelf, more than to raife thofe Men, and
know whether they were in Readinefs? Were you
defign’d to go down to Rumbold’s Houfe? T'ell
what Part you were to act.

Mr., Keeling, In the firft place, I was to raife
fome Men ; but I thought they looked upon me
for one to go down myfelf with fome Men [ raifed;
but I remember not, that I was afked the Que-

ftion.
L. C. 7. Were any of thofe Men to go down ?

Mr. Keeling, Thofe three I named were to go
down, Burton, Thompfon, and Barber, -

Mr. Att, Gen, Call Mr. Bourn.

L. C. 7. Tell us the Manner of your revealing
and difcovering this, who you difcovered it to? -

Mr. Keeling. I revealed it to one Mr. Peckbam,

L. C. 7. Who did he bring you to ¢

Mr. Keeling. 'To my Lord Dartmonth,
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_L.C: 7. And fo you did difcoyer the whole
Bufinefs to him?

M. Keeling. T had offered to difcover it to an-
other Man before, but I'thought Ke was carelefs ;
fol qld not tell him pofitively what | thought to
tell him; becaufe I faw he flighted the Matter.
He was a Minifter of the Church of Eiglend.
Then T went to Mr, Peckham, knowing he was
intimate at Court, and from thence o my Lord
Dartmonth, and then I was cafried to Mr. Se-
cretary Feukins,

Mr. Att, Gen. Was there no Defign to take off
the Mayor or the Sheriffs in particular?

Mr. Keeling. I will tell you: Goodenongh did tell
me, That the Defign was to fecure the Lord
Mayor, and the Sherifis; and he told me, they
had a Defign to fecure the Tower.

Mr. Att, Gen. Were you employed to atreflt my
Lord Mayor?

Mr. Keeling. I did arreft my Lord Mayor.

L.C.f. What are you? How catme you to ar-
;;eft ;ny Lord Mayor? What are you by Profef-
10D !

Mr. Keeling. A White Salier, o Oyl-man.

L.C.7. How came you to arreft my Lord
Mayor? _

Mr. Keeling. T was
and thofe Men. | |

L.C.7. Asa fpecial Bailiff ? )

Mr, Aut, Gen, He was as a {pecial Bailiff,

M. Keeling. Under the Coroner,

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. A {pecial Bailiff under 4
{pecial Coroner.

Mr. Bar. Street. Was this Coronet at any time
of your Meetings?

Mr., Keeling. No, my Lord.

Mr. Bar, Street, 1 am glad he was not.

L.C. 7. What fay you, Capt. Zalcot?

Capt, Walcot. My Lord, I have nothing to
fay.
YMr. Sol. Gen. Call Zachary Bourn.

(IVho was fworn,

Mr. Ait, Gen. Pray will you recollect yourlelf,
and tell what Knowledge youi have of the Pri-
foner, what Meetings yon had, and what .was
acreed.

L.C. 7. Raife your Voice a little,

Mr. Bourn, The Occafion of my knowing
Capt, Walcot was Mr. Fergufow's lodging at my
Houfe. Capt. #alcot uled to come thither, but ic
was fome time before I changed any Words with
him, | .

Mr. Ait. Gen. Speak aloud, Mr. Bourn.

Mz, Bourn, Mr., Wade came prefently after I
came to Town from the #ells, and faid, I muft
needs meet in fuch a Place, it was at the Dragon
upon Snow-bill, where we miet {everal others be-
fides Capt. Walcot : 'The Bufinefs was a Defign to
raife Men, and -divide the City into twenty Di
vifions, in order to the fecuring of his Majclty, and
the Duke of Zork, and fetting up the Duke of
Monmouth. - . |

L. C. ¥. Was it fecuring, or killing?

Mr. Bourn. It was not killing, I think ; we ne-
ver exprefled It killing ac thofe Meetings. 1
think, every time I met them, Capt: Walcot was
there. Once I was at the Salutation 10 Lombard-

reet.

L. C. . What was the Refult of your Meet:
1gs, '
ng. Bourn. To make all Expedition imaginable,

4 T 2 L.C ¥.

put upon it by Goedenongh,
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Capt, Walcot, But 1 have a bad Memory, and
I am afraid I fhall forget this very Thing. |

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. 1 hope the Jury will not for-
oel it
°L.C. ¥. Look you, Mr. Walcor, we malt not
admit you to break in upon the King’s Evidence.
When that is heard, you fhall have your Liberty
to make your Anfier to any thing, and call any
Witnefs. |

Col. Rumfey. My Lord, I will give one In-
ftance more: There was one Meeting at the Frve
Bells in the Strand, where there was only Fergujon,
Captain Rumbold, Mr. Wefty Goodenougb, and my-
{elf: And Mr, Fergufon told us that Night, that
Captain Walcet would come the next Meeting we

had at Mr. #72f’s Chamber.
L. C.¥. Then Captain Walcot was not with you

at the Five Bells ¢

Col. Rumfey. Mr. Fergufon told us he would
come in the next time at Mr. #¢f’s Chamber,
and there he did come,

L. C. ¥. And that was before the King went to
Newmarket, Pray, Sir, anfwer this, Was this
before the King went to Newmarket, or not?

Col. Rumfey. No, my Lord, this was when he
was at Newmarket . for the King was at New-
market when he and Mr. Fergufon came from Hel-
land, the King was then at Newmarket,

M. Serg. Fefferies. Now we will call Mr. Kzéling.

[Who was fworn.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Pray, will you acquaint my Lord,
and the Jury, what you know of thele Confpira-
cies touching this Man.

M, Keeling. Some time, my Lord, before the
King went to Newmarket, 1 was at the Sun-7a-
vern, and in company with Richard Rumbold, Ri-
chaid Goodenongh, and fome others,  Goodenough
calls me forth of the Room, and afked me, What
Men I could procure? I afked him, For what Pur-
pofe> He faid, To go down towards Newmar-
ket. 1 afked, for what Fnd? He faid, To kill the
King, and the Duke of 2ork, 1 told him, I
thought none. Before the King came from New-
market he renewed his Queftion to me again fe-
veral times: 1 had in the Interim fome Difcourle
with Burton and Thompfon. Burton told me, That
Barber would be concern’d 5 and he alfo told me,
Thompjon'would.  The Saturday after the Fire hap-
pened, at Newmarkety, Rumbold came down to
my Houfe, or the Friday, the Day that the News
was of the Fire, the Day that he commonly came to
Town, he came to my Houfe ; it was on the Fri-
day, to fee thofe Men I could procure, and he
defired to fee them on the Morrow, which .was
the Saturday before the King returned. The Sasur-
day after the Fire I went into London, and met
Mr. Rumbold that Day at the Exchange, and he
then put me in mind of the Matter again. I did
g0 to Burtox and Thompfon, and Barber 5 the Place
appointed on Safurday was: the Mitre-Tavern.at
the Corner of Duke's-place within Aldgate, He,
did meer there, where there was fome Difcourfe
happened tending to, that Matter by Rumbold;
the Subitance of which was, Whether they were.
willing .t0 go down? I think he called the Place
by the Name of The Rye, that is his Houfe ;.
there being, fays he, no greater Conveniency than.
in that, I believeTcarce in England, for.the execu-
ting fuch .a Defign, being an Houfe.very, intire
to itfelf, and very remote from Neighbours, be-

fides the Advantage that belongs to it-of a Court.
or Wall. And, among other Difcourfe, this was,
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an Argument to prevail with thofe Perfons: For,
faith he, it will be a keeping one of the Com-
mandments, to kill the King, and the Duke of
York ; for, fays he, if that be not cong, there will
be otherwife a great deal of Bloodfhed commit-
ted. He alfo told us the way that he delign’d to
effe@ this at his Houfe ; That he had a Conve.
niency for our Horfes; and that there would be
fo many appointed to fhoot at the Poftilion and
the Horfes ; and that there would be fo many ap.
pointed at the Coach, and fo many Men to at-
tack the Guards: And if there was a Failure in
thooting the Coach-horfes, that then there fhould
be Men in the Habit of Country-men, with a
Cart in the Lane, and they fhould run this Cart
athwart the Lane, and fo ftop the Coach. I be-
lieve there might be fome other Particulars, which,
at prefent, I do not remember. I'rom thence we
went to the Exchange, and there we met in the
Afternoon at the Dolphin-Tavern in Bartholomer:-
Lane s there was Rumbold, Weft, Goodeiongh, and
Hone the Joyner. And after we had been therea
little, 7776/t afked Rumbold, Whether he heard the
King would come home that Night? He faid,
Yes, he heard fo; but faid 77:#, I beiieve he
won’t come till Mondey, and I hope he won't come
tll Saturdays for that was the Day appointed to
go unwn to the Rye, to meet the King, and the
Duke of Yerk. Said Rumbold, 1 hope they will
not come till then : Bug, faid 271, if they do come,
How many Stwan-guills muflt you have? How
many Goofe-guills ? And how many Crow-guills, with
Sand and Ink, muft you have? Said they, div
Swan-quills, Twenty Goofe-quills, and Tawenty or
Thirty Crow-quills,

L.C. ¥. Explain that.

Mr. Keeling. T am coming to it. T afked /Vof
or Rumbeld, or both of them, what they intend-
ed by it? They told me Swan-quills were Blun-
derbuffes, Goofe-quills Mufkets, and Crow-
quills were Piftols, Sand and Ink Pewder and
Bullet. This is all my Lord, as I remember in
ceneral, as to the Defign.

L.C.¥. What can you fay concerning the Pri-

foner at the Bar?

Mr. Keeling. 1 was at the Salntation-Tavers, and
Captain Walcot was there ; and when I came 1n,
there was fome Perfon called me Culing, and I a
litle ftranged at it, not knowing the Meaning,
Says I, Gentlemen, What do you deflign by it?
Says one, Here’s a good Health to our Englith
Culing.  Says Weft, Culing in Dutch is Keelmg in
Englifs. And fays Mr. #eft, 1 hope to fee Mr.
Keeling at the Head of as good an Army in #ap-
ping, as Culing is at Collen, T fuppole Captain
Walcot remembers it very well, I can fay no
more, Sir, to the Prifoner at the Bar; I remem-
ber not to have ieen him any other time upon
this Defign.

Mr. Serg, Fefferies, Would, the Prifoner at the
Bar ask him any Queftions ?

Capt. Walcot. My Lord, I don’t remember any
fuch thing.,, If you pleafe, my Lord, to ask him,,
whether I call’d him Culing, or faid any thing
more or lefs-to him,

Mr. Keeling, 1 don’t fay you did, but you.wer¢
by, . that I fay..

Mr. Serg, Fefferies. 1 think, Mr.Keeling, youwere
the Perfon that made, the Difcovery ; give an Ac-
count of it for the Satisiaction of the World.

L.C.¥. Upop. what Occafion did you.reveal:

this? |
Wir, Keelisg.
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Mr. Keeling. If your Lordfhip pleafe, I will give
you an Account. There was fomething happen-
ed before that time. Some time before this thing
was difcovered, Goodenongh came down to my
Houfe, and I went with him to diink a Difh of
Cotfee, and there was in Company with him Ri-
chard Rumbold, and his Brother William, that 1 be-
lieve Mr. Waleot knows ; and when we were by our-
felves; he pulls out fome Papers out of his Pocket,
and gave me one. Iafked him what he meant. He
told me he had divided the City and Suburbs into
twenty Parts, and there were three Divifions: And,
fays he, you know the Perfons better than I, and
who you can truft with it. One 1s for yourfelf,
and I would have you take to your Afliftance nine
or ten Men, more or lefs, that you may commu-
nicate it fafely to; and they were to go to feveral
Perfons, and afk them, Suppoling that the Papifts
fhould rife, or that there fhould be a general In-
furrection, or a French Invalion, are you in a
Polture of Defence? Thiswas all we were to com-
municate of the Matter to them, and this was to
feel them, and fee how many Men they could
raile. And he told me there was a Defign to kill
the King, and the Duke, which was defigned to
be done at the Bull-feaft; for Mr. ¢f had told
me it was to be done between #indfor and Hamp-
ton-Court, Iafked him, If that Delign went on;
and he faid, No; for the Duke of 2ork {eldom
came with the King from Hiudfor to Hampton-
Court, but it was to be atthe Bull-feaft. And
fays he, thefe Men are to be 1n a Readinefs, and
it’s defign’d, that the thing fhould be laid upon
the Papifts, as a Branch of the Popifh-plot. He
alfo told me, there was one drawing a Decla-
ration, which would relieve poor People of
that which feemed moft burdenfome to them,
which was the Chimney-money; and then the
common People would fall in with them more
readily.

Mr. Att, Gen, How came you to difcover it ?

Mr. Keeling. 1 will tell you, Sir: I was troubled
in my Mind about it, and do declare that was the
only Reafon. I thought I did very ill in not dif-
covering it, and 1 had no Peace, nor Satisfaltion,
nor Content, nor did I mind my Bufinefs, nor
could I take the Reft that at other times I did,
and that was the moving Caufe, and no other.
I thought, if it were a Sin in David to cut off the
Hem of Saunl’s Garment, it was a Sin in me much

more to kill my King,
L.C. 7. Was there any Poft tn this Cafe aflign’d

to you? Was it requir’d of you to do any thing

yourlelf, more than to raife thofe Men, and
know whether they were in Readinefs ? Were you
defign’d to go down to Rumbold’s Houfe? Tell
what Part you were to act.

Mr. Keeling. In the firlt place, I was to raife
fome Men 3 but I though they looked upon me
for one to go down myfelf with lome Men I raifed;
?[ut I remember not, that I was afked the Que-

jon.

L. C. 7. Were any of thofe Men to go down ?

Mr. Keeling. Thofe three I named were to go
down, Burton, Thompfon, and Barber.

Mr. Att. Gen. Call Mr. Bourn.

L. C.F. Tell us the Manner of your revealing
and difcovering this, who you difcovered it to?

Mr. Keeling. I revealed 1t to one Mr. Peckban,

L.C.7. Whodid he bring youtor

Mr. Keeling. To my Lord Dartmouth,

Vou, IlIL
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. L.C:}. And fo you did difcover the whole
Bufinefs to him?

M. Keeling, I had offered to difcover it to an-
other Man before, biit I'thought lie wis carelefs ;
fo I did not tell him pofitively what I thought ta
tell him; becaufe I faw he flighted the Matter.
He was a Minifter of the Church of Eugland.
:I‘heh I went to Mr. Peckbam, knowing he was
intimdte at Court, and from thence to my Lord
Dartmouth, and then I was catried to Mr. Se-
cretary fenkius.

Mr, A2, Gen. Was there no Defign to take off
the Mayor or thie Sheriffs in pafticular? |

Mr. Kecling, I will tell you: Goodenongh did rell
me, That the Delign was to fecure the Lord
Mayor, and the Sheriffs; and he told me, they
had a Defign to fecure the Tower.

Mr. Au1. Gen. Were you employed to afreft my
Lord Mayor ?

Mr. Keeling, I did arreft my Lord Mayor.

L.C.7. What are you? How came you to ar-
f_el’c my Lord Mayor? What are you by Profef-
{sh By

M. Keeling. A White Salier, of Oyl-man.

L.C. 7. How came you to arreft my Lord
Mayor? ,

Mr. Keeltng. 1 was put upon it by Goodenough,
and thofe Men. |

L.C.7. As a {pecial Bailift ¢ .

Mr. At Gen, He was as a {pecial Bailiff.

Mt, Keeling, Under the Coroner,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. A {pecial Bailiff under 4
ipecial Coroner.

M. Bar. Street. 'Was this Coroner at any time
of your Meetings?

Mr. Keeling. No, my Lotd.

Mr. Bar. Street, I am glad he was not.

L.C.7. What {ay you, Capt. Walcot?

Capt, Walcot. My Lord, 1 have nothing to
fay.
yMr. Sof, Gen. Call Zachary Bourn.

[Vho was fuwori,

Mr. Att, Gen, Pray will you recollet yourfelf,
and tell what Knowledge you have of the Pri-
foner, what Meetings you had, and what .was
agreed.

L. C. 7. Raife your Voice a little.

Mr. Bonrn, ‘The Occafion of my knowing
Capt, Waleot was Mr. Fergufor’s lodging at my
Houfe. Capt. J#alcot ufed to come thither, but ic
was fome time before I changed any Words with
him, | .

Mr. Ait, Gen. Speak aloud, Mr. Bourn.

Mr. Bowrn, Mr. Wade came prefently after I
came to Town from the #ells, and faid, I muft
needs meet in fuch a Place, it was at the Dragos
'upqn Snow-bill, where we met feveral others be-
fides Capt. Walcot : The Bufinefs was a Defign to
raife Men, and -divide the City into twenty Di=
vifions, in order to the fecuring of his Majcfty, and
the Duke of 2ork, and fetting 'up the Duke of
Monmouth, - . |

L, C. ¥. Was it fecuring, Or killing ?

Mr. Bourn. It was not killing, I think ; we ne-

ver exprefled it killing at thofe Meetings. 1
think, every time I met them, Capt. Walcot was

there. -Once I was at the Salatation in Lombard-

fireet,

- L.C. 5. What was the Refult of your Meets

ings. -
* ng. Bourn. To make all Expedition imaginable,
4 T 2 LG, 7{
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L.C.7 Was tt difcours’d how, or in what
manner, thofe Perfons were to be raifed? Don’t
refer yourfelf to the Evidence that went before,
but tell it yourfelf,

Mr. Bourn, The City was to be divided into
twenty Divifions, and to raife as many Men as
they could out of them but they were not to
tell the dire& Bufinefs, but if there fhould be Oc-
cafion, or the Papifts fhould rife, they might
(lijW their Strength, and what they were able to

0.

Mr, A4i2, Genn, This was their Pretence, becaufe
it fhould not be told thofe Men.

f"L'?C' 7. Did Mr. Goodenongh bring any Account
of it:

Mr. Bourn, Mr, Goodznongh brought an Account
of abour four thouflind s three I think it was, or
very near, out of thofe Divifions he had an Ac-
count of,

L. C.J. Was Captain /7alcot there at that

time?

Mr, Bourn, Yes.

Mz. Serg, Fefferies. When the Difcourfe was
about fecuring the King, and the Duke, was Cap-
tain JPalcot there ?

Mr. Bourn. Yes.

L. C. 7. Did you hear what Parties were de-
fign’d to be in this Act?

Mr. Bourn. They were not come to thar,

L.C.¥. Did you break off from them befcre
that ?

Mr. Bourn. No, the Difcovery prevented it.

L.C. 7. When was your firft Meeting ? About

what time?
Mr., Bonrn, About ten Days before the Difce-

very was made.

L.C.¥. Was Mr, #eft at any of your Con-

fules ?

Mr. Bouin, Yes, at fome-of them, and Cap-
tain Walcot was at three of them, if not at all, 1
think.

L.C. ¥. What wa to be done?
Mr. Bourn. They were to have {eized my Lord

Mayor, and the two Sheriffs, and fome of the
Aldermen, and the chief Minifters of State

about Town.
Mr. Bar. Street. Was there any body defigned

for that pafticulur Bufinels?
Mr. Bourn. No, not then, 1t was not come to

that,
Mr. Aut. Gen. Was there any thing about my

Lord Keeper?

Mr. Bourn. Yes, Mr. et did {ay to me, it
fhould be my Bufinefs to fecure my Lord Keeper.
I told him, I did not care to meddle with any
of my Neighbours. He faid he would call him
to Account with all his Heart, he would put him
in mind of Colledge. E

Mr. Ait. Gen, Pray were you imployed to fpeak
with any of the Nonconférmift Minifters about

g e N
Mr. Bonrs. Twould have fpoke to two of them,
and Mr. #:# was unwilling; for he faid, the
Minilters had deftroyed all Defigns ever fince
Conflamine’s time, and he would have nothing t6
do with them now. . -

Mr. Ait. Gen, When was your laft Meeting, be-

fore the Difcovery, that you were ats

Mr. Bourn, The Saturday before the Difcovery,
we met at Captain Tracy’s, and that Evening we
had fome Intimation, that there was 2 Di'fc?very
made. And I went again on Monday Morning;

1
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Mr. Att. Gen. Who was there?

Mr. Bourn. Caprain Walcot, Mr. Fergufon, Mr,
Goodenongh, Mr. Weft, Mr, Norton, and myfelf;
Rne Captain Paitle came in, but he did hot

ay.

Mr, Ait. Gen: Colonel Rumfey was there too,
was not he?

Mr. Boyrn. Yes, Sir,

L.C.7. And what did you refolve upon then?

Mr. Bourn, Truly they refolved upon nothing ;
I left them upon the Debate of killing Mr., Keel
1iig.,

Mr, Att, Gen. Why would they kill him? Was
that debated among them ?

Mr, Bourn, Yes, becaufe he made the Difco-
very.

Mr. A4t Gen. Did you hear them talk of ftand.
ing to it with Swords in their Hands?

Mr. Bewrnn. Yes, rather than be hang’d, they
thovght that was the better way, and to have
Kecling difpatched out of the Worlid,

L. C.}. Look you, Sir, did any of them talk
of {fecuring themfelves?

Mr. Bonzn, The next Morning 1 went aeain,
and they were all gone but Mr. 774, they had
all fecured themfelves.

L.C.%7. Was the Prifoner at the Bar there at
that time, when they confulted about killing
Mr. Keclizg ¢ Was he there at that Meeting on
Monday Norping?

M, Bzirn, He was there at Captain Tracy’s s he
was there, [ think, all the while, while I was there;
for I was not there all the tme.

L.C.% (To Walcot.) Now, Sir, what Queftion
would you have ?

Capt, Walcot, My Lord, if you pleafe, I would
afk whether he ever heard me fay any thing, more
or lefs, of aflaflinating the King?

L.C.7¥. In the firlt place, did you hear any
thing in general of affaflinating the King !

Mr. Bourn. 1did hear of it, my Lord, when
the thing was over. And as to his Queltion,
I did never hear him difcourfe of that Marter. 1
underftood the Delign was prevented.

L. C. ¥. Who did you underftand that from?

Mr, Bourn. From one Mr. Rsw, and Mr, For-
gufon.
Mr. At Gen. Pray, in all your Meetings, was
there no Difcourfe of killing the King and the
Duke?

Mr. Bours. Very little,

Mr. Serg. Fefferies. The Difcourle was about
fecuring the King, while ZValcor was there?

Mr. Bonzn. There was fuch Difcourfe in feve-
ral Meetings. It was faid, it would be well if
they were off, and the Difcourfe was about Lop-

ing.
d Mr. Att. Gen. Pray tell my Lord, what Dil-
courfe you had of Lopping, and the general

Point.
Mr. Bouri. They faid, there was no way like

Lopping them.
Wir. Att. Gen. What was underftood by that?

Mr. Bourn. The taking off the King, and the

Duke of 2o7%.
L, C. ¥. Was that the ufual Phrafe among you

to fignify that?
Mr. Bourn, Yes, my Lord,

L.C. ¥ Was he there? _
Mr. Bourn. 1 have heard it feveral umes, and

I fuppole he was at the hearing of 1t.
L.C %
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L.C. ¥. (To Walcot.) Liook you Sir, he fpeaks
of the time of Difcourte, of fecuring thé King,
and fays you were there then.

Capt. WWalcot, 1 had no hand in 1t.

Mr. Att, Gen. We will nail it home upon you;
we will call Mr. Weft. [Who was fworn,

Mr, Sera, Fejferies. Come, Mr. #eft, do you
rell' my Lord and the Jury the whole Story.

Mr. #Weff. My Lord, 1 came acquainted with
the Prifoner at the Bar laft Summer Vacation, by
the Knowledge of one Wilcocks, who, 1 fuppole;
return’d his Money out of freland. 1 heard a very
fair Chara&er of him, and he, I fuppofe, met
with fuch an one of me; which did incline us both
to an Intimacy, and to talk freely with one an-
other. About the Middle of Offober, I obferv’d
a general Difcontent in the City, and was afraid
there was fome Defign in hand, and was very
inquifitive to know it: I was unwilling to be in-
volved and furprifed into a fudden Ruin, and
fo thought fit to inquirc of them that were moft
likely to be concerned. I took Capt. Walcot for
one, being inform’d that my Lord Shafifbury had
{ent for him out of freland; and Capt. Walcot
told me, that my Lord was alfo fending for fome
Scotifh Gentlemen, on occafion of Caroltna; but
that he was very cool in Careling Bufinefs, and
that that was but a2 Pretence. My Lord, one

forning Capt. Waleot came to my Chamber, and
we difcours’d concerning the Election of Sheriffs
carried on in the City, contrary, as we thought,
to the Juflice of it: Says he, Will the People do
nothing to {ecure themfelves? With that he told
me a Secret, and faid there was a Defign of an
Infurreéion to be made within three Weeks or a
Month, that would make us free, or worfe. 1
told him, I thought it was a certiin way to bring
us in a worfe Condition, and that it was very ful
of Hazards. He told me then, he did not know
whether he fhould be concerned: But a little
while after he told me, my Lord Shaftforiy was
engag'd in fuch a Defign, and he had engag’d
him in it, and he told me, he had an Expectation
of being a Colonel of Horfe, and afk’d mc, If I
would have any Command under him? I told
him, I knew fome Gentlemen of the Tem;le that
I might engage in it ; bat told hm, I had not a
Conftitution to bear the Toilsof War. My Lord,
he told me then, That my Lord Sbafiflury, to
the beft of my Remembrance, hadanother Delign
upon the King and the Duke, as they came from
Newmarket in Offober lalt; but he told me he
abhere’d any fuch thing, it was ungenerous, and
he would not be concern’d in it, but only In a
general Infurrection.  But this he did tell- me, 1
think, before the thing was o be executed. I
imparted it to nobody, till after the Time of
both was paft: But in the Difcourfe of the Infur-
reCtion, he told me, I thould lend him a Suit of
Silk Armour, which I bought about four or five
Years ago, when the Popifh Plot broke out; and
he would have had me kept that, and ufed it my-
felf, which I did decline. Then he told me
he had very good Swords in Ireland, ‘but he
wanted them here, Says he, I am a Man that
am obferved, becaufe 1 have a Correfpondence
with my Lord Shafifbury s and atked me, If I
would provide him a good {tiff Tuck. ‘I told him
I would, and I did befpeak one; but before it
was done, the Defign was laid afide, and the Tuck
was left upon my Hands, I came to underftand,
that the Defign was put off by means of Mr,

for High Treafor,

Trenchard, who had difcours’d about a Fortnighe
before of great Forces he could raife in the
Weft; and the Duke of Monmonih {ent for him,
but his Heéart fail’d him; and he could not raife
any Men; upon which, my Lord Grey calléd
him Coxcomb. This was about the 19th of Ne-
vember, =

Mr, Att. Genr. What'Time of November 2

Mr. Weft. The 1gth.

Mr, Att. Gen, But upon what Day?

Mr, WWeft. Queen Elizabeth’s Day.

Mr, Ate, Gen.” No, Sir, that is the r7th.

M. 77¢t. Now after this I underftood by Capt.
Walcot, that Mr. Fergufon had the Management
and Condut of the Affaflination in Offeber, and
that he likewife was acquainted with the Infurre-
ction, and was a great Man in it. I met with Mr.
Fergufon, and fell into Difcourfe with him, and
he treated me, as he always did, with a long
Story of the Miferies of Scofland, and that the
People were all in Slavery and Bondage, and
would be {o here, if they did not free themfelves:
And, fays he, there are two ways thought upon
for it ; one is by a general Infurrettion, and that
1s gone off'; the other 1s a much more compen-
dious way, by killing the King, and the Duke of
York. My Lord, Itold him, I thought the firft
way was a very dangerous way, that the People
were in no fort of Capacity to carry it on, that
the Government had the Navy and the Militia,
and this would at the beft entail a long Whar,
He told me he thought the other was the beft
way, and we went to a Tavern, where Col, Ruu-
fey, and one Row, and he and I, went divers times.
They propofed to meet at my Chamber as a
Place of Privacy, and little Obfervation. My
Lord, when they came to my Chamber, Mr,
Fergufon propofed feveral ways of doing it. One
way was, as the King and Duke had their private
Vilits in 87, Fames’s, where it was an eafy thing
for Sword-men to kill them, There is one thing
I have omitted, and that was after the Defign of
Ofiober had mifcarried, I think, to the beft of my
Remembrance, Capt. #alcot told me, there was
another Defign of attacking the King and the
Duke at my Lord Mayor’s Feaft in the Hall, or
in their Return home, in Paul’s Church-yard, or
at Ludgate; and Mr, Fergufon did likewife cell
me the fame thing, but the King not dining
there, the thing was wholly difappointed. An-
other way that he propofed was, that they fhould
do it as the King and the Duke went down the
River, they fhould lie behind fome fmall Ships
within a Hoy, or fome fuch thing, and fo over-
run their Barge 5 and if that fail’d, they fhould
break a Plank with their Blunderbuffes, and fo
fink them. Another way was at the Play-bonfe,
and that was to be done in this manner s there
fhould be 40 or 50 Men got into the Pic with
Pocket-blunderbuffes,or Hand-blunderbuffes,and
Piftols and Swords; and when the Mufick ftruck
up between the Acls, they fhould fire upon the
Box ; but ‘this they thought was hazardous, and
therefore they thought it better to do it as he came
back, and pitched upon Covent-Garden under Bed-

fo}'d Garden Wall, becaufe there was a Conveni-

ency for a great many Men to walk in the Pigzza,
and there might be another Parcel of Men plant.
ed at Covent-Garden Church-Porch, and within
the Rails, where Horles could not come; and
while the Men within the Rails fired, the Men
in the Piazzz might engage the Guards, and they

in



